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TOTHEFIFTH GRADE PUPILS:

In 1976 our nationisobservingitsbicentennia and for the DesMoines Schoolsit will mark our 130th
birthday. In marking the ages of political institutionsboth datesnotelongevity. Inthe balance of agesof
civilization, itisashortinterva. Our bicentennial isatimefor joy inour accomplishmentsand for solemn
reflection onthefuture.

Asstudentsyouwill learn many thingsin your study of 1owahistory and the geography of thestate. In
variousbooksyou will learn about historica eventspertaining to the entire state. Thissupplementary bookl et
will provide many historical highlightsof the devel opment of schoolswithinthecity of DesMoines. This
local history will give many detailsthat could not beincorporated in books used throughout the state of
lowa

Through theyearsthecitizens of Des M oineshave demonstrated their belief in the val ues of education by
providing excellent school buildings, adequatetextbooksand awell-educated staff of teachers.

The chancesarethat you have always accepted the fact that you had a school to attend. It wasthere. It had
aname, possi bly for some president such asWashington, Jefferson or Jackson, or for somelocal person
such asRice, Hubbell or Watrous. Did you ever stop to observe that most Des M oines School s have had
one or more sectionsadded at onetime or another? When werethey built? Where did the names come
from that were used for the buildings? Theseare afew of the questionsthat might be asked.

Onthefollowing pagesyou will find ahistory of the DesM oinesIndependent Community School Didtrict.
Youwill find that thisnameisavery recent onesinceit wasacquired only in 1957. The history onthe
ensuing pages coversthe period 1846-1976. You will discover that the present school district includesall or
part of 24 different school districtsthat formerly existed.

A proud school heritageisyours. Thereisapast filled with change and new ideas. Youwill find the Des
M oines School s have kept pacewith the challenges of anew community, anew state, and anew nation.

-Dr. Robert R. Denny
Ass stant Superintendent for Education
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TOTHESTUDENTS:

You areliving at aspecial time--the cel ebration of the 200th anniversary of our country. The Bicentennial
bringsan awareness of and interest in our heritage, our past, and the men and women who provided the
leadership during our early history. We study the past in order to make wise decisionsin the present and
hopeto avoid mistakesinthefuture.

Asyou study the history of lowa, you become aware of lowasheritage. Asapart of lowashistory, the
history of the Des M oines Public Schools showsthe heritage of aprogressive and aert school system. It
showshow thiscommunity met needs, challenges, and problemsthroughout the schools one hundred and
thirty years. Peopleworked hard to continually improve and build upon an outstanding school system.

Thefuturewill show continued changesasthey are needed to meet the opportunitiesand challengesof the
last quarter of thetwentieth century and the beginning of thetwenty-first. DesMoinesisagood placeto
live. Oursisthelargest school districtinlowa, and itscitizens, school people, and educational programs
meet the needs of today'syouth and will chart arewarding coursefor the years ahead.

-Dr. Dwight M. Davis Superintendent of Schools
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Bicentennid Reflections

Schoolsand education have changed agreat deal from 1776 to 1976. In these 200 yearsthe schoolshave
tended to reflect theidesas, aspirationsand daily life of the American people morethan any other institution.
Throughout thesetwo centuriesthe school boards have becomethe closest political subdivisontothe
peoplethan any other aspect of city, Sate, or federal governmenta agencies. Because of thisproximity, the
school s have been and continueto be responsive to the demandsand will of the people.

During thefirst half of the 19th century Americansturned Increasingly to education astheanswer for the
nation’spoliticd, socid, religious, and economic problems. In 1832 during hisfirst candidacy for thelllinois
House of Representatives, Abraham Lincoln called education the most important subject which Americans
asapeople could be engaged. Thomas Jefferson was one who spoke out on many occasi ons about the
importance of education. Very few persons doubted the Jeffersonian statement that anation could not long
remainignorant and free. However, in the United Stateswhich wasmainly agrarian, the common school of
eight gradeswas deemed sati sfactory and sufficient for most students. For afew who wished advanced
training and would be college bound the private academieswerethe main routeto go.

Horace Mann, secretary to the Board of Education of the Commonweal th of M assachusetts between 1837
and 1848, was an early leader in the public school movement. Mann’s often quoted statement wasthe
educationis*thegreat equalizer, the conditions of men, the balancewhed of thesocia machinery.”

Thefirst high school established wasthe Boston English, opened in 1821, and by the start of the Civil War,
Massachusetts had 103 high school s or roughly oneto every threetownsand cities. Historicaly, the popular
sentiment for replacing the private academieswith anew sort of ingtitution, the public high schoal, first
surfaced inalarge measurein the 1830’ sand continued to spread during the next few decades.

Asindicated abovethefirst public high school beganin 1821, but therewere no morethan 100 public high
schoolsby 1850. The 1874 Ka amazoo decision of the Michigan Supreme Court stated that the high school
wasapart of thecommon school system and that the establishment of the high school wasimpliedinthe
state constitution. Thus, it becamelegal to tax property to support ahigh school unit that would befreeand
opentoall.

Thehigh school had been dow in devel oping because of repeated challenges by taxpayersfor using public
moniesfor theeducation of a“small, privileged portion of the population.” The Kaamazoo decision of 1874
wasoneof thoselandmark decisionswhich opened theway for the establishment of the high school
throughout the nation and in timefor its acceptance asan approved path for still higher education. The“free”
high school sthus established spell ed the decline of the private academiesthat charged tuition.

Evenwith theestablishmentsof freehigh school sin many communitiestherewere oftenrelatively few high
school graduatesinasmuch asthe labor market could absorb studentswho had six, seven, or eight years of
schooling. Recall that the United Stateswas basically an agrarian society and the need for skilled |abor was
just beginning to berequired by the needs of theindustrial revolution. Asamoretechnological society
emerged so wasthere an increased demand for more educated workers.
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Contrary to genera belief initsearly history inthe mid-1800sthe high school wasnot popul ar with the
working class. They tended to view it asan upper classingtitution, irrelevant to their aspirationsand impos-
sblefor themto utilize since adol escent earningswereimportant to thefamily.

In DesMoines, the West Des M oines Public School sinaugurated ahigh school in 1864. Thefirst graduates
werein 1868. High school graduating classes numbered anywherefrom four to six for anumber of years.
The East DesMoines Public Schoolslaunched their high school in 1866 and thefirst high school graduate
was Elizabeth Matthewsin 1871. The high schoolsinthe West Des M oines Public School Didtrict, East

DesMoinesPublic School Digtrict, North DesMoines Public School District, Capital Park Public School
District and Grant Park Public School Digtrict aswell asthetwenty other suburban districts such as Green-
wood, Oak Park, Oak Dale, and Chesterfield housed grades 9-12 on the upper floor of one of their
grammar school buildingsfor anumber of years. Later in thisbookl et the history of the high schoolsisgiven
and the buildingsthat were built to accommodate them. The point isthat therewas not abig demand by
parentsfor high school education for their children. Thosewho did attend high school weremainly the
college-bound students and they were attending the high school instead of the private academy.

Land Grant Colleges

TheMorrill Act of 1862 was another development inliberalizing accessto higher education with the estab-
lishment of land grant colleges. TheMorrill Act which authorized these colleges-in lowa, lowaState Univer-
sty at Ames, for example, represented thefirst direction on the part of the national government to provide
educational opportunity. It isinteresting that thisgovernmental action wasfirst gpplied to the one community,
theagricultural, which wasnational and which had definable needsand the power to expressthese needs. It
wasalandmark decision, too, inasmuch asit introduced anew political ideathat despitethe constitutional
restrictionson the power of thefederal government to manage and control education, the government could
neverthel ess support and facilitate the devel opment of specific formsof education whenever such develop-
ment was determined to bein the national interest.

Smith-HughesAct of 1917

Another landmark piece of legidation wasthe Smith-HughesAct of 1917 which provided thefirst major
federal fiscal support for schools. It wasacategorical aid measureinvolving federal supervision over the
expenditure of the authorized funds. Thisvocationa education act wasamed at improving educationin
agricultural andindustrial subjects, thetrades and home economicsin public secondary schoolsby the
origina maximum authorization of $7,000,000 ayear to be used for training teachersin these subjects,
partial payment of their salaries, and research into the needs and provisionsfor such education. However, in
order to participate, the states had to accept the law and submit specific plansfor federal approval and
matching federa monies.

The Smith-HughesA ct wasfurther reinforced by the George-Deen Law in 1936 which wasreplaced by the
George-Barten Law in 1946. Thisbroadened the program by involving more aspects of home economics
and family living and strengthened the program through teacher education.

Thevocational education act of 1963 and the vocational education act of 1968 further stimulated education
intheareaof home economics.
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A third categorical aid programwaslaunchedin 1958
and wasknown asthe National Defense EducationAct.
It contained an equalization formulaand alocated funds
to private aswell as public schools. Asthe namewoul d
imply, the act was based on the concern for national
security asit related to American scientific and technical
competence. Under Titlel1 of theact, $70,000,000
wasauthorized for the purchase of equipment and
remodeling of facilitiesfor instruction in science, math-
ematicsand foreignlanguagesin schoals.

The NDEA was modified and expanded by subsequent
legidation. Part of thischangetaking placewasthe
addition of history, civics, geography, economics,
English, and reading to the categoriesin Titlelll.

Three mgjor educational revolutionshave occurredin
thelast 100 years,

1. Inthe 1830sHorrace Mann’'sideathat agrammar
school educationwasa right for every child.

2.1n 1874 the Kalamazoo decis onwhich authorized
publicfundsfor high schoals.

3. TheGl Bill of Rightsof 1944. Thislaunched athird
revol ution by opening higher education to millionsof
Americans. In 1971 it has been estimated that over
eleven million personshad availed themsalves of the
benefitsoffered by thisand succeeding bills.

Many historianshave rated the Servicemen’sReadjust-
ment Act of 1944 asone of the most enlightened pieces
of legidation ever enacted by the Congress of the United
States. It made collegeareslity for millionswho had
never seentheinsideof aningtitution of higher learning.

It not only broadened their educational attainmentsbut
alsoraised thesightsfor thesemen and thefamiliesthat
they had. It set another higher rung on the educational
ladder asan achievement that waswithin thegrasp and
possibility for millionsmoreof Americans.

Evenjudged by gtrictly financid terms, investmentinthe
Gl Bill programswas an outstanding success. In genera
the higher aperson’seducationd level, the higher his
incomewill tendto be. Thiswasafact amply demon-
strated by the experience of millionsof veteranswho
had been assisted under the provisionsof the Gl Bill.
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President Lyndon Johnson stated that the added taxeson
the higher incomesthus made possibleamounted inthe
year 1966 to an estimated $60 billion. Sincethe cost of the
two programs cameto approximately $19 billion, they had
at that point already paid for themselvesthreetimesover.

Early Schoolsin DesMoines

Thehistory of educationin DesM oinesgoesback almost
asfar asthehistory of thecity itself. Thereissomeques-
tion asto who conducted the very first school. Records
show that thereweretwo established inthe sameyear-in
thefall and winter of 1846-1847. Both schoolswere held
in cabinsaong Raccoon Row. Mr. LewisWhittenwasthe
teacher of oneand MissMary Davisof theother. These
schoolswerecalled * subscription School's, sincethe
expenseswere paid by the parentsof the pupils.

Thefirst school district wasorganizedin 1849, four years
prior to theincorporation of thetown of Fort DesMoines.
About sixty dollarswas appropriated for the use of the
school district during the 1849-50 school year. School
costswere also defrayed by atuition charge of $2.50 per
pupil for theterm of twelve weeks. The Methodist Church
wasthe meeting place of thefirst school, and later it was
moved tothe‘new’ courthouse. Becausethebuilding was
not yet finished, it wasacold and uncomfortablelearning
situation. At theend of thefirst term of threemonthsthe
teacher, Byron Rice, suggested that school be dropped
temporarily. Mr. Ricelater became aprominent banker
and judge.

In 1851 the sum of $100 was appropriated to purchasea
half acre of ground at Ninth and Locust onwhichto erect
aschool building. Thefirst tax for the erection of aschool
buildingwasleviedin 1854. TheThird Ward School (or
“Brick School House,” asit wascalled) was opened for
school in 1856. It had cost the staggering sum -of $8,000.
Therewerefour departmentsand four teacherswhen it
opened. A bronze plague has been placed on thefront of
the present building at 9th and L ocust to commemoratethe
site, of thefirst public school in DesMoines.
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West Side Schoolsin 1860's

Thewest side enrollmentsof the 1860’ sincreased sothat in
afew yearsadditional space had to be rented to accommo-
datethe pupils. InApril, 1869, the school board purchased
anew siteat Tenth and Pleasant, to replacethe Third Ward
School at 9th and Locust. Thenew unit waslater named
Irving School.

DesMoines School History

OnMay 30, 1864, acommitteein the West DesMoines
school swas appointed to examine and report about the
advisability of establishing ahigh schoal for thefollowing
fal. OnJuly 1, 1864, they decided, upon afavorablereport
of thecommittee, to establish ahigh school and to openitin
the second ward building (Crocker) at Sixth and School.
Mr. Barredls, the County Superintendent, wasregquested to
furnisha“courseof study” and disciplinefor thesame. The
board elected Mr. Barrelsasprincipal at asalary of $100
per month. Therecordsshowsthat Mr. Barrelswasfirst,
county superintendent; second, principal of thehigh school
and thirdly, acongregational minister. Apparently thecitizens
of 1864 were not overly concerned with the separation of
Churchand State. It isrecorded that when Mr. Barrels
found it necessary to visit the outlying schoolsof Polk
County that Mr. J. A. Nash substituted for him asthehigh
school principal.

At ameeting of the Board of Education, October 1, 1864,
acommittee was appointed to classify the schoolsand draft
acourseof study. However, the committeerecorded on
October 24 that they had not been ableto preparethe
courseof study owing to the excitement caused throughout
the state by the presence of Confederaterebel raiders.
They requested moretimeand the course of study was
received November 9, amended and adopted.

DesMoineswasgrowing very rapidly during thisCivil War
period and the school swere becoming more and more
crowded. The organization of the high school mademore
room necessary and in 1867 aproposition providing for a
special tax for the erection of aschool was submitted to the
voters. The proposition lost. The crowded conditions
continued producing much discomfort, even thewindow
was soon became seatsfor students.
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When adiscontented parent complained to the president of
the board about the crowded conditionsand lack of seats, he
was asked by the board president “ Did you voteon the
proposition for more seatsor against more seats?’ If the
parent confessed that he had voted against thisbond issue, he
wastold that in that case hischild must continueto sitinthe
window.

First graduating class

Thefirst graduating classexercisesfrom theWest Des
Moines Public Schoolswasin 1868. Therewerefour mem-
bersof theclass,, oneboy and threegirls. Thismatter of the
girlsoutnumbering the boys continued throughout most of the
1800's.

Theold high school classeswhichwerehoused origindly ina
few roomsat the top of old Crocker school at 6th & School
(now 6th & Freeway), weremovedinthefall of 1868 tothe
oldthird ward building at the corner of Sth & Locust. This
wasan old building and one morning during the opening
devotiona exercisestheplaster fromtheentireceilingfell
upon the heads bowed in prayer. Amidst the criesand groans
that followed, itisrecorded that the prayer remained unfin-
ished. (Thiswasamatter before supreme court decision.)
With the sad state of repair of thisold building thevoters
finally agreed toissuebondsfor anew building and the
resulting structure wasameagnificent edificeknownasLincoln
School at 9th & Mulberry. (Thisisthe present siteonwhich
themainfirestationisbuilt today-inthe1970's.)

Deplorable condition for ahigh school building.

A good ideaof how difficult the school house situation was
may, be gained from thefollowing clipping fromthelowa
State Register of March 9, 1865; “ Thethird ward buildingis
amiserable structure never adapted for school purposesand
asyearsgo by it becomesmoreand moreunsuitable. Ina
very few yearsthis place must be supplied by anew one. By
usingittoitsfull capacity with the other two schoolhousesthe
accommodations can be furnished to only two out of every
fivechildreninthisschool district”. Evidently school atten-
dancewasnot mandatory inthisera

Asnoted abovethecitizensdid votefor anew school and
Lincoln school was described asthelargest and best building
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of thewest, costing at thetimeit was erected some
$80,000. Some newspaper reports point out that it was
erected inthe heart of one of theresidentia districtsinthe

aity.

TheLincoln buildingwhichispictured herewas somewhat
reminiscent of castlesout of England. Noticethemany
chimneysthat adorned the building; they werenot for looks
but for thesmple expedient of fireplacesthat were used to
hest thislarge structure. Lincoln housed al the high school
studentsnot only from the West Des M oines school

district, which wasthat areawhichisbasicaly downtown
DesMoinesat the present time, but alsoincluded those
who lived south of the Raccoon River whichisnow the
present southside DesMoines.

West High School had alady principal by the name of
Miss Charlotte Mann in the 1870’ swho was aniece of
Horace Mann. Therecords show that MissMannmarried
the president of the school board and became Mrs.
Cooper. MissMannwas principal from 1871-72. Itis
pointed out that therewere other women principal s of
West High through theyears; Mrs. Louise Morrow was
principal 1886-1888. Shewas succeeded, by aCelia
Ford, principal, 1888-1890. No other names of women
principal sappesar for West High from thispoint on. Inthe
samevein of recognizing out- standing women, May
Goodréll, of course, wasthe outstanding principal of East
High School for many yearsand in turnjoined the central
staff and becamethe director of what isnow the Pupil
ServicesDepartment.

A continued growth of DesMoinesand theincreasing
school population soon made even the new magnificent
Lincoln schoal building overcrowded. Therewasade-
mand by moreand more citizensfor an adequate high
school building to serve students adequately. The prosper-
ity inthenation of the 1870's, and 1880’ swas such that
peoplewere demanding more education for their young
people. Businesswasbooming and therewasgeneral
prosperity. Just asthe previous school buildingsbecame
crowded, history continued to repeet itself. Theninthe
year 1888 it was decided that anew building should be
erected at 15th & Center and that the high school unit
whichwason thetop floor of theLincoln building at 9th &
Mulberry should be abandoned. A splendid three-story red
brick building wasdedicated April 19, 1889, withimposing
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ceremonies, music, speechesand, of course, aflag presentation by the Grand Army of the Republic. One
of the speakersremarked: “\We have now anew building capable of furnishing room enough for the next
twenty years.” The magnificent structurewasWest High. Theoriginal West High had alarge bell tower
and called for ahuge clock that would strike every quarter hour. However the neighboring residentsinthe
fashionable homesthat werein the areastrenuously objected and theworksto the clock were never
installed. Neverthelessthefour sides of the hugetimepiece were adorned with theidle faces of the clock
until after afirein theteens caused the entiretower structureto berazed.

Thearchitects, Foster and Lieebe, visited schoolsin Chicago, Minneapolisand St. Paul in order to secure
ideasand information regarding the most modern methods of heating, lighting and ventilation for thisnew
structure. Theoffice of the superintendent and the board officeswereall included in the new West High
whenit opened. All theroomswere beautifully and luxurioudly furnished with fashionable woodwork,
furnitureand “rugsof good quality” . Themost modern and compl ete science equipment wasinstalled,
$1,000 being spent upon chemical apparatusaone. Reports state that noteworthy among thesewasa

K ershoff and Bunson spectroscope and Becker balance madein Rotterdam. The new building wasthe
showplace of the state and hundreds of visitorsand educatorscamefromall over tolook at the building
and to get ideasto take back for schoolsthey were constructing intheir homeareas. Thelibrary, for
example, had acollection of some 460 volumes.

Itisinteresting to noticethat they called thisWest High and Industrial School. Coursesof study offered
were, English, Latin, scientific, classic and business. All of thesewith the single exception of thebusiness
courserequired four yearsof study and led to adiplomaof graduation. The business course demanded
only two years of endeavor of work and upon compl etion of their hard work the student received aspecia
certificate but no diploma. Theclassical coursewastheregular college preparatory course andincluded
Greek.

Inthefall of 1889 manual training and home economicswere added to the curriculum. Thesetwo subjects
wereintroduced to the schoolsby Mr. and Mrs. R. H. Miller who had been recruited fromasimilar
position wherethey had taught in Toledo, Ohio, prior to coming to DesMoines. Alsoin 1889 shorthand
and typewriting wereintroduced to the curriculum by Mr. Clay Slinker.

History of East DesMoines School District

The schoolsof the city of DesMoineswerefirst under the control of one board of education. Among the
itemsinthereportsof the officersof thedistrict appear claimsthat they settled for rent and fuel for rooms
“usedin East DesMoines.” Children of the East Side were accommodated with school facilitiesin rented
rooms. Thefirst housein East DesMoinesfor school purposes of which we have definiteinformationwas
asmall framebuilding that stood near the corner of East 9th & Grand.

Therecordsalso show that therewere al so severa private schools operated in the eastern part of Des

Moines. One of the private or subscription schoolsof the city of DesMoineswasfirst under the control of
onedistrict onland now occupied by the Jewett L umber Company.
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Independent Digtrict Organized

The Independent School District of DesMoines, East Side, wasorganized in 1859. The organizational
meeting was held at the state capitol building. Facilitieswererentedinthe Griffith block inthe East Des
Moinescentral district and operated therefor severa years, then it wasmoved to abuilding south of the
Northwestern Depot on East Fourth. After being therefor ayear or two the school went back to the
Griffith Block whereit remained until aschool building could befinanced and erected

First Buildingfor East High

The East DesMoines School District remai ned without aseparate schoolhouse of itsown until theyear
1866. For many yearstheinterested citizens of East DesMoineswere activein trying to get the taxpay-
ersto vote bond money with which to build aschool house, however, they did not have good response
fromthevoters.

Itisimportant to recall that in those days schoal districtshad to tax themselvesdirectly on anannual
budget for the money with which to construct school houses. Therewasno authority or way for raising
money by issuance of bonds. Thusadistrict that wanted anything intheway of agood-sized school
building had to tax themselvesfor aseries of yearsand | et thefunds accumulatefor that purpose. Inthe
East DesMoinesdistrict therewasaconstant struggle year after year to get themoney for aschool
house, however, thevoting of oneyear’ stax gave no assurance that another timethe peoplewould fedl
thesameway.

Bryant School at Pennsylvaniaand Grand Avenuewasthefirst school builtin East DesMoines. A
picture of thisbuildingisgiven below. When Bryant School wascompleted it was said to bethelargest
and finest school houseinthewestern half of thestate. In 1975 it isdifficult to visuaize the problemsthat
they had in even securing materialsin DesMoinesfor thisschool building. Thelumber had to behauled
by horse-drawn wagon from Nevada, |owa, sincethat wasthe nearest railroad shipping point from
whichto securethe materials. Similarly, cement and other itemsof thisnature, nailsand anything to be
used in congtruction, that came by railroad from the East or from other points, had to beleftin Nevada,
and then laboriously and dowly hauled by teamsto the building sites. The records show that before
Bryant was completed, however, that the DesM oinesValley Road had begun to run trainsinto Des
Moines. Thissmall footnotein history pointsup the valueand importance of railroad transportationinthe
last century. It wasavita link to the out- sdeworld and greatly affected the cost of materialsusedin
construction aswell asitemsusedin everyday living. The 1881 annual report of the Board of Tradegave
thefollowingfiguresintheincrease of populationin DesMoines:

1846 —— 127 inhabitants 1870 —— 12,035
1850 —— 502 1875 —— 15,782
1860 —— 3,965 1880 —— 22,696
1865 —— 5,650 1881 —— 25,397

From these statiticsit can be seen that there woul d be atremendous growth in the number of school
population of students. Admittedly from the recordswe know that therewasnot agreat deal of pressure
for studentsto attend school for any great length of time, but it was becoming moreand moreimportant
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to servethoseyoungstersin those familieswho demanded
and wanted education. Thusthe East DesMoines schools
began to grow and the need for more buildingsbecame
apparent.

In 1874 the East DesMoines District built asecond school at
the corner of East Sixth and Raccoon with four rooms. It was
greatly enlarged afterwardsto servethe studentsthere. This
building incidently wasutilized until the 1950’ swhen Dunlap
School wasbuilt at Southeast 11th and Railroad Streetsto
servethe studentsin the southeast area.

In 1875 they built L ucas School at East 16th and Capitol.
In 1877 the demands of the school population of the east
side became so urgent that the board asked the district to
authorizealoan of $30,000 for the construction of aschool
at thecorner of E. 12th and Lyon. Thisproposal carried.

Namesfor the school buildings

It had been the custom of both the East DesMoines District
and theWest DesMoines Didtrict to nametheir schoolsby
wardsand indeed it appeared that the school directors
probably were e ected from the variouswardswithin a,
school digtrict. Finally, in 1880 the East DesMoinesboard
decided that the school buildings should be named and that
thiswould beamorefitting and proper way to refer to them.
Thefirst onethat they had built a Pennsylvaniaand Grand
wascalled Bryant after the poet, William Cullen Bryant. The
second or seventh ward school wasnamed Curtis. Thename
Curtiswas sel ected because of thefact that Genera Curtis
had been asomewhat extensive owner of property inthe east
side. The school constructed at 16th and Capitol wascalled
Lucasafter thefirst governor of lowaand thebuilding on
East 12th and Lyon wascalled Webster for thefamous
lexicographer of the nation. A rented roomin the southeastern
portion of the East DesMoinesdistrict, commonly caledthe
“porkhouse” school becauseit wasintended to accommo-
datethe children of themenwhowereemployedinthe
packing houses, was given the name of Bentonin honor of
ThomasH. Benton, for severa yearsthe head of the State
Department of Public Instruction. A picture of Benton School
isgivenbelow.
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Inthefall of 1880 the board rented aroom in the basement
of aSwedish church which stood at the corner of Des
Moinesand E. 2nd Avenue and started aschool there. The
preva ence of the Swedish nationaity inthat part of thecity
at that timewasthe reason for the board naming the new
undertaking after Sweden’ sauthor and traveler, Frederica
Bremer.

East High School

East High was started on thetop floor of Bryant School at
E. 9thand Grand.

Inchronological order East High hasexisted asfollows:
1861-1877 - Bryant School, top floor, E. 9th and Grand
1877-1891 - Webster School, top floor E. 12th and Lyon
1891-1911 - East High, E. 12th and Court
1911 to present at E. 13th and Walker

In 1887 thefreshman class of East High was moved back to
Bryant dueto overcrowding. In 1890 the East DesMoines
School Board obtained authority fromthevotersfor the
erection of agpecia high school building to belocatedinthe
corner of E. 12th and Court Avenue. East High wasdedi-
cated March 5, 1891. Thismagnificent building ispictured
below.

The East High building was planned and carried out under
the super- vision of the most popular superintendent of the
East DesMoinesDidtrict and theonewith thelongest
tenure-Superintendent Amos Hiatt. Superintendent Hiatt
assumed hisdutiesin 1885 and continued for admost two
decades (1895-1903).

Thegreat new building at E. 12th and Court continued to
serveasahigh school until overcrowding becameareal
problem. By thistimethe East DesM oines schoolshad
merged with the West Des M oines schoolsto formthe Des
MoinesIndependent School District and thethird and final
location of East High School occurredin 1911 when anew
East High School wasbuilt at E. 13th and Walker.

The East DesMoines School District continued to expand

through theyearswith anumber of other buildingsbeing
built. Thesearetouched on very briefly asfollows:
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In 1882 alarge school building waserected on Pineand called Longfellow School. That sameyear Lucas
School wasenlarged. In 1884 Emerson School wasbuilt at E. 16th and Maple. Benton School at S. E.
12th and Shaw wasgreatly enlarged to accommodate the studentsin that area. Therewasalargeaddition
built for Bremer School at Second and Des M oines. With the continued populationin and around the
Webster School site aseparate three-room school house was erected on the Webster grounds. Thiswas
calledthe LouisaMay Alleott building for the popular authoress of the day.

The East DesMoines school s hired subject areasupervisorsto assist intheimprovement of instruction.
They maintained aspecial teacher in drawing aswell asasupervisor of physical culturewhowasalso an
accomplished gymnast. They a so had asupervisor of music on the staff. Some of the old reportsreflect the
stressthat waslaid upon school attendancefor thoseenrolled, aswell asthe matter of punctuality. The
following figureswerereported: The percentage of attendance to number belonging wasin 1886-90.30 and
in 1896—95.80. The percentage of punctuality wasin theformer year--99.4 and thelast year--99.8.

Other Suburban Districts

It wasrecognized that the West Des M oines School District wasthelargest of the so-called urban districts
serving thisarea. The second largest, of course, wasthe East DesMoines School Digtrict. Inaddition there
wereanumber of other nelghborhood school districtsand indeed many of these were separate political
entitiesthat werelater merged into theforming of the City of DesMoines.

Oneof thesedistrictswasthe Capitol Park School System which wasorganized April 4, 1874. It wasthe
areain and around Union Park and Grand View College, to giveagenera geographical location. Itsprop-
erty consisted of the Capitol Park High School whichisstill retainedinthe old part of the present Wallace
Schooal at E. 13th and Polk (now Washington). The high school waslocated on thetop floor of the building.
Thisbuilding ispictured below. Alsointhe Capitol Park School System werethese units: Whittier School at
E. 14th and Washington; Grand View School at E. 9th and Hull; (Cattell) and L ogan School E. 17th and
Garfield aswell asawooden school known as Pleasant Corner.

A report statesasfollows about thisdigtrict:

“Probably no digtrict in the state of the size and wealth of Capital Park can make abetter showing. Many
of the best citizens of the Park have served on the board of education and given freely of their timeand
services”

Capita Park High School wasaccredited by the NCA in 1905. Certainly thiswasno small indication of the
educationd indtitutionthat they maintained.

Infootball Capital Park High School had an outstanding record. They played theusua high schoolsin Des
Moines, East High and West High. They also ranged out over the state and played Waterl oo High School
and OttumwaHigh School plusahigh school in Chicago, aswell asHigh- land Park College. Unfortunately
when they played Highland Park Collegein 1903 the College score was 33 and Capital Park was 6. They
fared somewhat better when they played the Ft. DesMoines cavalry troop team. Thiswastheregular U. S.
Army stationed at Ft. DesMoines. The scorein 1905 was Capital Park High School, 86 and FL Des
MoinesCavalry, 0. A report from that gamewas asfollows:. “ The cavalry men were much heavier but were
unskilled intheart of football.”
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Dutiesof Early Board Members

A note should be said in passing about the duties of the
early membersof the board of educationinthe 1300's
and continuinginto theearly 1900’'s. Thiswasan erain
which the school superintendency had not emerged asa
strong leadership rolefor the piloting of the school
system, asit were, over therough shoals of contro-
versy. The superintendent’srole of updating programs
and carrving out curriculum improvement that we now
haveinthelast haf of the 20th century had not been
perceived. Board membersof these early timespartici-
pated vigoroudy, enthusiagtically and directly inthe
affairsof running the school digtrict. They had commit-
teesinwhichthey took charge of the affairsof that
area. Typica of the standing committeesin most of
these districtswerethosethat arelisted inthe 1897
report of the East DesMoines School Didtrict. The
standing committeeswere:

1. Buildingsand grounds 2. Ingtruction
3. Finance 4. Supplies
5. Janitors 6. Printing

Thedutiesof thesecommitteesareasfollows: The
committeeon buildingsand groundsshal havegenerd
supervision of theproperty of thedistrict. The commit-
teeon finance shall examine and audit the accounts of
all schoal officers, make estimates of the expenses of
the school year and have general supervision of the
financid affairsof theschool digtrict.

Thecommitteeoningtructionin connectionwiththe
superintendent shal havethegenerd supervision of
teachers, textbooks, and the school work and shall
recommend to the board such changes asthewelfare of
the schoolsmay demand. The committee on supplies
shall beinchargeof al purchasing of dl suppliesand
apparatusfor usefor the schools. The committeeon
printing shall give orderspertaining to the school
digtrict’sprinting. Thecommitteeonjanitorsshal have
genera supervision of thejanitors, heating and ventila:
tion. In other words, school board memberstook a
very activeroleinvisiting school personnel, both
certified and noncertified, making suggestionsfor
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improvement, buying supplies, equipment, andin genera Ouale Park,

Eih and Modison

running the schools. Intime, these burdensbecametoo time
consuming. Also the public sought professiona leadership
for thesejobs. Thematter of hiring afull-time superintendent
plusass stantsin specia areasto runtheschool districtona
businesslike basiscameto bethe custom.

However, therewasgresat influenceinthesesmaller districts
by avigorousboard member. A particular board president
might best beillustrated by George N. Prink who was
elected to the board of education in the Capital Park
District in 1898. Hewas chosen president in 1901 by the
membersof theboard and held that position for three

consecutiveyears. Heworked diligently at getting the PR L, 0
Capital Park System operated so that they could be ac-
credited by NCA. Hebrought in winning coachessincethe
gameof football wasafairly new one. Heworkedfaith-
fully for theinterest of the Capital Park Schoolsand the
affluent areathat it represented. He promoted the sentiment
againgt consolidation withthe East DesMoinesPublic
Schoolsand sought to maintain astrong, vigorous, aca-
demic school system. The school yearbooksfrom Capital
Park were dedicated to President George N. Frink which
indicated that the students, and faculty appreciated his
dynamicleadership.

Henry Babin Behoal,
§th and Colleps
Grant Park School District

Grant Park School District waslocated in the Grant Park
subdivision at the eastern edge of the urban areaof Des
Moines. Grant Park School waslocated at 30th and Dean
onthepresent siteof Willard School. Theoriginal building
which housed the high school unitispictured below, There
were several other small school unitsthat fedintothisarea
ontheeast sde. We have pictured heretheoriginal Grant
Park School which faced east at thetime. (Pleaserecall that
the present viaduct along the eastern edge of theWillard

Saylar,

School groundswas not constructed until much later.) Euclid and Cambridge

Theyear of consolidation (1907) of some 20 school dis-
trictsto form the Independent Community School District of
DesMoaines, saw theinclusion of the Grant Park High
School Didtrict. The Grant Park building that ispictured was
continued asaK-8 unit after the consolidation. A
disasterousfire broke out on December 14, 1923, and

Page23



Brott School.
3. E. i%th and Maury

Slinkor School.
15th and Cenler

Summit Schoal.

2lal Sireal Balween Foreal and Clark

.
Loy

dil gL ..'--ﬁ-ﬂl'-’_.'zﬂ‘__

d l-iJ:-I'. ! sl li {h

Noah Webster School.
E. 12th and Liyon Streat

burned most of the origina Grant Park building. How-
ever, thefiremen were ableto save part of theeastern
portionsof that building. Part of thefirst floor of the
origina structureisnow incorporated inthe present
Willard School. It may beidentified onthefirst floor as
thelunchroom spacethat isnow used by elementary
school children. At onetimeit wasasmal gymnasumin
theold Grant Park high school unit. It wasregrettable
that thefirein 1923 destroyed al of therecordsinthe
building. Very littleexiststoday to givethehistory of this
area. Asof thisdate, we cannot find that any high school
annua was published by the Grant Park High Schooal.
These old annual sthat have been found for some of the
other high schools had proved to be aval uable source of
dataconcerning thelife, time, and school offeringsof the
older high school units. When suchannuasexigt, itis
suggested that individua scontact theadministration
officeat 1800 Grand in DesMoineswith thisass stance.
It wasalong theselinesthat in February, 1975, wewere
finaly ableto get apictureof theorigina Grant Park
building through the courtesy of one of the graduates of
thehigh school who had thisamong her memorabilia. All
such contributionsaregratefully acknowledged.

North DesMoines School Didtrict

Thegrowth of thecity to the north ultimately required a
North DesMoines School District to beformed. This
wasorganizedin 1875in the Forest HomeBuilding at
13th and Forest. Ultimately therewerefivebuildings.
Forest Home School heldinthetop floorsthe beginnings
of North High School beforeit wasmoved to anew
building at 7th and College. Other school housesin-
cluded Lake Park School, later renamed Clarkson
School at 6th and Boston; Oakland School, 5th and
College, later thiswasrenamed Sabin School; Sumniit
School onthewest side of 21st between Forest and
Clark. Summit waslater renamed Given School andtorn
downinthe 1930s. The motto of the North DesMoines
High School in 1898 wasindicative of their feeling-
"Thirdinsze, secondto none.” A new high school
building for the senior high school was occupiedin 1896.
Thisred brick structurelocated at 7thand Collegeis
pictured below. In passing, it ispointed out that thefirst
principal of North High School wasMissLouise
Patterson and the last woman principal who sat at the
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principd’sdesk wasMissAmeiaMortonin 1905. (Historical I
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TheNorth DesMoinesDistrict cameinto thegreater Inde-
pendent School District of DesMoinesin 1907 along with
theothers.

Oak Park School System

Continuing on to the north was another independent school
district -the Oak Park Independent School. Thisdistrict
included, in 1864, what isnow Capital Park, Canary Lake,
and Center districts. Owing to thetrouble over thelocation of R s
anew school house, it wasdivided into the above named 15th and Center
Independent Schooal Districts. The Center District becoming
known asthe Oak Park School District. The school house
that was erected at 6th and Madison wasaK-12 unit. The
origina construction cost $10,000 and had additionswithin
the next few years. Itisinteresting to notethat Mr. Z. C.
Thornburg was el ected superintendent of Oak Park School
District in 1894. Hea so had been superintendent of the

Capital Park High School District and was|ater to serveas ; Ejj .ji -n. Il aﬂg

¥ ] [.. F - --. Tg i
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12

superintendent of the Des M oines|ndependent School
Didrict.

Theoriginal Oak Park School building ispictured below. The East Woodlawn Schoal.

third floor that housed the high school and thetower were TE W SARR, S S0

removed inthe 1930s. Asthishistory isbeing written there
havebeen structural problemswiththeoriginal building and
the present indications are that the old section of oak park
might betorn downin 1976.

Need for Merger

Indoing research for thisBicentennial history onefinds
remarksabout theinefficiency of running many small indepen-
dent school districts. Therewas debate asto the efficiency of
these separate units. However, otherspointed out that the
boardsact “ much moreintelligently, not alwaysmuch more Nopicturesavailableof:
wisaly, however, than boardswhoseinformation comesto

them from other than personal acquaintances-the patrons of L ower Agency School

(small) schoolsare ableto assert their rightsmuch more easily E‘ um Goéghscrl‘cz?' ; SO‘)JT;’V? ':()ﬁ:s M c;(ipes
thanin alarge system of schools.” awson SChool {Trame) 4rd and Frankiing
*= Sand Hill School, S.W.

: . corner Grandview Park
However, others pointed out some of the disadvantages of Walnut School, 49th and Grand

small school units. They countered “thereisagreat |oss of West Woodlawn School. Beaver and Madison
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supervisory talent. For example, asupervisor of kindergartens could give attention to 30 school s about as
well asto 15. At onetimeWest DesMoines paid $1,200 for the supervision of eight kindergartensand
North DesMoines paid $900 for the supervision of four kindergartens. Now, it seemsthat one supervisor
could attended to the 12 school sand thus saving alarge amount of money.” Theargument continued that the
samethingscould be said of the supervisorsof music, drawing, physical culture, and primary work.

They continued to arguethat the city wasnot too largefor al of theteachersto assembleinagradeor
generd teachers meeting yet they pointed out that five superintendentswere employed. They pointed out
that present arrangementsl|ed to needlessmulltiplication of high school unitsand therewasno reason for
morethan threeor four high schoolsin DesMoines, rather than the six or seven doing high school work in
early 1900's. They further pointed out that the high school sin the distant suburbswere cut off from all
contact with supervisorsand yet werewithin easy accessof theteachers meetingsinthecity.

Oakdale School Didtrict

Oakdalewas aseparate school district inthe northwest part of DesMoines. Thefirst buildingwasalog
school house at the corner of 30th and Hickman near the site of the present M onroe el ementary school. The
next school housewas one 16 x 18 and built on Beaver Avenue. Further additionsin the Oakdal e School
Digtrict included building of abuildingin the north- west part of thedistrict named Pleasant Hill.

Themain buildingsinthe Oakdale District were Elmwood School at 31st and University and Kirkwood
School at 27th and Clark. Rawson at 43rd and Franklin was another building designed for lower grades.
Theestablishment of Drake University in 1885 wasagreat stimulusto the Oakdale Digtrict and the many
homesbuilt inthisdistrict required additionsto the various school facilities.

Greenwood Park School

A separate school district and asmall one wasthe Greenwood Park School |ocated onWest Grand. A
pictureof thesmall buildingisgiven. Very littleisknown about the early history.

Jordan School wasaframe structure near the present Merrill Jr. High School.
Curridum

Beginningin 1870 and continually through the 1970’ sthereisacontinuousadding to the curriculum. New
courses are added; othersare changed, modified or dropped. Here are some highlights of some of the
additionsof coursesto thehigh school curriculum.

Variousé€ ectivesand new subjectsadded to the curriculum

1870 - Geology

Drawing (an electivefor botany)

Mora Philosophy - an el ectivefor astronomy
1871 - Moral Science

Nationa History
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Paliticd Economy

Rhetoric- aneectivefor chemistry

Bookkeeping - an electivefor botany

Ancient History - an electivefor astronomy
1873 - Elocution

Physiology

Physicd Geography

Scienceof Government General History Caesar

EnglishLiterature

Virgl

Menta Philosophy Advanced Algebra
1875 - Zoology

Higher arithmetic
1879 - 1880 Cicero

English Compodtion
1880 wasthefirst year that ateacher of businesswas made aregular member of the high school
core of teachers. At thistime Mr. Clay Slinker was engaged to teach bus ness subjects-drawing,
penmanship, physiology and civil government. Tofill in hissparemomentshetaught club swinging,
fencing, etc.
1882 - Science becamean electivefor the Latin course

Bookkeeping was asecond el ective and students wishing to take the subject wererequired

to remain after theregular school hoursin order totakeit and al soto pay extratuition.

1884 - 1885 German was an el ectivefor Virgil and Cicero

American Literatureand commercid arithmeticwerea so eectives. Physics

Etymology Greek

French

Ancient Geography

lliad
1884 - Kindergarten established in DesMoines

Inthefall of 1886 Mr. J. M. Meham, instructor in abusiness collegein DesMoines, was

engaged to cometo West Highto giveinstruction in bookkeeping.

1888 - Solid Geometry

Stenography

Commercial Geography - An elective- banking
1888 - Physical culture classesestablished (forerunner of PE.)
1889 - Drawing classes established (art)
In 1889, Mr. Clay Slinker with the cooperation of Mr. C. S. Dahlburg introduced shorthand and
typewriting. West High School wasthefirst high school inthe country to establish permanently a
coursein shorthand and typewriting. Domestic sciencewasfirst placed inthe curriculumin 1889.
Mr. and Mrs. R. H. Miller of the Toledo Public School were employed by the Board of Education
tointroducetheir new methods. Domestic science became so popular that boyswere admitted to
thisdepartment.
1890 - Manua Training classesestablished 1891 - English History
1892 - Music classesbegan
1893 - 1894 Office Practice and Bookkeeping Advanced Stenography
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1896 - Modern and Medieval History

1897 Advanced Shorthand and Advanced Typewriting 1897 - East Des M oines School s Voted
freetextbooks

1899 -West Des Moines Schoolsvoted free textbooks. Freetextsare voted by the people and
can be changed only by vote of the people.

1901 - College Preparatory Course based on L atin was offered and Greek was discontinued.

1901 - Stone part of West High was added. 1905 - A requirement was made that all students

must take English each year in high school. The Latin Department enrollment showed that over

50% of the studentstook L atin. Musi ¢ was conducted on amore systematic basisand was

counted asaregular recitation for which credit wasgiven. A coursein physical culturewasmore

completein 1905 than in previousyearssince their work had been expanded. Courses consisted

of running, work with dumbbellsand clubsand calisthenics. Thisdepartment a so gave both boys

andgirls gymnadtictraining.

1907 - Big consolidation resulted in the DesM oines | ndependent School District.

1909 - Business Organi zation based on the economics of businesswas added to the commercial
course,

1913- Clay Slinker, first director of BusinessEducationin U.S.

1913 - Office Practice and Shorthand and atwo-year coursein Business English were added.

1914 - Sdlesmanship

1914 - 1915 Normal training department was established. Classesin pedagogy weregiven.

1915 - OpenAir School (at old North High site)

1916 - Spanish was added to the curriculum, taking the place of German which wastaught inthe

schoolsup until thetime of the declaration of war with Germany.

Military training was given asacoursefor boys. The samecredit wasgivenfor thiscourseasfor

all other athletic courses. During WW!I two new subjectswere added to the commercial depart-

ment. Thesewereintens ve stenography and bookkeeping.

1917 - Telegraphy

1919 - School for Deaf (Clarkson) 1920 - School for Crippled

1920 - Origina Howe School for dow learners

1921 - Single salary schedule adopted

1922 - Detailed school budgetslaunched

1921 - 1927 - $6,630,00 bondsfor Roosevelt and Lincoln

1928 - $1,975 - teacher salary

Depression - $1,600-1,200 average salary

1925 - Junior high established (threeyear)

1925 - Sub-junior classesfor Slow learners

1930 - Developmental B classesfor dow learners 1930 - Annual testing program

1932 - High-School Day inaugurated (studentsin businessesand industries- an early form of
Career Education)

1932 - Home Economicscurriculum included coursein Family Relations

1933 - Public Forum Movement in U.S. Began by Henry Wallace, one of thefirst leadersbefore
hejoined President Roosevelt’scabinet.

1933 - Eight-year study to determine how important college requirementsfor high school courses
- 30 collegesand high schoolsinvolved.

1937 - Distributive Education established at North High.
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1940 - Office Co-op established at East High

1941 - Vocational Home Economicsintroduced into the secondary schools. 1941 - 42 - Tech High
established.

1947 - Senior high classesfor dow |learners.

1957 - September-Board authorizesaformal program for gifted studentsin two elementary
schoals.

1957 - Modern foreign languages avail able to 9th graders. 1957 - German reintroduced to curricu-
lum.

1957 - October 4 - Russian launched Sputnik 1.

1958 - Only teacherswith BA degreeshired in DesMoines Schools. Board officesmoved tofirst
floor of Tech Highfrom 629 Third Street.

1958 - Phonetic approach to reading introduced in seven e ementary schools.

1959 - Classesfor trainable (1Q under 50) established at Slinker School, 15th and Center.

1959 - Russianintroduced.

1959 - Food Servicesreorganized “ satellite” food service began.

1960 - Distributive Education extended to al high schools.

1960 - Library philosophy changed to have central librariesand certified librariansin al secondary
schools. Plansmadefor elementary librarieswith aides.

1960 - Oneunit of scienceand one unit of mathematicsrequired for graduation.

1961- Notehand introduced in senior high.

1961 - Spanish availableto qudified 7th grade students.

1961 - Foreign languagelabs opened at Roosevelt and Lincoln. 1961 - Large classinstruction
beganingrades9-11-12.

1962 - Threetrack system adopted for al students, grades 7-12, in English and Socia Studies. The

trackswerelabeled ‘ basic, general, and advanced.” 1962 - Board approved public acknowledg-

ment of studentsfinishing inthetop 3% and top 15% of each graduating class. Specia

superintendent’ sawards al o were presented to studentsfor exceptiona work in certainfields.

1962 - Spanish, acompulsory coursefor 6th grade students, introduced as part of educational
televisonviaKDPS-TV.

1962 - Four areaelementary bandsand an all-city senior high band organized since 1957.

1962 - Languagelab at East High Schoal.

1962 - a50% student increasein senior high foreign language from 1957-1962.

1963 - All elementary school s use the phonetic approach to reading.

1965 - Federal Programslaunched-ESEA, Title1, 11, 111.

1966 - Head Start pre-school program launched by Federal government.

1970 - Office Education extended to al high schools.

1970 - Dropped tracking (Advanced, general, basic) in 9-12.

1972 - Dropped one-year requirement of mathematicsand oneyear of sciencein grades9-12 for
graduation

1972 - Career Education coordinator appointed

1974 - Vocationa agribusinessprogram started at Tech High and McCombs Junior High
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1864 - High School Course of Study

The very first course which was offered in the school consisted of

Grade D-
Reading
Definitions
Arithmetic
Geography
Grammar
U. S. History
Penmanship
Declamation
Composition
Singing
Grade B-
Algebra
Geometry
Natural Philosophy
Latin
Botany

First term
Bookkeeping
Arithmetic
Penmanship
Rhetoric
Physiology

Commercial Arithmetic
Commercia  Law
Algebra

Penmanship

American Literature

First term
Physiology
Algebra
German
Rhetoric

Plane Geometry
German

Botany
American Literature

Bookkeeping
German

General History
Chemistry
Etymology

Physics
English Grammar
English Literature
Rhetoric
Commercial Law

Grade C-

Spelling
Reading
Definitions
Arithmetic
Grammar
Algebra
Penmanship
Declamation
Composition
Singing

Grade A-

Trigonometry
Astronomy

Latin

Surveying Composition
Composition Rhetoric

1888 - High School Curriculum

BUSINESS COURSE
First Year

Second term

Bookkeeping
Arithmetic

Penmanship

Rhetoric

Physiology

Second Year
Commercial Arithmetic
Commercial Law
Algebra
Penmanship
Physical Geography

ENGLISH COURSE

First Year

Second term
Physiology
Algebra
German
Rhetoric

Second Year

Plane Geometry
German

Physical Geography
American Literature

Third Year
Bookkeeping
German
General History
Chemistry
Zoology

Fourth Year
Physics
Geology
English Literature
English History

Commercial Law
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Third term
Bookkeeping
Arithmetic
Penmanship
Rhetoric
Civil Government

Commercial Arithmetic
Commercial Law
Algebra

Penmanship

Physical Geography

Third term
Botany
Algebra
German
Rhetoric

Solid Geometry
Trigonometry
German

Physical Geography
American Literature

Bookkeeping
German

Civil Government
Chemistry
Zoology

Physics

Geology

English Literature
Arithmetic Review
Commercial Law



First term
Algebra
Rhetoric
Physiology

Geometry
Botany
Latin
German

Chemistry
Etymology
Generad  History
Latin

German

Physics
Latin
German
English  Grammar
English  Literature

First term
Latin
Physiology
Rhetoric

Latin
Algebra
Botany

Latin
Geometry
General History
German

Latin

German

English  Literature
Physics

Rhetoric

Algebra Review
English Grammar

First term
Latin
Algebra
Physiology

Caesar
Geometry
Greek

Ancient History

Cicero

Anabasis

Higher Algebra
French

German

Virgil

lliad

Algebra Review
French

German

SCIENTIFIC COURSE

First Year
Second term
Algebra
Rhetoric
Physiology

Second Year
Geometry
Physical Geography
Latin
German

Third Year
Chemistry
Zoology
General History
Latin
German

Fourth Year
Physics
Latin
German
Geology
English Literature

LATIN COURSE

First Year
Second term
Latin
Physiology
Rhetoric

Second Year
Latin
Algebra
Physical Geography

Third Year
Latin
Geometry
General History
German

Fourth Year
Latin
German
English literature
Physics

Geometry Review
English History

First year
Second term

Latin
Algebra
Physiology

Second Year
Caesar
Geometry
Greek
Ancient Geography

Third Year
Cicero
Anabasis

Higher Algebra & Geometry
French
German
Fourth Year
Virgil
lliad
Geometry Review
French
German
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Third term
Algebra
Rhetoric
Botany

Geometry
Physical Geography
Latin

German

Chemistry
Zoology
Civil Government
Latin

German

Physics

Latin

German

Geology

English Literature

Third term
Latin
Botany
Rhetoric

Latin
Algebra
Physical Geography

Latin

Geometry

Trikronometry

Civi.l Government German

Latin

German

English Uterature
Physics
Arithmetic Review
Trigonometry

CLASSICAL COURSE (Preparatory for College)

Third term
Latin
Algebra
Botany

Caesar, or Cicero
Greek

Ancient History
Ancient Geography

Cicero, or Virgil
Anabasis, or lliad
Higher Geometry
French

German

Latin Reviews
Greek- Reviews
Arithmetic Review
French

German



The Studies Offered in the DesMoinesHigh School s 1922-1923
The studies offered in the Des Moines high schools are arranged in groups of related subject. The table below
gives the semester and year in which each subject is offered and the group to which it belongs.

FIRST YEAR.
1% Semester Sem. Unit 2™ Semester Sem. Unit
ENGLISH English B 5 English E2 5
SOCIAL SCIENCE Com. Civic H1 5 Vocations H2 5
Am. History H1 5 Med. History H2 5
LANGUAGE Latin LI 5 Latin L2 5
French F1 5 French F2 5
MATHEMATICS Algebra Ml 5 Algebra M2 5
NATURAL SCI. Elem. Sci SC1 5 Elem. Sci. scC2 5
COMMERCIAL Bookkeeping. BK1 5 Bookkeeping BK2 5
HOME ECONOMICS HomeEconomics HE1 5 Home Economics HE2 5
INDUSTRIAL Cabinet Making MT1 5 Cabinet Making MT2 5
(East) Drawing & Furniture Design Drawing & Furniture Design
INDUSTRIAL Cabinet Making MT1 5 Cabinet Making MT2 5
(West and North) Drawing & Furniture Design Drawing & Furniture Design
MUSIC Chorus Singing Ch A Chorus Singing Ch A
GleeClub GC 1 GleeClub GC A
Band Ba 2 Band Ba 2
Orchestra Or 2 Orchestra Or 2
El. Theory Th 3 El. Theory Th 3
AppliedMusic Mu 3 AppliedMusic Mu 3
NORMAL TRAINING
ART Art Al 5 Art A2 5
Physical Education Phys. Education PEL 5 Phys. Education PE2 1

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES

A unit means five hours per week for one year of prepared work or ten hours per week of unprepared
work.

Three unitsin any one group constitute a major, two unitsin one group, aminor.

One major must bein the English Group. One unit of American History isrequired. A second year of
Socia Science which must be H7 and H8 after June, 1926, is also required. No credit toward graduation is
granted for one semester’s work in a subject which continues for afull year.

All work should be chosen after careful consideration. The advice of parents and teacher should be taken.

Pupils who are preparing for college should decide as early as possible upon the college they will attend in
order to follow the requirements for admission.
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ENGLISH
SOCIAL SCIENCE
LANGUAGE

MATHEMATICS
NATURAL SCI.

COMMERCIAL

HOMEECONOMICS
INDUSTRIAL
(East)

INDUSTRIAL
(West and North)
MUSIC

NORMAL TRAINING
ART
Physical Education

ENGLISH
SOCIAL SCIENCE
LANGUAGE

MATHEMATICS
NATURAL SCI.

COMMERCIAL

HOMEECONOMICS
INDUSTRIAL
(East)

1% Semester
English

Mod. Histroy
Latin

French
A.Geom.
Biology
Physiology
Bookkeeping
Shorthand
Typewriting
Home Economics
Forging

Mech. Draw
Printing

Wood Turning

Drawing & Furniture Design

Chorus Singing
GleeClub

Band
Orchestra
Harmony
Applied Music

Art
Phys. Education

1% Semester
English

Am. Histroy
Latin

French

Spanish

French

Algebra
Physics
HomeHygiene
Bookkeeping
Shorthand
Typewriting
Com'’| Geography
Home Economics
Cabinet Making
Wood Truning
Pattern Making
Moulding
Forging

Auto Mechanic
Mech. Drawing
Printing

SECONDYEAR

Sam.  Unit 2" Semester

B3 5 English

H3 5 Mod. History

L3 5 Latin

F3 5 French

M3 5 M. Geom.

3 5 Biology

3 5 Agriculture

Bk3 5 Bookkeeping

Shl 5 Shorthand

Tyl 25 Typewriting

HE3 5 Home Economics

MT3 5 Auto Mechanics
Mech. Draw
Printing

MT3 5 Wood Turning

Ch 1 Chorus Singing
cC 1 GleeClub
Ba 2 Band
O 2 Orchestra
Ha 3 Harmony
Mu 3 Applied Music
A3 5 Art
PE3 5 Phys. Education
THIRD YEAR
Sam.  Unit 2" Semester
B 5 English
H5 5 Am.History
L5 5 Latin
23] 5 French
Sl 5 Spanish
F1 5 French
M5 5 Solid Geometry
S5 5 Physics
5 5
Bk5 5 Bookkeeping
Sh3 5 Shorthand
Ty3 25 Typewriting
G 5 Com'’| Arithemetic
HES 5 Home Economics
5
5 Continuation of
5 fifth semester
5
5
5
5
5
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Bk4
Sh2
Ty2
HE4
MT4

MT4

Drawing & Furniture Design

Ch
C
Ba
O
Ha
Mu

A4
PE4

H6
L6

M6

Bk6
Ty4

HEG
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INDUSTRIAL

MUSC

NORMAL TRAINING
ART
Physical Education

ENGLISH

SOCIAL SCIENCE
LANGUAGE

MATHEMATICS
NATURAL SCI.
COMMERCIAL

HOMEECONOMICS
INDUSTRIAL

(East)

INDUSTRIAL

(North & West)
MUSIC

NORMAL TRAINING
ART

Cabinet Making
Wood Turning
Mech. Drawing
Chorus Singing
GleeClub

Band

Orchestra
Harmony

Hist. & Appre.
Applied Music
Rural Education
Art

Phys. Education

1% Semester
English
Journaism
Soc. Prob (Civics)
Latin
Spanish
French
Algebra
Chemistry
Bus.Org.
Con?'l Law

Bus. Eng.
Intensive Steno.
Intensive Bkkg

continuation of
sixth semester

Chorus Singing
GleeClub

Band
Orchestra
Harmony
Counterpoint
Hist. & Appre.
Applied Music
Review Arith.
Art

REQUIREMENTSFOR GRADUATION

2majors
2minors

2 years Physical Education .4 units

Electives

5
5
5
Ch 1
€3] 1 continuefifth
Ba 2 semester election
O 2
Ha 3
Ap 1
Mu 3
5 Elem. Psychology
A5 5 Art
PES 5 Phys. Education
FOURTH YEAR
Sem.  Unit 2" Semester
E7 5 English
J
H7 5 Soc. Prob (Econ.)
L7 5 Latin
3 5 Spanish
F3 5 French
M7 5 Trigonometry
Sc7 5 Chemistry
BO 5 Accounting
a 5 Salesmanship
OfficePractice
BEL 5 Business Eng.
IS 20 Intensive Steno.
IB 20 Intensive Bkkg.
continuation of
seventh semester
Ch 1
co 1
Ba 2
O 2
Ha 3
Co 2
Ap 1
Mu 3
5 Review Grammar
A7 5 Art

6 units
4 units

5.6 units
16 units
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Required Subjects

1. English Composition

2. Englist Literature

3. US History and Civics

4. Geography & Elementary Sci.
5. Arithmetic

6. Art

7. Music

8. Health

9. Home Economics (Girls)

10. Manual Training (Boys)

11. Home Hygiene (Girls)

12. Vocations

13. Algebra or BusinessArithmetic
14. Music or Art

1925

Requirementsfor Graduation

Junior High Schools
Thefollowing isthe schedule of subjects offered in the junior high schools. (7th, 8th and 9th grades).

Choose any two from the following subjectsin the 9th grade:

15. Business Training and Penmanship
16. Latin

17. Genera Science

18. Ancient and Medieval History

9th Grade 10th Grade
English 1(E English
Englich 2(E2) English
9th Grade 10th Grade
Latin I (LI) Latin

Latin 2(L2) Latin
German 1(GI) German
German 2(G2) German

Group No. Periods& Per Week

Sym 7B A 8B

EC 5 5 5

Lit. 25 25 25

H 5 5 5

G 5 5

M 5

A 25 25

Mu 25

PE 5 5 5

HE 5 5 5

MT 5 5 5

HH

Voc

M or BA

Mu or A

B Tr

L1&2

Scl&2

H1&2

ENGLISH

11th Grade

3(E3) English 5 (E5)

4 (E4) English 6 (E6)

LANGUAGE

11th Grade

3(L3) Latin 5(L5)

4(L4) Latin 6 (L6)

3(G3) German  5(Gb)

4(G4) German 6 (G6)
Spanish I (S1)
Spanish 2(S2)
French I (FI)
French 2(F2)
Swedish I (Swl)
Swedish 2 (Sw2)
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8A

5

9B 9A
5
5
25 25
5
5
5
5 5
25 25
5 5
5 5
5 5
5 5
12th Grade
English 7 (E7)
English 8 (ES8)
Review Grammar
Reading

Bus. Eng. (BEY7)
Bus. Eng. (BES)

12th Grade
Latin
Latin

7(L7)
8(L8)

Spanish 3 (V)
Spanish 4 ($4)
French 3 (F3)
French 4 (F4)
Swedish 3 (Sw3)
Swedish 4 (Sw4)



Sth Grade
Algebra
2(M2)

I (MI)
PlaneGeom. (M)

9th Grade
Anc. History (H1)
Anc. History (H2)

9th Grade
Gen. Science(Scl)
Gen. Science(Sc2)

9th Grade
Bookkeeping (Bk1)
Bookkeeping (Bk2)
Penmanship (pnl)
Penmanship (pn2)

9th Grade
MT1
MT2

9th Grade
Gymnasium 1
Gymnasium 2
Chorus 1
Chorus 2
Biblel
Bible2
Journalism 1
Journalism 2
Orchestra

MATHEMATICS

10th Grade 11th Grade

Plane Geom. (M3) Algebra 3(M,5)

SolidGeom. (M6) Trigonometry (M8)
SOCIAL SCIENCE

10th Grade 11th Grade

Med. History (H3)
Med. History (H4)
Gen. Higtory (GH1)
Gen.Higtory (GH2)

Economics(H5)
Eng. History (H6)
Commerica History

NATURAL SCIENCE

10th Grade

11th Grade

12th Grade
Algebra 4 (M7)Algebra

12th Grade

U.S. History (H7)
U.S.History (H8)
Civics

12th Grade

Botany (Sc3) Physics(Sch) Chemistry (Sc7)
Agriculture (Sc4) Physics(Sc6) Chemistry (Sc8)
Zoology (Sc3)
Physiology (Sc4)
COMMERCIAL SUBJECTS
10th Grade 11th Grade 12th Grade
Bookkeeping (Bk3) Shorthand (Sh3) Salesmanship
Bookkeeping (Bk4) Shorthand (Sh4) Bus. Organization
Shorthand (Sh1) Typewriting (Ty3) OfficePractice
Shorthand (Sh2) Typewriting (Ty4) Commerica Law
Typewriting (Ty1) Commerica Geography
Typewriting (Ty2) Commerica Arithmetic
MANUAL TRAINING SUBJECTS
10th Grade 11th Grade 12th Grade
MT3 MT5S
MT4 MT6
AL(*) A3(*) A5(*)
A2(*) A4() AB(*)
MISCELLANEOUSSUBJECTS
10th Grade 11th Grade 12th Grade
Orchestra 3 Orchestra 5 Orchestra 7
Orchestra 4 Orchestra 6Orchestra 8
Chorus 3 GleeClub 3 Gleeclib 5
Chorus 4 GleeClub 4 GleeClub 6
Glee Club | Chorus 5 Chorus 7
GleeClub2 Chorus 6 Chorus 8
Bible3 Bible5 Bible7
Bible4 Bible6 Bible8
Journaism3 Journalism5 Journalism7
Journaism4 Journalism 6 Journalism8

Swimming
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1925
SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL SUBJECTS BY GROUPS
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The Growth of DesMoines

Aswe canlook at the growth of the school district of DesMoinesand seehow it hasevolvedintoits
present single status from the consolidation of more than twenty separate districts, we must |ook at how
thecity of DesMoineshasgrown. I nthe accompanying map you can seetherel ative small spacethat
was encompassed inthecity of Ft. DesMoinesin 1853. In 1857, the boundaries are delineated and at
that timeit becamethecity of DesMoines.

Thecity wasfirstincorporated January 18, 1853, asthecity of Ft. DesMoines. On March 7,1857,
the city of DesMoineswas organized and the city limitsextended, giving the city an areaof 8 square
miles. Thischange can be seen onthemap. The populationin 1857 was approximately 4,000.

AsDesMoines continued to grow, anumber of incorporated townsand cities began to surround the
coreareaof downtown DesMoines. Theseincluded University Place, Greenwood Park, Sevastapol,
Gilbert, Capitol Park, Grant Park, Easton Place, and North DesMoines. It isinteresting that neither
Highland Park nor Oak Park wereincorporated. All of theseincorporated areasvoted in 1889to
mergeintothecity of DesMoines. Thiswasalarge consolidation moveand thecity limitsremained
fixedfor the next 60 years.

Earlier inthebooklet the consolidation process of the school district wasset out in detail. The
accompanying mapwill help givesomeideaof theareasinvolved.

Thecity annexed, on June 2, 1955, the Des Moines Municipal Airport which was outsde of thecity
limitsin Bloomfield Township. Thisaction wastaken asadefensive measure sincethere had been some
discussion on the part of Bloomfield Township’sresidentsto incorporate as‘ Rose City’ and of course
toincludetheairport. The Bloomfield Township areawasincorporated into thecity later in 1955. In
1976 thecity incorporates about 64 square milesand the school district haswithinitslimitsapproxi-
mately 84 squaremiles.

Asasidelight onschool district mergerswithin Polk County itis pointed out that therewere 52
separate school districtsin 1952. The steady decline of themany rura school districtsacrossthe county
assisted inthe merger of many of thesedistricts. In 1962 therewasatotal of 27 separate school dis-
trictsand thiswasreduced to 15 by action of the Polk County school board.

Thereorganization of anumber of school districtsto form the Southeast Polk district aswell asthose

toformtheNorth Polk district aswell as certain other mergerssuch asthe Clive school district merging
withthe West DesMoinesschool district resulted in further reduction.
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ADAMSSCHOOL GradesK-5
East 29th and Douglas
Site-4.1 acres

Thefirst Adams School waslocated at East 27th and
Douglas. Thisthree room wooden building wasmoved to the
present site and subsequent constructionislisted above. This
school was named for John Quincy Adams.

A complete history of Adams School, teachers, principals,
P.T.A. officersand minutesof PT.A. meetings has been
compiled and isin abound book at Adams School. Thisbook
containspicturesof the buildings, teachers, pupilsand PTA.
officers. It a so contains many newspaper clippingsincluding an
obituary of Mr. Jordan, theprincipal who diedin 1937.

PT.A. minutesrecord that at the September meetingin
1937, “about 40 were present and very sad, asMr. Jordan, our
principal for twenty yearswasvery ill inthe hospital . Flowers
werevoted to be sent him.” Then at the October meeting the
following notation was made; “ October 13 about 49 members
met in theevening for our regular meeting. Memberswere
very sad as Mr. Jordan had passed away.”

The obituary of Mr. Jordan statesthat at onetime he had
charge of thefollowing ten schools: Perkins, Adams, Barton,
Bly, Jefferson, Monroe, Riley, Windsor, Douglasand Meredith.
Morerecently hewas principal of agroup of fiveschools
includingAdams.

When thefirst frame building wasopened in 1917 there
weretwo teachers, MissMarguerite Hanke and Miss
Genevieve Schultz. Mr. J. 0. Mitchell was principal

Inthefirst brick building builtin 1924 therewerefour
rooms, in addition to aframebuilding. The enrollment was 183.
Mr. W. L. Jordan was principal. From then through two
additionsto the original four rooms. Adamshas continued to
grow and expand. Through these many yearsmore and more
new homes have been built each producing boysand girlsto be
educated. As mentioned above, more detailed history of Adams
will befound inthe bound book kept inthe school office.

In 1971 an addition of two roomswas added to the west
wing of thebuilding. Thiscost was$57,000. New housing
developments have enabled Adamsto keep asubstantial
enrollment in contrast to the declining popul ation in many
schoals.
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Datesof construction-
-1917 framebuilding (3 rooms)
1924 first wing of present building
1951 first addition
1961 second addition
1971 addition of 2 classrooms

Principalsof Adams School -
1917-1919J. 0. Mitchdll
1919-1937 W. Lee Jordan
1937-1939 EdnalL. E. Petersen
1939-1944 Ruth Pritchard
1944-1945 AlmedaNe son
1945-1964 Edith Patterson
1964- Mildred Shay



Brooks

Datesof constructional
--1909 One half
1914 First addition
1925 Second addition
1975—New gymnasium

Principal sof Brooks School-
1910 - 1913 Mr. Warren
1913-1918J. 0. Mitchell
1918 - 1937 Minnie Wal ker
1937 - 1939 James B.
1939 - 1957 Clarence 1. Pease
1957 - 1964 Frances Meneough
1964 - 1968 Harry Elder
1968 - 1974 Donad Williams
1974-  Marly Davis

BROOKS SCHOOL GradesK-6
East 21st & DesMoines St.
Site-3.6 acres

Brooks School wasnamed for Dr. ThomasK. Brooks.
Dr. Brookswasthefirst physician and postmaster in Des
Moines. Helived near BrooksL ake, and it was hisearnest
desirethat the county seat of Polk County would be
located near the present site of Brooks School.

The 1970’ spresented achallengeto Brooks School to
changetheforemat of the educationa programin order to
more nearly meet the academic needs of eachindividua
student.

In 1971, anindividualized approachtolearningwas
begunin the upper grades. Children of grades4-5-6 were
mixed and thusan ungraded program was begun. With this
concept, achild could progressasfast asheisableinthe
areaseasiest for him and till takethetime heneedsin
areashefindsmoredifficult. Upper unit teachers special-
izedin areas of their teaching strengths and devel oped a
totally departmentalized program. The devel opment of
behavioral objectivesand the concept of teaching to them
became areality and abasic part of the program.

In 1972, Brooks became officially oneof thethirteen
| GE schoolsinthedistrict and our goasfor anindividual-
ized approach for teaching children were enhanced. The
school wasdivided into four unitsand ateam leader for
each unit was appointed. Children were assigned to units
rather than grades and thetotal school became dedicated
to meeting the needs of each child.

Our program has since then progressed and now
includesasapart of every subject, Career Education.
During the 1974-75 year wewere able not only to combine
career education with all subject areasbut in addition to
provideactua learning experiencesthat afforded the
children away *to actually see how the skillsthey were
learning in school would beanecessity for operatinginthe
world of work.

The Brooksprogram isconcerned with not only indi-
vidualization but al so with the humanizing influence.
Activitieswhich promote positive human rel ationshipshave
becomean integral part of the over all plan.

Titlel Reading and Math program beganin September
1973.1n 1975, two Learning Disability self contained
classroomswere added aswell asone L earning Disability
resourceroom. On March 4, 1975 the Board of Education
awarded abid to Jorge Construction Company for $74,000
for aphysical education facility addition at Brooks Elemen-
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tary School. Thetotal of the other contractsfor mechanical
and electrical brought thetotal construction cost to $105,4009.
Thisaddition made possibleaful| gymnasiumfacility for
Brooks School and eliminated the need for the use of the small
gymnasiumthat had originally been apart of the old building.

CASADY SCHOOL GradesK-6
16th Street and Jefferson
Site-4.2 acres

Thisbuilding honorsthe memory of Phineas M. Casady
who was appointed postmaster in 1847 by President Polk. At
thistime, the name of the post office was changed from -
"Raccoon Forks’ to “ Fort DesMoines.” Therewere 31
houses, 23 familiesand 107 peoplein residenceinthetown.

Mr. Casady wasalawyer, state senator in the Second
General Assembly, school fund commissioner for lowaand a
banker. Helived to be 92 years old and was one of thegrand
men of lowa.

The south end of the school building wasbuiltin 1905.
Therewerethree more classroomsin theorigina Casady
School than inthe present south section. The southwest corner
of the building wastorn down becauseit was sinking and thus
tilting therest of the structure. The sinking was attributed to
either quick sand or aformer coal mineinthevicinity. Anold
report statesthat there were ten teachers when Casady
opened in 1905. The neighborhood wasan ‘ elite’ areaat that
time.

In February, 1948, Casady suffered an extensivefireinthe
south wing. At thetime workmen wereremodeling thetoil ets.
Thefirewasfirst noticed when it became dark enough for the
neighborsto seethereflections of theflames. The south part
had to be completely rebuilt.

The newest section to the north was opened for classesin
January, 1953. Thevery latest ideasin construction were
incorporated into thisaddition. Television classeswereaddedin
the 1960’s. In 1965 a hot lunch program was begun.

Casady inthemid-1970’shad an underdepartmentalized
program, Thisistheonly school inthe system participatingin
the U.S. Office of Education’s Right to Read Program that
beganin 1972-73. Thehighlight of that year wasthevisit by
Mrs. PatriciaNixon, wife of the President. Her visit was
preceded by the usual secret serviceinspection of the building
and the posting of guardsat all entrancesand on the roof
duringtheofficial visit of thefirst lady to thiselementary
school. Mrs. Nixon had taken apersonal interest inthe Right to
Read program that isrun nationally.
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Datesof constructional
1905 One-third
1926 One-ninth
1953 Five-ninths

Principalsof Casady School-

1905 - 1914 ClaraFunston
1914 - 1945 Gertrude Murphy
1945 - 1952 AlmedaNelson
1952 - 1959 Kathryn Christian
1959 - 1961 Sarah Page
1961 - 1964 Ronald Sterrett
1964 - 1967 Danidl Priest
1967 - 1971 James Pierson
1971 - 1972 Dale Jacobus
1972 - 1973 JamesMitchell
1973- Robert Hyde



Cattall

Datesof construction-
1980 Two-ninths
1910 Two-ninths
1915 Two-ninths
1925 Three-Ninths

Principasof Cattell School-
1894 - 1898 Mae Koker
1898- 1906 Minnie Guthrie
1906 - 1908 Belle Swope
1908 - 1924 LauraR. Moiiltoii
1924- 1933 Mabel A. Otis
1933- 1945 AnnaStohigren
1946 - 1963 Ednal. E. Petersen
1963 - 1967 Jack Gibbons
1967 - 1972 James Reese
1972 - 1975 Don Shaw

CATTELL SCHOOL GradesK-6
East 12th and Hull
Site- 2.1 acres

Cattell School bearsthe name of Jonathan Wright Cattell
who wasall outstanding pioneer of early DesMoinesdays.
Prior to 1909, Cattell School wasknown as Grand View
Grade School.

Mr. Cattell wasbornin Pennsylvaniaand lived there until
about twenty years of age. Hemarried and moved to the
Territory of lowaabout 1845, settlingin Cedar County. He
wasastate senator from that county and quite an active
legidator.

In 1858 hewaselected auditor of lowa. Inregardto his
election, the State Register says: “ It wasafortunate thing for
lowathat aman of hisRoman simplicity, Spartan courage and
inflexible honesty that arose above every temptation wasin
that position at that particular time.” Heintroduced improve-
mentsinto the manner of conducting monetary transactions of
the state aswell asin the system of bookkeeping. During his
incumbency, which covered theentirecivil war era, the
expenditureswere very heavy and thework greater than ever
before. Twice he wasre-elected to the office.

Whileamember of the General Assembly, Jonathan Cattell
and other State House officialsand citizens sponsored a
school at East Ninth and Des M oines Streets. It wasa
community later served by Bryant School. Though built and
supported by private contributions, therewasnointention of
making it aprivate school. When two colored children were
admitted, thewealthiest contributor withdrew hischildrenas
well ashiscontributions. Mr. Cattell and othersdoubled their
payments and the school went on. Hewas one of thefirst
menin DesMoinesto support minority groupsby insisting on
equa educational opportunity for al.

After hisretirement, Mr. Cattell remained aresident of the
city and for ashort timewasout of political life. In. 1866 he
was nominated by the Republicans of Polk County astheir
representative in the State Senate. He served two terms and
againretired from public office. However in 1885 hewas
appointed by Governor Sherman asauditor of the state, tofill
out aterm. Physically Mr. Cattell resembled Abraham Lin-
coln.

In 1967, the School District began purchasing, for future
needs, the properties north of the present school grounds--
north to Tiffin between East 12th and East 13th. All but one
property hasbeen purchased.

To support and enrich astrong basic skillsprogram, the
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following areasare noted:

1. A phonetic approach to reading continuesto beusedin the primary grades.

2. A career education program, integrated with the curriculum areas, wasimplemented.

3. Therehasbeen emphasison the use of supplementary materialsand instructional mediamaterialsand
equipment. Theauditorium isbeing converted to amediacenter.

4. There hasbeen assistance from resource and support personnel. The most recent programs have been

intheareasof reading and learning disabilities.

5. Cooperative planning and teaching to meet the needs of individuals.

To enhancethe” Community School” concept, thefollowing areashave been utilized:

School-Community Council

Working relationship with Grandview College.

aghhwpdpE

Involvement of community inthe Career Education Program.

Classesfor children and adultsthrough the district’s Community Education Department.
Recreation program sponsored by the City Parks and Recreation Department.

Inthemid-1970's Cattell had adepartmentalized primary unit with agrade 4-6 modified six-unit program

for the older students.

COWLESSCHOOL GradesK-6
64th and College
Site-9.3 acres

Thisbuilding was named in honor of Florence Call Cowles,
wifeof Gardner Cowles, Sr., and mother of Gardner Cowles,
Jr. owner of the DesMoines Register & Tribune, LOOK
magazine, and KRNT radio and television stations.

The primary wing of kindergarten, Six primary roomsand
an all-purpose room was opened September, 1958 with 200
pupils. Thewing of ten class- rooms, art room, library, and
gymnasium was opened in September, 1961. Thetotal cost
for both wingswas $622,483.

Gradeskindergarten through thirdfilled the building from
1958 until 1961 when gradesfour through six wereincluded.
In 1963 some 250 pupilsfrom the DebraHeightsareawere
bussed to Cowles and remained there until June, 1965 when
Samuel son was opened.

Cowles School wasoneof theorigina suburban buildings
to beareceiving school under the Equal Education Opportu-
nity volunteer transfer program. Black studentsfromthe
inner-city schoolsof Moulton and Nash had el ected to attend
Cowlesinstead of their [ocal attendance unit. Inthemid-
1970’ sthisbuilding aso hastwo learning disabilitiessatellite
groupsaswell asaspecial assistancefor thevisually im-
paired students.

In addition to theregular educational program thedirector
of library serviceshashisofficeinthisbuilding alongwith
two roomsused by the catal oging division of the school
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Cowles

Principasof Cowles School-
1958 - 1960 AlmedaNelson
1960 - 1963 Jeaii McClintic
1963 - 1972 Lorene Lightfoot
1972 - 1975 Tom Stokes
1975-  Lester Rees



system. Yet another roomisused by the music education divisionto storeand circulatethemusicto al
elementary and secondary schools. Cowlesa so housesthe elementary consultants and the student teaching
supervisor fromthe University of Northern lowa. Beginning in Sept. 1975, Cowlesand Elmwood will be
paired and sharethe same principal.

Progress of Cowles School duringthe 1970's.

Community and parental involvement have been emphasized in recent years. An average of 50 parents
volunteer their servicesweekly to helpindividual students, do clerical work, operatethe*open” library, and be
of assistance where needed. Over 100 parentsvolunteer to assist during the annual CowlesTrack Mest; an
extravaganzathat features both track and field events.

Community education classes are offered for both parents and students. From 6 to 8 courses are offered
each session to meet the requested desires of the community.

Career Education wasimplemented as part of the curriculumin 1973. Studentsin grades K-6 have been
involved invarious career related projectsand haveinterviewed most parentsregarding their chosen profes-
son.

Music educationisanintegral part of theregular school curriculum with over 70% of all 4-6 grade students
involved with private or group lessons.

Cowleswasapilot school for the Waupum project. This project screens, evaluates and placesall Kinder-
garten students so the teacher can best meet theindividual needs, devel oping the weaker areas and enhancing
the strong.

School spirit was enlivened through the selection of school colors, song and mascot. An active student
council pursues student interestsand desires. ThisK-6 organizationisin the process of compl eting astudent
center.

o DOUGLASSCHOOL GradesK-5
East 38th and Douglas
Site-5.7Acres

Douglas school was named because of itslocation on
DouglasAvenue. Thefirst PT.A. wasorganized in 1912,
Douglaswasasmall primary unit for many years. Gradually

-~ theempty farmland was subdivided by home devel opers.
Dougias Booming housing devel opmentsmadeit necessary tobuilda
15 roomadditionin 1964 at acost of $506,958.00. Beforethe
addition was completed many children were bussed to

Datesof constrtion --

1910 Threerooms Longfellow School for severa years.
1920 Threerooms o .
1965Sixtean room When the addition was completed and ready for usein
xteenrooms August 1965, the enrollment had grown so much therewere
. 160 Kindergarten children- 40 childrenin each sessonwhich
Principasof Douglas School

necessitated hiring 2 full timeteacher associates, andit was

1911 - 1915 Ann Howland necessary to have 5 - 1st grade classrooms of 34 each.

1915-1916 Mr. Evralls In 1967, Hoyt Elementary school wasbuilt asaPrimary
1916 - 1919 AliceWhite School. Thishel ped alleviate some of thelarge sized classesfor
1919 - 1937 W. Lee Jordon several years.

1937 - 1939 Edna Petersen In 1972 Hoyt was changed to aMiddle school so thesixth
1939 - 1944 Ruth Pritchard gradersfrom Douglas could attend there, that made Douglasa
1944 - 1946 Almeda Nelson K - 5school.

1946 - 1954 Edith Patterson
1954 - 1958 LorraineKimball Reed
1958 - 1964 JamesE. Wise
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DUNLAPSCHOOL GradesK-6
S.E. 11th Street and Railroad Ave.
Site-2.5 acres

Dunlap School was constructed in 1952 as areplacement for
theold Curtis School located at S.E. 6th and Raccoon, and for
Benton School, aframebuilding at S.E. 12th and Shaw.
Benton wasrazed in 1963 and the site has been sold. Curtis
was put on theinactivelist sinceit wasarelic of the old East
DesMoines School District having been builtin 1874. The
Curtis School and sitewere soldin 1965.

The Dunlap School wasnamed in honor of FloraB. Dunlap
who wasaveteran socia worker in the southeast section of
DesMoines. Somehigh- lightsof MissDunlap’slifearegiven
below:

FloraDunlap wasborn February 27, 1872, inalog cabin on
the banks of Deer Creek near Circleville, Ohio, of early
American pioneer ancestry. She attended public schoolsin
Ohio and wasgraduated from Cincinnati Wes eyan College.

Dl ap

Past principa sof Dunlapinclude:
1952 - 1960 Florence Weisbrod
1960 - 1962 Pherrin Dowell
1962 - 1968 Patience Guthrie
1968 - 1971 Dale Jacobus
1971- Robert Langbehn

MissDunlap’sforty-year career in Des Moinesbegan in 1904 when she became director of Roadside
Settlement House, one of thefirst inthe country, located at Eighth and Mulberry Streets. Astheflood-ridden
south- east section of DesMoines cameto bethe city’sbiggest social and sanitation problem, the need for a
social settlement housein the areabecame apparent, so Miss Dunlap took theinitiativein planning anew
Roadsidebuilding at S. E. Seventh and Scott Streets.

For twenty years FloraDunlap served asdirector of Roadside. During World War | she served two years
with theWar Camp Community service—theU.S.O. of that time. Retiring asdirector of Roadsidein 1924,
she continued to serve on the board until leaving DesMoinesin 1943.

But FloraDunlap’sinterestswere much broader than her immediatejob at the settlement house. Her
influencewasgreat and beneficial to the community in thefields of education, women'’srights, palitics, and
public health. Her serviceto the community reflectsthiswideinfluence.

In 1909 she became a charter member of the board of the Public Health Nursing Association andin 1912
shewasthefirst woman to be el ected to the school board in DesMoines. During theyearsfrom 1913to0 1915
MissDunlap was president of the lowa Equal SuffrageAssociation and was|egidlative chairman of thelowa
Federation of Women’s Clubs. From 1919 to 1921 she served asthefirst president of the lowa L eague of
Women Voters. For ten years, from 1933 to 1943, shewasbusily engaged serving her community as chairman
of thewomen’sdivision of theWPA in lowa, and she a so served asamember of the Polk County Social
Welfare Board, again being thefirst woman to hold such aposition. She a so wasamember of the Community
Chest board of directorsfrom 1932 to 1938. In 1922 and again in 1940 she was president of the Polk County
Women’'s Democratic Club, and in 1936 she served asamember of astate committeeto study social welfare
legidation for lowa, and then worked on acommittee of fiveto draft social welfarebillsfor the state.

In 1943 Miss Dunlap returned to her girlhood homein Circleville, Ohio. OnAugust 26, 1952, death inter-
rupted her serviceto the people sheloved.

The FloraDunlap Elementary School, at S.E. Eleventh Street and Railroad Avenue, was compl eted before
her death.

Inthemid-1970's Dunlap elementary school hasthe undepartmentalized program. With the closing of Scott
elementary school at E. 25th and Maury, those youngsters are now brought by school busto Dunlap whichis
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Edmunds

Dateof constrution-1974

Principa sof Edmunds School include:
-1973-  Don Brubaker

their new attendance center. Inthe mid-1970's Dunlap hasthe
following compensatory programsfor students: Titlel Read-
ing, K-6; Titlel Math, K-4; Follow Through, K-3aswell as
Head Start classes. There are also classesfor the educable
mentally retarded. Dunlap isaschool inthe community action
program that involvesagreat deal of participation by parents
in after-school activities. One of theinnovative programsthat
hasreceived nation-wide recognition hasbeen thefamily
learning center. It isan active participant in the community
cultural recreational activitiesprogram.

EDMUNDSSCHOOL GradesK-6
1601 Crocker Street
Site-3 acres

For the 1973-1974 school year, Edmunds School was
housed in two former elementary school sthat werefore-
runners of Edmunds. Thesewere Bird School at Harding
Road and Woodland and Grant School at 23rd and Cottage
Grove. Bird School wasdemolishedin 1975.

Grant School was one of the oldest school unitsinthe
district having been built originaly in 1885 with additionsin
1895 and 1910. Grant was sold in 1974. Each of these had
been K-8 unitsin the old West Des Moines school district
that existed until 1907 when the general merger of school
districtstook place.

Thus, thesetwo former school s possessed aproud
heritagethat formed the background for astriking new
educational unit that was soon to be built-Edmunds, which
was based upon an open-space philosophy of education.
Alongwith thiseducational ideawasthe philosophy that the
school board used for all of the schoolsinthe 1970'sand
that was, input from the school community asto thetype of
school facility that theindividuaswholivedinthat neigh-
borhood wished to have built. In the case of Edmundsand
King, aunique planning processcalled the Educational
Charrettewas utilized. It wasthefirst onein the State of
lowaand inthe midwest. Theideawas espoused by the
U.S. Office of Education and endorsed by the State
Department of Public Instruction.

The history of Edmunds School goesback totwo el-
ementary schools- Bird School at Harding Road and of
these two buildingsthat were to become Edmunds Schoal.

In 1968, planswere beginning to takeform whichwould
eventualy resultinanew, singleeducationa facility to
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replace Bird and Grant. The Board of Education and other concerned citizensweretaking anew look at
processes used for new school devel opment.

In 1971, aCharrettewas held to begin thefinal stagesof planning for the singlefacility. Charrettewas
defined asavehicleincluding parents, senior citizens, students, teachers, administrators, businessmen, agency
representatives, religiousleaders, university personnel and special consultants.

Dr. CharlesLink and Dr. Donald Brubaker served as coordinators of the Charrette processand were
responsiblefor the devel opmental team selected to interpret the educational findings of the Charrette partici-
pantsfrom the Bird/Grant community.

From the Charrette came ahumanistic, multi-cultured direction to program devel opment and facility plan-
ning. The process produced an educational facility whichwasto:

(2) provideacurriculum of relevancy. (2) providefor development of self-worth and pridethroughthe
educational programs. (3) servetherecreational and health needsof thetotal community. (4) draw students
from other communitiesin an effort to create amulti-cultured educational setting. The school wasto bean
open-spaced building with an individualized approach to learning. Thelearning design wasto serveadultsas
well aschildren.

The citizens of the Des Moines | ndependent Community School voted bondsfor the construction of the new
building and in 1972 began to build thisfine new structure. Edmunds School opened itsdoorsin September of
1974.

ELMWOOD SCHOOL GradesK-6 Elmwood
3lstand University
Site-1.7 acres

Thenorth part of ElImwood wasbuiltin 1886 whenit wasa
part of the Oakdal e School District. About 1900 the Oakdale
District merged with the West Des M oines Schools, and the
high school students housed in EIm, wood were sent to the
West High building at 15th and Center. ElImwood then became
an elementary school with kindergarten through theeighth

grade. _ Datesof construction:
In 1901 there were six teachers employed asthe Elmwood -1886 One-fourth

faculty. In 1910 someold recordsindicate that therewere 179 1900 One-fourth

pupilsand eight teachers. With the devel opment of University 1923 One-half

Place and the western part of DesMoinesiii general, the
school populationincreased. Citizensthen, asnow, werefaced
with the problem of school housing. Inthe Spring, 1921 issue
of Elmwood Scrapswe notethat the I ndependent School
District of DesMoineshad definite plansfor morerooms: ,
“The process of the house movingisinteresting to all ages. 1902 - 1913 Elizabeth Robb

The pupilsat EImwood are having the opportunity to seethis 1913- 1933E. GertrudeBurt
done sincethe houses at the south of the school on Brattleboro 1933- 1952 Blanche V. Toohey

Principasof Elmwood School-
1886 - 1900 Mr. Carter
1900- 1902 J. W. Hayman

Avenue are being moved to make room for the new building.” 1952 - 1953 Pearl L eander

The dedication exercisesfor anew two-story brick building 1953 - 1959 Robert Denny
south of the old EImwood structurewere held on Tuesday, 1959 (6 months) Kenneth Rankin
January 15, 1924. Both buildings were separate and complete. 1959 - 1963 Carl Fehrle
However, awooden shed was placed on the cast sidetojoin 1963 - 1967 Irene Perkins
the two school houses. The shed or covered corridor wasan 1967 - 1972 Bernard Miller

1972-  Lester Rees
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icy tunnel during thewinter and pupilshad to put on winter coats and hats before passing from theold
building to the new one. As might be anticipated, thisrunway was noisy. It wasno small inconvenienceto
walk from the second floor of the old building down to the shed and up to the second floor of the new one.
In 1937 the present brick corridorswere constructed to make the present day Elmwood building that
beginson University and extendsto Brattleboro.

Inthe 1920's Des M oines embarked upon an ambitious program of building separate junior high school
building. In 1928 the seventh and eighth grade classes at Elmwood were sent to Callanan and the present
elementary school of kindergarten through sixth grade emerged.

Thefirst record of EImwood participating in the organization which later becameknown asthe PT.A.
was notesfound many yearslater by Hazel Hillis, daughter-in-law of Mrs. Isaac Hillis, founder and first
president of lowa Congress of Mothers. One note stated:

“In 1900 was organi zed the Des Moines City Union of Mother Clubswhich | served asPresident for
fiveyears. The seventeen clubs of the unionincluded two W.C.T.U. units, onekindergarten ,association,
two churchesand twelve public school groups.”

In another note we know that Elmwood was one of the memberssinceit read:

“City Union met Saturday, May 19, 1900 -- Oakland, Bird, EImwood, Kirkwood, Cooper, Oak Park,
Webster, Longfellow. Cary, Capitol Park, Bremer, Forest Home and Washington.”

Many achievementswere made by the City Union and the State Congress so it must be assumed that
Elmwood parents had avery definitepartinall of the progress. For example, afreeward was established
at thenew Methodist Hospital, which was aforerunner of the State University of lowaHospital.

During thisperiod the mothersweretrying toinfluencelegid ation for compul sory education, Child |abor
lawsand conditions surrounding women and childrenin city, county and stateinstitutionswerebeing
investigated.

Former Vice-president Henry A. Wallace attended ElImwood in the early 1900's. In 1955 hewrotethe
following letter to the ElImwood PT.A.

September 28, 1955
Dear Mrs. Kernahan:

“Replying to your letter of September 21 about my connection with ElImwood Schooal, | recall that | first
attended the school inthefall of 1898 or the spring of 1899 when we moved to 38th and University.

“1 entered thefifth grade. Graduated from the 8th grade in June, 1902. The boy of my classwhom |
most vividly remember was Cole McMartinwhoisstill living but very sick. Hisgrandfather, old judge
Cole, would sometimes cometo the school to give ustalks. Perhapsthe best student in our classwas
VestaPeak who | believeisan aunt of George Peak who isactivein DesMoinesbusinesscircles.
“About 1900 or 1901 we moved from 38th and University to 38th and Cottage Grove. Cottage Grovewas
adirt road and in the spring was an d most impassable quagmirewith signsinit on figuresupside down
saying “Hehasn’t found bottom yet.”

“All thetimel wasat EImwood | milked acow every night and morning and after 1900 pumped all the
water in astoragetank intheattic, that wasrequired by afamily of eight. Of course | walked back and
forthto school twiceaday. It wasin 1901 that | first saw an auto- mobile along aroad out our way.
Occasionally my mother would have aparty for the teachersat our house at 38th and Cottage Grove
(wherethe Grace Methodi st church now stands.)

“For atimethe U.P. church whichisthe progenitor of the present Westminster held meetingsin
Elmwood. It must have been about 1900 or 1901 just beforethe church at 35th and Cottage Grovewas
erected. | remember well attending religious servicesin the Elmwood School on Sundays.

Sincerdly,

Henry A. Wallace”
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During the 1920-1921 school year EImwood maintained aMilk Station. Four pupilsfrom each classtook
turnspresiding during the morning recess. Over two hundred under-weight pupil s received nourishment
which helped build their health. By spring the percentage of underweight childrenin EImwood had dropped
from 40% to 25%.

War stampswere sold during W. W. Il andin theyearsthat followed. During the 1950's Elmwood pupils
used theradio programs broadcast by KDPS-FM. In the 1960’ s some of the classes began to usetelevi-
sion programsfrom KDPS-TV. A satellitelunch program wasinaugurated in thefall of 1964.

Elmwoodin1975- 76
Elmwood'senrollment has shown acontinuous decline during the period of 1970-75. The school enrollment
now standsat 282. Among the reasonsfor thisdecline arethefollowing:

1. Thepurchaseof property by Drake University intheareawhichin turn haseither beenturnedinto
parking lotsor rented to studentsmore than familieswith children.

2. Thecontinual decline of the areaasthe central core of the city spreads north and west.

3. Being anolder neighborhood, there are more older peopleliving inthe areawho at onetime sent
childrento Elmwood.

4. Anunusualy large number of apartmentsin the areawhich are mostly rented to singlesor newly-
married couples.

Programs.

1. Titlel Reading
Designated asaTitlel school for the 1974-75 year, ElImwood had
the services of areading resource teacher and associate. Boysand girlsin grades K4 profited much
fromthisadditiona help.

2. Headstart
A Headstart classwas begun in September of 1974. Therewere 27 youngsters, mostly fromthe
adjacent areaswho had agreat year and agood send-off to kindergarten.

3. SpecificLearning Disabilities
Inthefall of 1972 ahalf-timeteacher for learning disabilitieswas added to the staff. Teachersidenti-
fied boysand girlsin K-6 who would need additional help for periodsup to 45 minuteswith aspecia
teacher.

4. Satellite Resource Room
In January of 1975 aspecificlearning disabilitiesroom from Madison School was moved to Elmwood.
Theseboysand girlsin grades K -3 spent most of their day intheir ownroom. Astheir ability and
control permitted they are sent out to variousroomsfor periods of timeranging up to half aday.

5. School Community Council
A School Community Council was begun in September of 1972. It meetsonce amonth and discusses
problemsof concernto parentsand faculty in regard to school and/or community problems.

6. 1975-76
Because of afurther dropin enrollment, ElImwood moved to aself- contained organizational pattern
for the 1975-76 school year. A special music planning time teacher was added and boysand girlsin
grades 3-6 have aphysical educational teacher, thusretaining some of the benefits of the fused
programformerly used.
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Find|e':,-

Principds
1967 - Nadine Machesney

FINDLEY SCHOOL
3000 Cambridge
Site2.1 acres

Thefirst wing of Findley elementary school wasopenedin
1966. It wasaprimary unit of nineroomssituated onland on
3000 Cambridgethat had been cleared of housesonly a
short timebefore. The school was named for William C.
Findley, long-time assi stant superintendent inthe Des
MoinesPublic Schoals.

Biographical sketch of Mr. Findley:

Mr. Findley wasbornin 1894 on the Winnebago Indian
reservation twenty-five miles southwest of Sioux City. His
father wasahome missionary to the Indianswho made up
about athird of the areapopulation. The future educator
spent thefirst five gradesin acountry school where he sat
sideby sidein adouble seat with alittle Indian boy named
Pete.

After hisfather’sdeath thefamily moved to Bellevue,
Nebraska, where hefinished hiselementary schooling and
entered BellevueAcademy. Helater graduated from
Bellevue College now joined with Hastings College.

During the next nineyears hewasteacher and principal in
severa schoolsbeginning in Fullerton Highandin 1916 was
superintendent at Beemer, Nebraska. Infact, thefirst
twenty-nineyearsof hislifewere spent in hisnative state of
Nebraska

Mr. Findley was superintendent at Rushvillein September,
1917 but histenurewasinterrupted in December when he
wascalledtotheU.S. Coast Artillery Corps. Trainingin
American campswasfollowed by an assignment to France
asaLieutenantinWorld War 1.

Upon hisreturnto civilian lifein 1919 he became superin-
tendent of Gordon and Gering public schools. Four years
later hewent to the State University of lowawhere hedid
graduate work and attained hisMaster’sdegree. Then he
had two additional years of experience asteacher and
principal inlowaCity el ementary schools.

In 1925, John W. Studebaker, Des M oines Superintendent
of Schools, and later United States Commissioner of Educa-
tion, impressed with the administrative and mathematical
skillsof theyoung school man, invited himtothe Des
Moinesschool system for athirty-nine-year stay. For three
yearsMr. Findley assumed the principal ship of Clarkson,
Saylor, Barton, and Bly Schools. From 1928 to 1933 the post
of Mathemati cs Supervisor was added to hisresponsibilities.

Meanwhile Mr. Findley was performing aserviceto the
educational publishing world. Scott Foresman’s Study
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Arithmetic needed primary textsand workbooks. Mr. Findley provided the textbooks, workbooksand his
nameto the nations’ most widely used elementary arithmetic series. The Study Arithmetic, authored by
Knight, Studebaker, Ruch and Findley was perhapsthe most popularly acclaimed arithmetic textin Ameri-
can and Canadian schoolsin the decade of the 30’sand early 40's.

The position of Director of Elementary Education wasassigned to Mr. Findley in 1933 and hetook his
placeinthe central office asamember of the administrative staff. Eight years|ater he was made A ssistant
Superintendent of Schoolsand remained inthat capacity until hisretirement in 1964.

In 1967 al of the primary studentsfrom Saylor elementary weretransferred to the new Findley School.
Grades5 and 6 at Saylor became apart of the Harding administrative routines. Saylor school wasofficially
closed at that point. It was planned that Clarkson School which was of ancient construction going back to
1888 would be discontinued in the near future and those students a so would attend the new Findley School.
Intheearly 1970’ san addition of ten teaching stations, art and music rooms, and media center were
planned to completion of the Findley building. Theremaining half-square block of houseswere purchased
and demolished so that the complete Findley sitewould thusbe availablefor alarger and expanded school.
Theteacher and citizen planning committeesthat hel ped plan the new Findley addition decided upon an
open-space concept with teaching stationsrather than individualized and separate classrooms. Inthefall of
1972 when the new Findley building was opened, it becamethen aK-6 attendance center with grades5
and 6 removed from Harding and the K-6 students from the Clarkson building transferred to thisnew unit.

The contractsfor thefirst part of Findley School werelet in June, 1966 in the amount of $213,645.00.
Thebuilding was completein November, 1967. The contract awarded in May, 1971 totaled $509,740.00 and
werefor 12 classroom teaching stations (much of this Open Space) library learning center and cafetorium
The new wing wasair-conditioned.

Findley School Programs1967-75

When Findley first openedin 1967 it wasatraditional school. Inthefall of 1971 theWisconsin Design
Program, aphonic program, and I.GE., Individually guided Education, wereintroduced to help meet the
needsof individua children. The new air-conditioned open space areawas completed in thefall of 1972.
TheFindley Staff was doubled to accommodate theincreased enrollment from Clarkson and Harding Junior
High, and at thistimeaTitle| Reading resourceteacher wasassigned to Findley. In 1972 Career Education
wasimplemented and aTitle | Math teacher was appointed. In 1974 a Specific L earning Resource teacher
was shared with Cattell School. Inthefall of 1975 a self-contained Specific L earning Resource room will
be opened to help children in the primary gradesliving inthe northeast area of thecity.

INn 1967 al of the primary studentsfrom Saylor elementary weretransferred to the new Findley School.
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FT. DESMOINES SCHOOL GradesK-3
Southeast 2nd and Porter
Site—I.8acres

Prior to 1923, Fort DesMoineswas an incorporated town
withitsown el ective officers. Children of the community
attended Maple Grove Consolidated School, but lack of
transportation facilitiesled to an election resultinginadecision
tolevy taxesfor aschool building to accommodate the pupils
of theneighborhood.

In 1910 an old one room building wastom down and atwo.
room, onestory structure built, In 1914 the roof wasraised
and two rooms added above. In 1916 roomswere added on
the south making atotal of six class- rooms. Thiswasthe
building turned over to the DesMoines School Districtin 1926
when it became apart of that school system.

At thetimethe corporation of Fort DesMoineswasdis-
solvedin 1923, the Town Hall (which wason the northwest
corner of the present school grounds) wasremodeled asa
kindergarten room. The building burned on February 26, 1926.
From 1923 to 1926 the Fort Des M oines School District
continued separately even though thetown of Fort Des
M oines had been dissolved. Asnoted above, it joined the Des
Moines Public Schoolsin 1926.

In 1938 plansweremadeto remodel the building. The
entrance was changed, aprincipal’s office made and the
community room on thetop floor wasdivided into two regular
classrooms. Thebuilding asit now standshas six classrooms,
two on each floor. After third gradeall pupilsstill attend
Mitchell School.

With the opening of thenew Lovejoy School inthefall of
1972 eased the enrolIment pressuresupon Mitchell. However,
it was decided to maintain the Ft. Des M oines attendance
center asafeeder unit to Mitchell elementary rather thanto
discontinueit at thistime. Thisdecision wasfurther reinforced
in September, 1973, when Maple Grove, School at S. W. Sth
and Army Post Road was closed and again the decision was
madeto retain Ft. DesMoines School asaseparate entity. In
themid-1970s Ft. DesMoines School continuesasa
undepartmentalized program for gradesK-4.

Since Fort DesMoinesand Mitchell schoolssharethe same
attendance area, studentsare transferred between schoolsin
order to provideamoreindividualized program. Thereisa
joint Fort DesMoines- Mitchell PTA and school advisory
council. Pupilsfrom both school s attend joint school assem-
blies, track and field day, etc. and take frequent school trips
together. Also pupilsfrom Fort DesMoinestake part in band
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activitiesat Mitchell and are represented by the Fort Des
Moines- Mitchell student council. Community education
classesare offered to students, parents, and other members
of thecommunity at both schools. Other programsincludedin
the curriculum of Fort DesMoinesElementary are:

Volunteer program

Titlel Reading and Mathematics
SpecificLearning Disahilities
Speech Therapy

Instructional MediaCenter
Career Education

Student Tutors

GARTON SCHOOL GradesK-6
East 24th and Hull
Site-10.2 acres

Garton School was opened in September, 1958. It was
built in responseto avast housing areathat sprang up inthe
1950s. The street department of the City of DesMoineshad
not paved any streetsin thisareasincethey werewaiting for
the sewer work to be done.

Theresult wasthat for thefirst timein decades, the Des
MoinesPublic Schoolshad to build outsidetoil etsfor school
children. These outside unitsindeed added anew educational
dimensionfor “city” children. Thetoiletswere used for .
severa weeks. Thememory of these unitslingered onand T -
even aslate asthe 1962 school bond €l ection therewere e e
guestions by interested citizens“Why DesMoineswas — .
building new schoolswith outsidetoilets?”

Garton streetswere not paved for about two and ahalf )
years. Each Spring variousfaculty members, and the princi- Datesof constrgctl onal' _
pal, would contribute mufflersand other parts beneath their 1965 (first addiition)
carsto the mud morassthat was called astreet. o .

Thebuilding was named in honor of George Gartonwho Principasof Gartoninclude
was Secretary to the Board of Education for 27 years. The 1958 - 1966 L oRetta Patrick
Garton family wasaprominent East DesMoinesfamily. 1966 - 1971 L orraine McFadden

1971- Harry Elder

Garton

GARTON IN 1975-76

Inthemid-1970's Garton Elementary School faces some of
the declining enrollment problemsthat other DesMoines
Schoolsarefacing. Garton continuesto maintain asix-unit
programin grades 5-6 with the art teacher serving another
building half time. GradesK-4 continueonan
undepartmentalized bas's.
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GARTON IN 1975-76

Inthemid-] 970's Garton Elementary School faces some of the declining enrollment problemsthat other Des
Moines Schoolsarefacing. Garton continuesto maintain asix-unit programin grades 5-6 with the art teacher
serving another building half time. Grades K -4 continue on an undepartmentalized basis.

During the past two years Garton has been “paired” with Logan School in aprogram called “ Shared Activi-
ties’. Many worthwhileactivitieshave been planned in all gradelevels. Timewas spent in sharing field trips,
educational films, physical education, scienceand basic skills subject matter. Most of the activity wascon-
ducted at gradelevel for aperiod of one-half day but in the 5th and 6th grades Garton and L ogan exchanged
about 15-5th and 15 sixth grade studentsfor aperiod of seven half daysto participatein unitsin science,
literature, physical education.

InAugust of 1973 Garton requested permission to participatein Career Education. We were accepted and
during the past two yearswe haveincorporated this concept into our curriculum.

In September of 1973 Garton initiated “ Parent Orientation Week” . Thisprovided an opportunity for parents
tovisit their child’steacher and get apreview of the“thingsto come”. It wasastart in our awareness pro-
gram which encouraged parentsto become“ School Volunteers’” and become activein Garton activities.

In 1974 Community Education sponsored a Pre-School classof 20 studentswhichisscheduled for three
half-daysweekly.

Garton hashad an excellent Safety Patrol Program. The patrol captains during the school year of 1966,
1969, 1972, 1973 won first placeinthe AAA Safety Contest and won expense paid tripsfor the captain and
Safety Patrol Supervisor.

The Garton Staff participated in aFirst Aid Coursefirst offered to entire school staffsin 1974 and al
participantsreceived their American National Red Cross Certificates.

GRANGER SCHOOL GradesK-6
S.E. 2nd and L each Street
Site-10.0 acres

Thefirst six rooms, of Barlow Granger School were
completed inAugust, 1954, the $452,000 addition, includ-
ing 14 regular classrooms, akindergarten, apractical arts
room, agymnasium, and kitchenfacilities, was completed
in1957. Thissingle-story structurewas placed on asite
of ten acres. Wetherell and Harrison werethe architects.

The School Board recommended that the el ementary
Datesof Con.struction school at South Union and Leach Avenue be named

-1954 One-third Barlow Granger Elementary School. Thefollowingisan
1957 Two-thirds igg;rpt fromthe Granger PT.A. bulletin of February,

“BARLOW GRANGER-born 1816, in New York. At
the age of 13 he quit school to become an apprentice
printer. In 1846 hejourneyed west - by coachto St.
Louis; to Keokuk on steamboat; to Fairfield by coach; and
onto DesMoinesby horseand buggy. At that timethe
population of DesMoineswas 127.

Barlow Granger wasthe editor of thefirst newspaper
published in DesMoines, thelowaStar. Vol. 1, No. 1,

- 4 |

Granger

Principasof Granger School include:
1954 - 1963 LucilleTruitt
1963 - 1967 L orenaRiebhoff
1967- Daniel Priest
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was dated July 26, 1849. Hewas one of the most widely known of the early settlers. The presswas set
upinalog cabin on Second Street near Vine. Thetown wasknown asFort DesMoines.

Granger needed no reporters because he knew every family intown. He bought the pressat lowa
City and sent to Keokuk for the paper. The lowa Star was financed by a Curtis Bates, who later
became acandidate for governor. Politicians often in that day sponsored newspapersin order to rush
their personal political aspirations

Barlow Granger was asked to bethe editor. He announced hiseditoria policiesin spite of the political
leanings of the owner, stating that the paper would publish hisown viewsas* purely individua” but
neverthel essthe Star would be“ Firmly, decidedly, radically democratic.” However, the editor would hold
himself responsible to no party, sect, creed or clique.”

Forty of the eighty acresof land purchased by Granger for ahomestead isnow Pioneer Park reached
over S.E. 6th Street and Hartford Avenue, one of the oldest streetsin DesMoines. Thissouthside
location became noted for itshospitality and Granger built astone and wood house onthe site. Part of
thishouse, in so far aswe can discover, isstill apart of the custodian’sresidence. Thewell, 370 feet
deep, was sunk by Granger around 1900, three years before hisdeath, and furnished the water used by
the park when it wasfirst established by the city. He brought birch treesfrom Wisconsin and planted
them on his property and otherwise beautifiedit.

The park custodian, when the Pioneer Park was established, had ascrapbook owned by Barlow
Granger inwhich he had kept clippings, especially poems he had gleaned from magazines and other
newspapers. It isnoted that in every issue of the lowa Star when Granger was editor, apoem appeared
onthefront page. Heimprinted hiscultural and literary accomplishmentson all who read the paper.

Hewasawell educated man, alawyer by profession. He practiced in DesMoines, ran areal estate
business, became prosecuting attorney and was made judge of the County Court when Byron Rice, our
first school teacher, resigned that position. Hewasinfluentia in molding public opinionintheearly days
of DesMoines. Many storiesof thisestimable gentleman aretold in numerous articles and books about
early DesMoines.

In 1881 the Early SettlersAssociation held areunion at the home of Barlow Granger, “two miles south
of the statehouse’. His southside affiliations are furthered by the fact that he was mayor of DesMoines
oneterm and of Sevastopol for twoterms. Sevastopol is, of course, apart of the south side.

GRANGER- 1975-76

Because of the development of new housing inthearea, Granger Elementary School increased its
enrollment intheearly 1970sto 770. With the opening of Love oy School and the additionsto
Jackson School and Park Avenue School, two hundred pupilswere sent to those schoolsfrom
Granger. Sincethen Granger School has been maintai ning steady enrollmentsasnew housing contin-
uesto developinthevicinity during themid-1970s.

Inrecent years” Career Education” has become animportant part of the curriculum. There hasbeen
ateam-teaching project in second gradefor anumber of years. Fourth gradewill be semi-departmen-
talized in 1975-76. Other lower grades are undepartmentalized. Grades 5 and 6 are departmentalized
with oneteacher teaching reading skillsin 5th grade and another teacher teaching reading skillsin 6th
grade. Thereisa so ateacher that teaches social studiesand scienceto all 5th and 6th graders. There
aretheusua arithmetic, art, music, and physical education teachersin grades5and 6.
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Greenwood

Datesof congtruction
1901
1924
1961 (northwing)

Principalsof Greenwood School include:
1901 - 1909 Gertrude Burt

1909- 1912 NellieElliott

1912 - 1925 NellieWarren

1925 - 1944 Frances Umpleby
1944 - 1945 Murray Work

1945 - 1952 L orene Lightfoot

1952 - 1958 Robert Langerak
1958- 1972 LorraineKimball Reed
1972 - 1973 James Daugherty
1973- NicholasAabers

GREENWOOD SCHOOL GradesK-6
316 37th Street
Site-3.4 acres

Thehistory of Greenwood School extendsback to the
dayswhen it was aseparate school district serving the
western most suburban area. Greenwood School was
named for the spaci ouswoods which surrounded the school
area. Thefirst building waslocated near Thirty-fifthand
Ingersoll. Thepresent building at Thirty-seventh Street,
south of Grand Avenue was constructed in 1901.

The Greenwood Park community incorporated asacity
in188 1. In 1890 it became apart of thecity of Des
Moines. The school district continued asaseparate entity
until 1900. At that timeit joined the West DesMoines
Schoolsand sent itshigh school studentsto the outstanding
high school that wasrecently built at 15th and Center-\West
High.

Theroster of PTA presidentsand officers, Advisory
Board membersand studentswho have attended Green-
wood throughout itsexistencerevea the namesof many
prominent families and personswho have made contribu-
tionstothelife of thecity of DesMoines, the state of lowa
and the United States.

Greenwood continuesto be aleader in the education of
our city’syoung people. Thevarious programsin operation
attest to the fact that we are concerned about all students
that attend our school. Greenwood participatesasboth a
receiving and sending school inthe District’s Voluntary
Transfer Program. We have community and adult educa-
tion classes and haveincorporated the career education
concept into our total school program. TheWisconsin
Design Reading Management System assistsusin our total
reading programin the primary grades and we havethe
serviceof aTitlel Reading and Math Resource person as
well asal earning Disability Resource person.

TheKindergarten program hasincorporated the“ strate-
giesfor Early Childhood Education’ plan and wealso have
the Kindergarten Language Enrichment Program.
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HANAWALT SCHOOL  GradesK-6
56th Street and Roberston Drive
Site-4.8 acres

Therewerefour teachers assigned to Hanawalt when
it openedin 1913. Slow development of theareahas
madefuture additionsdubious. Inthe early 1960'sthe
gradesof 5and 6 were sent to thenew Merrill Jr. High
School. In February, 1965, aoneroom portableunit
costing $10,000 was placed north of the present building
to accommodate one class of fourth graders.

Dr. George P. Hanawalt aveteran medica man of the
last half of the 1800’s, practiced medicineand surgery in
DesMoinesfor 45 years, He was Surgeon-General of
the National Guard for 25 years. He served as President
of the Polk County Medical Society in 1877 and of the
StateMedica Society in 1880.

Theearly 1970s saw planning for the addition of ten
classrooms, gym, and mediacenter on the Hanawalt
building. Thisaddition was basically onethat was planned
by the parents and faculty as being one of the open-
space concept. Withitsopeninginthefall of 1972 the
Frisbie school at 63rd and Muskogee was closed and
later demolished. The elementary studentsfrom both
Hanawalt and Frisbiewho formerly attended Merrill
junior high were now housed in their own elementary
building for thefirst timein many, many years. Hanawat
isan|GE, multi-unit school. The 1972 addition cost
$500,000.

TheHanawalt Elementary School hasembarked on
severa new and exciting programsduring the early part
of 1970's. The new programsinvolve studentsat all
levelswith some specialized programsfor certain
students. The new addition accommodates Unit A and B
(GradesK through 3). Alsoincluded inthe new addition
are specia serviceareas such as officesfor the Princi-
pal, Secretary, Nurse, aGymnasi um-Cafetorium and-an
Instructional Material Center. These special areas of
instruction such asArt, Music and Physical Education
servetheentire student body. TheOrigina Buildingis
used to accommodate studentsin Unit C (Grades4
through 6).

The new addition was planned according to an Open-
Space-Concept which lendsitself to the newer develop-
mentsin educational organization-to an organi zationa
plan which makespossible abetter approach tothe
varying needsof pupils. Individualy Guided Education
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Datesof congtruction
1913
1919
1972

Principasof Hanawalt include:
1913- 1916 Elizabeth Robb
1916 - 1918 EllaBaker

1918- 1919 LuluAuracher
1920- 1925 NellieWarren
1925 - 1953 Frances Umpleby
1943 - 1945 Murray Work
1945- 1952 LoreneLightfoot
1952 - 1958 Robert Langerak
1958- 1966 L orraine Kimball Reed
1966 - 1968 Howard Hart
1968 - 1971 Harry Elder

1971 - 1975 MelvinKiner
1975-  Don Shaw



and Team Teaching are natural partnersin accomplishing thisgoal.

TheHanawat School philosophy hasbeen to devel op programsthat places emphasison theindividual
student - hisability, hisrateof learning, hisstyle of learning and hisprogress.

Inthefall of 1972thel.GE. Program wasinitiated at Hanawalt. |.GE. isan approach to instruction that
providesaframework for individualizing instruction -INDIVIDUALLY GUIDED EDUCATION. It hasbeen
achieved through an in-service program designed to reorgani ze and redirect thetime, talents, and energy of al
concerned with the educational process.

Instructional processesrepresent the heart of 1.GE. These processes provide appropriate learning programs
for each student built on acontinuous cycle of findings out where each student isand how he got there
(assessment), deciding what he needsto learn next (specifying objectives), selecting the best waysfor himto
attain those objectives (diversified learning opportunities), and making surethat he has met them (reassess-
ment).

Theteachersassigned to each Unit, under the direction of the Unit Leader, areresponsiblefor all instruction
and supervision of studentswithin that Unit. All planning isdonetogether asateam making it possibleto
improveinstruction through sharing of ideas and through teacher concentration on hisor her areas of strength.

HILLISSCHOOL GradesK-6
56th and Hickman
Site-7.5 acres

The old wooden temporary building that wasmoved to
thesitein 1949 was called Tower School. It was so named
because of itsproximity of thewater tower at 48th and
Hickman.

Themain structure of 22 roomswas named after Mrs.
CoraBussey Hilliswho wasinstrumental in organizing the
lowaCongressof Mothers. Mrs. Hillismade many other

i contributionsas noted bel ow.

Datesof construction Mrs. CoraBussey Hilliswasborn at Bloomfield, lowa,
1949 An annex unit was moved to Site in 1858. Shegrew up in New Orleansbut in 1880 she
1953 Main building of ISrooms married |saac LeaHillisand moved to DesMoines.

1961 4 room addition at east end of In 1887 shewas one of theincorporators of the Des
huilding MoinesWomen's Club, She soon began her notable career

asaworker and organizer in the cause of child welfare by
securing thefirst public bath housein DesMoinesfor
o T : . children, sothey couldin safety enjoy theriver.
Frindipalsof HillisSchool include: In 1898 she attended, in Washington, D. C., the second
1949-1953 James L. Daugherty :
meeting of the Congress of Mothersasadelegatefrom
1953-1962 Pearl L eander : )
1962-1966 Don Brubak thelowa Child Study Society, adepartment of thelowa
196 6- 1968 K on r#R ir_ State TeachersA ssociation. Soon thereafter she organized
- ennet xankin thelowa Congressof Mothers.
1968-1973 Eleanor Singer Sheintroduced the penny savings systeminthe Des
1973-  Joseph Turner Moinesschoolsandin 1901 secured thefirst children’s
roominthelowaM ethodist Hospital. In 1902 she opened
apublic sewing roomin connection with the DesMoines
public schools, where children who were out of school for
lack of clothing were supplied with garments by mothers
clubs.
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In 1904 she organized the lowa Child Welfare Association and in 1915 urged the legislature to adopt abill
providing for the establishment of aChild Welfare Research Station at the University of lowa. This Station
wasset upin 1917, having asitsobjective the investigation of the best scientific methods of conserving and

developing thenormal child. Thisstation wasthefirst of itskind in the United States and set the example

which othershavefollowed.

Itisindeed fitting and proper that the Board of Education named an el ementary school to honor Mrs. Hillis,
apioneer in child welfarewho perhaps had no equal inthe country.

In 1973 it became apparent that enrollmentsat Hilliswere decliningto a point that it would be possibleto
houseall of the Riley studentsinthe Hillisschool building. Thus, adecisionwasmadeto close Riley at the
end of the 1972-73 school year. Those studentswere given the option of attending several elementary
schoolsbut most chose the Hillis attendance center at their closest school. Inthemid 1970sHillishasan
underpartmentalized program for grades K4 and asix-unit plan B program for grades5 and 6. Inthe six-unit
Plan B program the art and music teachersremain in the buildings and teacher arithmetic. Hillishasbeen an
EEO receiving school sinceinception of thevoluntary transfer programin 1969.

During the 1974-75 school year astudent council was begun, and asan activity the council adopted the

“Hound” asthe school mascot.

Inthe 1975-76 school year the Hillis staff will implement acontinuous progressreading planinan effort to
improveinstruction. During the 1975-76 school year we plan to observethe silver anniversary of the con-

struction of the permanent building.

HOAK SCHOOL GradesK-5
18th Street and McKinley
Site-7.7 acres

Hoak School was opened in September, 1955. It was
named in honor of Percy E. Hoak, long time member of
the school board. Mrs. Patrick, the principal, received
the picture of Mr. Hoak from Mrs. Hoak during the
1956-57 school year. Thefamily also presented abronze
statue of aboy in honor of Mr. Hoak.

In 1956-57 adecision was made not to enlarge Hoak
School because of new traffic patternsat the Des
Moinesairport. When originaly planned this matter had
been checked out with appropriate authoritiesand was
not aproblem. Pupilsfor grades5 and 6 may attend
Wright School whichisnearby. Hoak and Wright Schools
areoperated asasingleunit under thejurisdiction of the
sameprincipd.

Inthemid-1970sHoak elementary school isoperating
on aK-5 undepartmentalized program.

During thistime declining student popul ation has
created spacefor two new programs. (1) atherapeutic
learning center for children with emotiona problems
severeenoughto prevent their functioning withina
regular classroom, and (2) alearning disabilitiesresource
teacher to providefor the specific needsof learning
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Datesof construction -- 1955

Principalsof Hoak School include:
1955 - 1956 Kenneth Rouse
1956 - 1957 L oRetta Patrick
1957 - 1961 Ruth Pritchard
1961 - 1965 JamesL . Daugherty
1965 - 1972 Mildred Kaisand



disabled students. Also, space has been accrued through
student attritionto allow studentsto utilizeadoubleroomfor
physical education activities.

Thesmall school atmosphere allowsfor acloserelation-
ship to be devel oped between students, parents, and teach-
ers, andthis“caring” climateisperhapsthe most singular
characteristic of the school.

Howe
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Datesof construction
1919 One-fourth
1925 One-fourth
1951 One-fourth
1957 One-fourth

Principas who have served at Howeinclude:
1907 - 1908 LorettaBlake
1908 - 1909 |va Scott
1909 - 1913 Elizabeth Culbertson
1913- 1915 Jeanette Mills
1915- 1939 Alice Bradshaw
1939- 1946 Ednal. E. Peterson
1946 - 1949 K enneth Rouse
1949 - 1955 Merle Wilson
1955 - 1963 Paul Pace
1963 - Nov. 1965 LucileTruitt
Nov. 1965 William Molleck

HOWE SCHOOL GradesK-6
S.E. 7thand Indianola
Site-4.3 acres

Howe School initspresent location replaced theold
“Howe” schooal, aframebuilding located at S.E. 7th and
Davis. The*“old” Howewasknown originally as Sevastopol
School whichtook itsnamefromthe, area.

The school honorsthe name of JuliaWard Howefamed
author of thewordsof “The Battle Hymn of the Republic.”

A former student of the 1890's, 0. J. Potthoff, haswritten
of Mrs. Howe'svisit to the school:

“Mrs. Howe visited the Howe School and | remember her
very well but | don’t just remember what year it was-
somewhere around 1895 or 1896. The class sang her song
and she seemed quite pleased.”

Onenight during the Civil War, JulieWard Howe, fell
ad eep in her Washington hotel with the melody of asouth-
ern camp meeting tuneringingin her ears. Later she awoke,
rose and wrote the words of what became, “ The Battle
Hymn of the Republic.” She said the words seemed to come
to her asarevelation.

Thissong captured the mindsand hearts of the northern
armiesand was sung asamarching tune. Even President
Lincolnenjoyedsingingit.

After thewar, Mrs. Howe became awomen’s suffrage
leader and continued to write, turning out travel books,
essaysand poetry. But no poem shewrote ever again
reached the heights of “ The Battle Hymn of the Republic”.

In 1882 the JuliaWard Howe School was opened with
only two roomsfor pupilsuptothefourth grade. Theolder
children had to go to Washington School. Mr. Parishwasthe
first principal of both Washington and Howe schools.

By the mid-1970'senrollment pressures at Howe Elemen-
tary have been eased by the enlargement of Jacksonto a
full elementary unit aswell asthe construction of Lovejoy
Elementary School and the boundary adjustmentswith
Granger. It uses an undepartmentalized program for grades
K-4 and hasasix-unit plan A for grades5and 6. It hasa
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family learning center asapart of the adult education outreach.

HOWEIN THE 1970's

Howe hasworked hard to keep pace with the many improvementsin education and had added many
programsto meet the needs of its students. In 1970 the old auditorium was converted to an instructional
mediacenter becoming thefirst of itstypein the elementary schools. Thisisan areawhereall types of
mediaare consolidated for student use such asbooks, magazines, filmstripes, tapes, T.V., 16mm films,
overhead transparencies, cassettes, etc.

AsDesMoinesgrew so did thetraffic on IndianolaRoad and for saf ety purposes anew crossover was
constructed in 1971. Parents accepted it with reservationsbut it has proved to be abeneficial additionto
Howe.

In1972 aprogram called SPURT (Specia Program Utilizing aResource Teacher) wasadded and it
helped mildly handicappedin LD, ED, and EMR. Thiswasastate financed program that isnow aDes
Moinesdistrict supported program.

Thenin 1973 afamily learning program wasinitiated and thiswasan adult education concept to improve
adult education through workshopsand child/parent rel ationships.

In 1974 still another program got off the ground and it wastitled Therapeutic Learning Center whichis
designed for emotionally disturbed childrenin cooperation with Orchard Place.

HUBBELL SCHOOL GradesK-6
42nd and Center Hubbell
Site-5.0 acres

Hubbell School was named in honor of Frederick M.
Hubbell, philanthropist, and wedthiest lowan inthe history of
the state. Arriving herein 1885 from hishomein Connecticut
at the age of sixteen, heworked, studied and invested inland.
Later hebecame aleading lawyer and founded the Equitable
Life Insurance Co. of lowa. Hewasalso arailroad financier w_ﬂ,“#.r = -
and builder aswell asredl estateinvestor and public utilities
magnate. He was devoted to Des Moines and invested here,
where he made hisfortune. Just how much he contributed to

Datesof construction

the growth and devel opment of Des M oines cannot be 1910 One-half
estimated. 1917 One-fourth
1925 One-fourth

SomeHighlightsabout Hubbell History 1955 Thecommunity roomwas

On September 15, 1908 a petition was presented to the Des remodeledinto two classrooms.
Moines school board by H. C. Wallace, representing West
University Place, asking for an additional schoolhouse. The Principalsof Hubbell School include:
property selected was designated as Lot 32 located at 42nd 1910-1917 AmeliaMorton
Street and Woodland Avenue, for which $4,250.00 was paid. 1917-1923 H.D. Eickelberg
Bidswere called for in 1909 and the contract was awarded to 1923-1939 LauraP. Matthews
Martin Conroy who presented the, lowest bid-$47,147.00. 1939-1958 BlancheV. Toohey
“Thebuildingisfireresistiveand two storiesin height. The 1958-1965 Mildred E. Kaisand
brick wallsare 12 and 16 inchesthick; floorsare concrete; 1965-1971 Ann Schott
incombustible partitions; oak trim; incombustible cellings, wood 1971-1973 Howard Miller
roof over concrete ceiling. There aretwo open stairwaysin 1973-1974 Eleanor Singer

1974-  Irene Perkins
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the hall, basement to second floor. The basement containsagymnasium, fan room and classrooms; first
floor nurse’ sroom, office, supply room and classrooms; second floor auditorium and classrooms.”

Onthemotion of J. B. Sullivan and seconded by C. H. Martin, at the February, 1909 meeting of the
school board, “the school building to be erected on 42nd and Woodland Avenueisto be known asthe
Frederick M. Hubbell School”. Carried.

InMay, 1910 thirty feet a ong the south side of the Hubbell School ground was given up for the use of
thecity in opening Center Street.

Hubbell School openedinthefall of 191 1. MissAmeliaMorton wasthe principal and therewas astaff
of seventeachers- MissEmmaBradley, MissMary Heaton, Mrs. E. D. Brunn, MissKatherine Hal ey,
MissElizabeth Mason, MissJessie E. Dicksand MissAdeline Winterble.

In 1917 the south wing was added to the original building, first and second floors providing additional
spacefor classroomsand a, community room in the basement. In 1922 Hubbell School served 670 chil-
drenineight grades; by 1923 therewere 610 children in six grades, the seventh and eighth grade pupils
attending junior high school inthe new Roosevelt High School. In 1925 the north wing was added giving
the school agymnasium, classroomsand auditorium. In 1930 there were twenty classrooms, three special
roomsand an enrollment of 563. In 1955 the community room was converted into two more classrooms.

The student popul ation hasmaintained itself through the yearsin the Hubbel | district and continuesinto
the 70’s. A new addition of two kindergarten classroomswas openedin, 1971. Thisenabled the
utilization of theformer kindergarten room into amedialearning center. Hubbell School inthemid-
1970sisan Equa Education Opportunitiesreceiving school. Thelarge playground north of the school
formerly wasat an elevation of eight to ten feet below street level. Extensivefilling of dirt brought thisup
to the height of the Hubbell playground adjacent to the building. The addition of thetwo roomsin 1971
enabled theremoval of two portable classroomsthat had been placed therein the 1960s. A landmark
along onthe Hubbell-Roosevelt sitewasthetall smokestack that wasremoved intheearly 1970. This
saw the conversion of the heating plant and theinstallation of new boilersat the heating plant and
conversionto gasand oil. With theenergy crisisof themid- 1970’'s someone has commented that we
probably should have retained the coal-stoked furnacesand thetal | landmark smokestack to utilizethe
lowacoal. Forecasts by hindsight are easier to make.

During the 1974-75 school year there were eighteen teachers, asecretary, an associate, aVoluntary
Transfer associateand 2.5 custodiansat Hubbell. Also, the part time staff included anurse, library
associate, speech therapist, Titlel math and reading teacher and alLearning DisabilitiesTeacher. The
school enrollment was 419 studentsrepresenting 278 families.
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JACKSON SCHOOL GradesK-6
I ndianolaRoad and Watrous
Site-l 1.5acres

Andrew Jackson School openeditsdoorsin January,
1962, to serve 184 childrenin kindergarten through third
grade. The school islocated on aspacioussiteon
IndianolaRoad near WatrousAvenue, closeto the bound-
ary lineof southeast DesMoines. Theglasswalls, exterior
corridors, and colored ceramic brick extend thelength on
each side of theground-hugging structure, whichisto be
thefirst wingin the construction of acompleteschool. This
$305,000 building was designed by ArchitectsAssociated
of DesMoaines.

Thereis acontinuousturnover in pupil ‘ personnel dueto
themobility of thearea. Themohility isaresult of alow-
economic section and temporary residence provided by
threetrailer courts. At the present time, a40-homehousing
project isunder construction directly west of the school.

Beginning with the 1963-64 school year the
undepartmentalized program was extended to, include
fourth grade.

The75th Unit of the Parent-Teacher Associationwas
organized at Jackson Elementary School on October 2,
1962, with Mrs. Ben Bingaman asthefirst president. The
PTA membership totaled 69 parents, teachers, and friends
thefirst year.

INn 1972 an addition of ten classrooms, gym and media
center were added to the primary wing of the Jackson
building. The cost was $525,333.00. The addition wasfar
different than the onevisuaized whenthe building wasfirst
opened in 1962. Thecitizensand teacher committeesthat
helped plan the new addition at Jackson opted for the
open-classroom concept. Thustheteaching stationsthat
were added at Jackson essentialy revolve about acentral -
ized mediacenter for al of the upper graderoomsto
utilize. Fully carpeted and air conditioned asareal of the
open-space classroom additions of the 1970s, it isindeed
afunctional educational unit. The school usesthel GE-

I ndividualized Guided Education program that most of the
other open- space schools have. Inlooking towardsthe
later 1970sit would seem that the new sewersinthe
southeast areamay open up new hous ng additionsthat
couldtax thefacilitiesat Jackson.
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Jackson

Date of construction-1962
1972 Addition of 10 Classrooms,
Gym and MediaCenter

Principa sof Jackson School include:
1962 (6 months) Paul Pace
1965 - 1968 Joan Sherman
1962 - 1965 L orenaRiebhoff
1968 - Marion Pritchard



Jefferson Schoal,
3th and Park Avenue

Datesof construction -- 1920

Principal sof Jefferson School include:
1909 - 1910 Mr. Stone
1910- 1918 J. W. Atchley
1918 - 1937 W. Lee Jordan
1937 - 1939 C. I. Pease
1939 - 1944 Murray Work
1944 - 1952 Nelle Cunningham
1952 - 1957 Mildred Shay
1957 - 1963 Ruth Pritchard
1963 - 1966 Robert Langerak
1966 - 1968 Joan Sherman
1968 - 1971 Harry Elder

1971

Louise Silver

JEFFERSON SCHOOL GradesK-6
2425 \Watrous
Site-2.7 acres

Thegenera consolidation of schoolsinand around Des
Moinesthat took placein 1907 also included the Oak
Grovedidtrict. Thisinvolved the present Jefferson School
aswell assomeland that wasoutsidethecity.

The present brick school at SW 30th and Park Avenue
wasbuiltin 1920. It replaced athree room structure of
wood and brick which served thetypically rural commu-
nity for many yearsprior to that time. It enrolled grades
kindergartenthrough eighth.

For many yearsafter the* new” building wasbuilt, the
pupilswalked the dirt roadsthat served the neighbor-
hood. Asmore houseswere built and improved roads
were constructed there becametraffic hazards.

Jefferson School continued to provideaprogramfor
grades K-8 until enrollment pressure madeit necessary to
transfer the seventh and eighth gradesto Lincolninthe
late 1940's. Somefifth gradersand al thesixth grade
pupilsaretaken by busto Wright School.

Jefferson School wasnamed in honor of President
Thomas Jefferson one of theintellectud giantsof our
foundingera.

A new Jefferson elementary building wasplannedfor the
siteat 2425 WatrousAvenue. The construction contracts
totaled $968,491.00. With itsopening in September,
1972, the old Jefferson School at S.W. 30th and Park
Avenuewas closed and thewindows boarded up. The
new structure was planned according to the open-space
concept, utilizing severa levelssinceit washbuiltintothe
sideof thehill. Ampleschool groundshaveprovided a
setting for anatural forest areawith awidevariety of
trees, plantsand shrubs being planted as an outdoor

ecol ogy-type classroom. The upper elementary grades
from Jeffersonwho formerly attended Brody Junior High
School sincethetimewhen Brody opened now areable
to behousedinthe new. Jefferson School. Thebuilding
utilized thel GE multi-unit program. Continued expansion
of new housing now only inthe Camelot areabut inthe
areaaround S.W. 42nd and Park Avenueindicate that
enrollmentswill beclimbingintheyearsahead.
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KING SCHOOL GradesK-6
1849 Forest
Site—3 acres

Martin Luther King, Jr. (1929-1968) BorninAtlanta,
Georgia, son and grandson of Baptist ministers. Graduated
from Morehouse College, completed advanced studies at
Crozer Theologica Seminary and Boston University. Hewas
ordainedin 1947. He married Coretta Scott in 1953 and
became pastor of Dexter Avenue Baptist Churchin Mont-
gomery, Alabama, in 1957.

Hereceived the 1964 Nobel Peace Prizefor hiswork in
leading non- violent demongtrationsfor Negrorights. This
program of non-violencewasbased on Christian concepts,
Thoreau’sand Gandhi’ swritingsand practices.

Hewas assassinated in Memphis, Tennessee, in 1968 and
buriedinAtlanta, Georgia, leaving hiswidow and four
children.

A History of Martin Luther King Elementary School
1849 Forest Avenue, DesMoines, lowa

Thehistory of Martin Luther King School goesback to
two elementary schools—Kirkwood School |ocated at 27th
and Clark and Nash School located at 1326-16th Street.
Generation upon generation had passed through the ha s of
thesetwo buildingsthat wereto be- comeMartin Luther
King Schooal.

IN1968, planswere beginningto takeformwhichwould
eventudly resultinanew, singleeducationd facility toreplace
Nash and Kirkwood. The Board of Education and other
concerned citizensweretaking anew look at processes used
for new school devel opment.

In 1971, aCharrettewasheld to begin thefina stagesof
planning for thesinglefecility. Charrettewasdefined asa
vehicleincluded parents, senior citizens, students, teachers
adminigtrators, businessmen, agency representatives, reli-
giousleadersuniversity personnel and specia consultants.

Dr. CharlesLink and Dr. Donald Brubaker served as
coordinatorsof the Charrette processand wereresponsible
for the developmental team selected to interpret the educa-
tiond findingsof the Charrette participantsfrom the Nash/
Kirkwood community.

From the Charrette, cameahumanistic, multi-cultured
directionto program development and facility planning. The
process produced an educational facility which wasto:
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Constructed 1974

Principasof King Include:
1973-1974 Howard Hart
1974-1975 DonWilliams
1975- Jm Mitchell
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Logan

Dates of construction -- 1895, 1911, 1962

Principal of Logan School include:
1907 - 1911 Mary Doran
1911 - 1914 EmmaBradley
1914 - 1916 Jennie Holmberg
1916 - 1918 BelleMcConnédll (Kindey)
1918 - 1921 Cora Parr
1921 - 1936 AnnaHartigan
1936 - 1944 EllaBaker
1944 - 1952 Ruth Pritchard
1952 - 1965 Kenneth Rankin
1965 - 1972 Don Shaw
1972-  Udell Cason, Jr.

1) provideacurriculum of relevancy.

2) providefor development of self-worth and pride
through the educational programs.

3) servetherecredationa and health needsof thetotal
community,

4) draw studentsfrom other communitiesinan effort
to createamulti-cultured educational setting.

The school to be an open-spaced building with an
individualized gpproachtolearning. Thelearning design
wasto serveadultsaswell aschildren.

Thecitizensof DesMoines|ndependent Community
School Didtrict voted bondsfor the construction of the new
building and in 1972 began to build thisfine new structure.

Martin Luther King School opened itsdoorsin Septem-
ber of 1974 with an enrollment of 480 students.

LOGAN SCHOOL GradesK-6
East 17th and Garfield
Site-4.3 acres

L ogan School wasin the Pleasant Corner School
District which waslater renamed the Capitol Park School
District. The high school for Capitol Park waslocated on
the second floor of the present Wallace School

L ogan wasnamed for General John Alexander Logan of
Civil War fame. Hedied in 1886.

Early recordsrecord thefollowing milestones:

1900-Started Department of Drawingin Capitol Park
Schools. Therewasaprogramfor all gradesand high
schoolsin charcoal, pencil, crayola, water colorsand
SCISSOrs.

1905-Capitol Park School Board purchased manual
training equipment for both grammar and high schoals.

1907-Pleasant Corner consolidated with 16 other
districtsto makethe DesMoines School District with 51
buildingsinal.

190-7-08 Logan addition paid $3,201.61. Thiswas
begun by Board of former Capitol Park School Digtrict.

1907-08 Number of high schoolsreduced fromsix to
three. “Capitol Park High School continued until Christmas
when theresignation of the principal seemed to makethe
timepropitiousfor closng thisschool aso.”
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1907-08 Six gradescontinued at L ogan, with grades 7-8 going to Capitol Park. Fiveteachersem-
ployed at Logan with 51.2 pupilsper teacher. Thiswasthe highest average enroliment inthecity.

Beginning in 1969 L ogan School becamethe one predominate black school inthedistrict that was
eligiblefor participation of white studentsinthevoluntary transfer program. Through the yearsanumber of
white students have elected to attend L ogan rather than their neighborhood school and to participateinthe
widevariety of programsthat are offered inthat building. L ogan has an undepartmentalized programfor
gradesK -3 and adepartmentalized program for grades4-6. Inthemid-1970sit hasTitlel Reading, Title
| Math K-4, an early learning center, Head Start, Follow Through, Titlel Child Development, Titlelll
Wisconsin Designed Reading M anagement Program. For after school hours, thereisacomponent of the

community cultural recreational program operated by the CDA.

Also, Logan hasparticipated inthe School-BusinessAlliance Program aswell asbeing one of six

school sparticipating inthe Shared Activities concept.

LONGFELLOW SCHOOL
East 7th and Fremont
Site-5.2 acres

Asearly as 1880, it was hecessary to have aschool-
houseinthearea, known asthe Fifth Wardin the East Des
Moines School District. Because of thisneed, Bremer
School was opened in a Swedish Church which stood at
DesMoinesand Second Streets. The peoplethen autho-
rized the School Board to purchaseland for anew school
inthewestern part of theward. It wasnot until 1882 that
the purchase was made, and thetract bought was on Pine
Street near Walker. The District also authorized the issu-
anceof bondsfor erection of aschoolhouseonthesite.
Thisschool wascalled Longfellow after the poet Henry
Wadsworth Longfellow.

In 1885, because of theincreasing school population,
three  moreroomswere added to thefirst structureand
two roomswere equipped inthe basement. From 1882 to
1901 the staff had increased from threeto, thirteen and the
enrollment from 204 to 51 1. By 1901 L ongfellow had the
largest enrollment inthe city. Owing to the very crowded
conditionsof thebuilding, in 1901 the boundarieswere
changed and additiona |and was purchased to alow for
another additionto the school. Thisenabled Longfellow to
returnto the seating capacity of 40 per room. Still more
children enrolled so the seating capacity per room had to
beincreased. In 1920 thelast addition to the school was
built, and at that timethe playground wasarranged in three
levels

In 1907 Ward Five was merged with the Independent
School Digtrict. At that timethe eval uation wasasfollows:
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Datesof construction-

Old Longfellow School-1882-1965
New Longfellow School-1961

Principasof Longfdlow include:

1881- 1884 FrancesLawrence
1884 - 1913 Syhil Jeffries

1913 - 1914 Elizabeth Culbertson
1914 - 1922 Anna Stohlgren
1933 - 1934 Edwin Miner

1934 - 1937 Robert Simpkins
1937 - 1939 Walter Trott, Jr.
1939 - 1944 Nédllie Cunningham
1944 - 1952 Kathryn Blanchard
1952 - 1954 L eonaWilcox

1954 - 1962 Patience Guthrie
1962 - 1964 Irene Perkins

1964 - 1970 Nadine Machesney
1970- 1971 MevinKiner

1971 - 1972 Robert McGraw
1973- Keith Banwart



Origina Cost $35,625.00
Lot 7,000.00
Furniture 2,375.00

Because of theroute of the DesMoinesFreeway, “old” Longfellow School wasrazed inthe
summer of 1962. A new site at East Seventh and Filmore Streetswas purchased.,

By thefall of 1962, anew Longfellow (often referred to as“ The GlassHouse”) was opened
to accommodate the children of old L ongfellow and Webster School, which a so had been razed
during thesummer. Thisconsisted of 13 classrooms, 2 al purposerooms, agymnasium, a
library, aspeech therapy center, music practice rooms, and compl ete officefacilities.

When Longfellow openedin 19,62, there were many vacant roomsbecause of thefreeway
and urban renewal program. Therewere 8 teachersand an enrollment of 189. In 1963, because
of the overcrowded conditionsin the M cK eeand Douglas School areas, children weretrans-
ported to Longfellow by public school bus, and 12 classroomswere then used. A hot lunch
programwasinitiated at L ongfellow the sameyear, and alibrary aidewas added to the staff.

In 1964, with second gradefrom McKeg, third, fifth, and sixth gradesfrom Douglasand the
opening of asecond classfor retarded children, al room facilitieswere being used whichin-
cluded theuse of thetwo al purposeroomsasfour classrooms. The enrollment was 454 (235
buschildren) and therewere seventeen teachers, aprincipal, aclerk, alibrary aide, anurse, two
custodians, and four cafeteriaworkers.

Longfellow isanother eementary school that isfedling theforcesof declining enrollments. It
maintainsakK-6 undepartmentalized program for the classrooms. For specia programsit has
Head Start, Follow Throughin .gradesK-3, Titlel ReadinginK-6, Titlel MathinK-4, and a
Titlelll Learning DisabilitiesProgram.
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Loveoy School GradesK-6
801 S.E. KenyonAve.
Site- 10.1 acres

Love oy Elementary School opened in September, 1972,
on 10.1 acresitein southeast DesMoines. It wasbuilt to
accommodate the new housing that had devel oped and had
resulted in overcrowding at Mitchell School and Granger
School. Thebeginning enrollment at Lovejoy was 367, and
contrary towhat ishappening in most DesMoinesschools,
theenrollment isincreasing—446 for the Fall of 1975. : !

Thebrick building wasbuilt on the open space concept Lovejoy
with ingtructional mediacenter asthefoca point of the
building. Theschool began by utilizing thel GE organizationa

structureand currently has 2 multi-aged units. The staff Construction - 1972
emphasi zesindividudizationin mathematicsand language
artsand plansgroup work around themesthat have build- Principal: Mary Hines 1972

ing-wideinterest. Inthe 1975-76 school year thethemes
will be centered around bicentennia activities.

The building wasnamed in honor of Dr. E. Parrish
Lovegoy whowasalong timeschool physicianfor theDes
MoinesPublic Schools. A brief synopsisof Dr. Lovgoy’s
backgroundfollows:

E. PARISH LOVEJOY

Born October 20, 1901 at Rippey, lowa-the son of Dr.
H.E. Lovejoy and Mrs. MevaMcCool Loveoy. At ageof 8
hemoved, with hisfamily to Colorado.

On October 31, 1926, hewasmarried to MissEvelyn
MercedesWildenstein of Raton, New Mexico, agraduate
of . LukesHospital School of Nursingin Denver, Colo-
rado.

On February 1, 1,927 Dr. and Mrs. Love oy cameto Des
Moineswhere he haspracticed ever sinceexcept for time
spentintheservice.

For many yearsamember of the lowa Society of Anes-
thesiologists, American Soci ety of Anesthesiologistsand
| nternational AnesthesiaResearch Society, President lowa
Society in 1948.

Served 3 yearsand 3 months during World Wer Il inthe
U. S. Naval Reserve, mostly as Chief of Anesthesiaat the
U. S.Naval Hospital at Mareldand, Californiaand Base
Hospital 15inthe South Pecific. Retiredin 1962 asa
captaininthemedical corpsof theNaval reserve.

Served asmedical examiner inthe DesMoinesPublic
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Lucas

Datesof construction --
1916, 1953, 1962

Principa swho served thisbuilding are-
1907 - 1930 SaraDavis

1930- 1933 Isabell Marshall
1933 - 1934 Edwin Miner

1934 - 1937 Robert Simpkins
1937 - 1947 Nelle Cunningham
1947 - 1952 Kathryn Blanchard
1952 - 1964 Mildred Shay
1964 - 1966 Carl Fehrle

1966 - 1970 Cecil Leonard
1970- 1971 JamesMitchell
1971 - 1974 Ruth Collins

1974 - Keith Banwart

Schoolsfrom 1928 to 1964. Since 1964 hasbeen
director of Health Services, DesMoines Independent
Community School Didrict.

Dr. Loveg oy wason thestaff of lowal utheran, lowa
Methodist, Mercy and BroadlawnsHospitals. He
formedthefirst group of M.D. anesthesiologistin Des
Moinesand wasaPast President of the Society of
Anesthesiologists of lowa. Hewas also amember of the
Board of Directorsof the DesMoinesHealth Center.

Asaschool physician hereceived great satisfaction
from examining and counseling school children. Dr.

L ove oy wasan independent person who believed that
doctorsshould givetheir best inthe care of thesick and

needly.

LUCASSCHOOL GradesK-6
1953 East 16th and Capitol
Site-5.2 acres

Theoriginal buildingwasconstructed in 1874 at East
16th and Capitoal. It was of brick veneer and had atotal
of six rooms. Theorigina siteconsisted of Lots 15, 16,
17, 18; Block 44 of Stewart’saddition. Theoriginal
building wasdestroyed by fire. Thethree-story part of
the present structurewasbuilt in 1916. The school
groundswere considerably expandedin 1952 and again
intheearly 1960 swith theremoval of al houseswest of
the school and in back of the building.

In 1880 the East DesMoines Board of Education
decided that the name East 16th Street School was not
adequate. Thereforethey gaveit thenameof Lucas-in
honor of Robert L ucas, thefirst governor of the Territory
of lowa. Governor Lucasmade provisionfor public
schoolsand their maintenance. He stood for good
government, prohibition and high mora standards. In
1901 Lucashad grown to abuilding of eight roomswith
an enrollment of 466 children.

The 1953 addition updated L ucasfacilitiesagreat
deal. The 1962 wing added four classrooms, acombina-
tion gym-cafeteriaand aserving kitchen. About haf a
sguare block of homeswas demolished to doublethe
school grounds.

Inthemid-1970s L ucas School isfaced withthe
declining enrollment situationwhichistypica of many
school units. It maintainsan undepartmentalized program
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ingradesK-3and asix-unit Plan A for grades4,5,6. For
gpecid programsit maintainsHead Start, Titlel Reading, Title
| Math. It also hasaspecia education resourceroomand a
learning disabilitiesclass. For after school hours, thereis
participation inthecommunity cultura recrestiona program of
the CDA-Community Development Agency.

Going intothemid-1970's, L ucas School hasbeen faced
withamoremobile pupil population and areductionin
enrollment over previousyears. Thistrend hasbeentypical of
other school units. Theenrollment at L ucashasfluctuated
between 268 and 310 pupils (excluding Head Start) during
1974.

Inaddition to Head Start, other programs operating at
LucasareTitlel Math, Titlel Reading, specia education
resourceroomand alearning disabilitiesclass.

INn1975, Lucaswill bereceiving aKindergarten Speech
Classand two self-contained specia education classes.

Asanadternativetothedefunct LucasP.T.A., parentshave
organized aParent Community Council.

MADISON SCHOOL GradesK-6
East 5th and Madison
Site-6.0 acres

Prior to World Wer 11, there were few homes north of
DouglasAvenue and the present site of the school wasonce
used for grazing cattle, and later asthe KiwanisBall Park.

Theneed for an elementary school inthisareawasfirst
realized in 1926 when the sitewas purchased from awell
known farmer, Mr. Hoffman. However, the actual construc-
tion of the school did not take place until after World War 1.
The school opened on November 17, 1952 with five teachers
and 82 pupils. Asmoreand morefamiliesmoved into the new
areg, alater addition wasadded in 1957 to include 22 rooms.

M adison School appearsto have been named because of
itsclose proximity to Madison Avenue. Inresearching thefiles
and documents of the City Library and the City Street De-
partment, someinteresting factscomeinto view. TheAvenue
first appearsonthe City Ledger in 1893. Thiswould tend to
indicatethe Avenue was probably named after the 4th Presi-
dent of the United States, James. Madison. However, the
resource department of the City Library indicatesthat during
the 1920’ sa prominent educator and promotor of Des
Moinesby the name of CharlesMadison wasa so active
during thetime period that the school sitewas purchased.
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Madison

Datesof construction
1952 One-third
1957 Two-thirds

Principalsof thisbuilding have been-
1951 - 1953 Maurice Lewis

1953 - 1963 L orene Lightfoot
1963- 1972 Kathryn Christian
1972- Larry C. Martindale



M adison was one of thefirst schoolsin DesMoinesand the State of lowato offer programsfor
thevisualy impaired, academically taented, mentally disabled, and childrenwith learning disabilitiesin
additionto theregular school program.

During themid 1970’ sdeclining enrolIment provided classroom spacefor the Art Workshop K -
12, Homebound Instruction Program K-12, and aChild Study Center. Presently, the primary unit
offersasemi-departmentaized program which emphasi zes shared teaching responsi bilities between
gradelevels, whilethe upper unit offersamore departmentali zed programinwhich teachersteachin
only oneor two academic areas. The upper unit programiscalledthe*MEMPHASS 4-5-6 PLAN”
and was selected by both the staff and students. Three additional classroomsoffer programsfor the
mentaly disabled (primary and intermediate), and for children with learning disabilities.

Of specid interest to both parentsand students arethe morethan 15 different club activitieswhich
are sponsored by the Madison Staff and interested parents. The main emphasis of these club activities
isto promote self awareness, citizenship, sportsmanship, courtesy, school pride, and asan extension
nrichment of the regular school program.

M adison hasa so beeninvolved in anumber of innovative programsduring the past few years. In
1971 Madison was one of 250 schoolsacrossthe United Statesto participatein aspecial testing
project/eval uation with the Educational Testing Service determining whether or not schoolswith
comprehensivereading programswere better or worse than school swithout such programs. At
M adison, studentsreceive reading instruction commensuratewith their ability and performance.
Madison wasa so oneof four DesMoines Elementary Schoolsto runapilot project with the
Westinghouse L earning Cooperation regarding School Criterion Objective Referenced Evaluation
(SCORE) inthe academic areas of Social Studiesand Science. Madison School hasalsobeena
receiving school for studentsfrom several inner-city schoolswho havevolunteered to participatein
theschool districts Voluntary Transfer Program which originated in 1968. 1n 1972, the school district
adopted another innovative program referred to asthe Career Education Program and Madison was
one of seven other schoolsto help launch thisspecial project that wasto sweep acrosstheentire
district during the next few years. In 1973, Madison School received aNationa Certificate of Com-
mendation from the American National Red Crossfor planning and initiating aninnovative Red Cross
Good Neighbor Day. In 1974, Madison School wasthefirst elementary school in DesMoinesto
launch aspecial two day and one night out-of-town Outdoor Education Project for sixth graders.
During thissameyear, Madi son students adopted the Lion astheir school emblem with the motto
Strength, Courage, and Wisdom. Another student composed aschool song and thiswas adopted by
the school staff and student body al so.

Of specid interest isthefact that Madison and Cattell Elementary Schoolsarelocatedinthe
largest Scandinavian and Norwegian community within the city. Our communitiesarevery proud of
their schoolsand takean activeinterest in the education of their children.
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MANN SCHOOL GradesK-6
S.W. 9th and Amos
Site-5.4 acres

Horace Mann Elementary School opened itsdoorstoits
first“pupil customers’ at the beginning of the second
semester of school in 1962. Theenrollment totaled 361, in
gradeskindergarten through gradefive. They were pupils
who weretransferred from Maple Grove and Watrous
schoals.

Horace Mann School isabeautiful school located at
Southwest Ninth and Amosstreetsin South DesMoines. Its
boundary line onthe northwas Burnham Street until the
Maple Grove Building at S.W. 9th and Army Post was
closed in September, 1972, when the north boundary was
extended toArmy Post. Studentsin that areanow attend
Mann. It extendsto the Warren County Line on the south.
Southwest Ninth Street formsitseast boundary. Southwest
Fourteenthisitswest boundary.

Thesdlection of thesitefor theschool wasadifficult one.
Because of theflight approach pattern tothe DesMoines
Municipal Airport, great care had to be used to meet the
necessary government safety regulation. Although the school
siteisonly fiveand onefourth acresinsize, it proved to be
quite costly becauseit was necessary to removetwelve
residences. Theover al purchase pricewas $117,050.00

Wetherell, Harrison and Wagner werethe architects
selected to design the school building, which hassevera
uniquefactors. Itisatwo story brick building withan
expansive use of glasswindows. It containstwo kindergar-
tenswhich openinto apartially covered court yard.

Thispatio, or court yard, may be used for aplay areaor
dramatic activities. It isequipped with flood lightsand sound
sysem.

Each classroom onthefirst floor hasitsown outside
entranceaswel| astoilet facilities. Most of theclassrooms
havefolding partitionsbetween two roomsfor largeclass
usewhichisdesrableinamulti-unit school .

Onthetop floor, the classroomsarelocated in the center,
withthehall corridorson the exterior of the north and south
Sdesof thebuilding.

Theeast entrance of the buildingisfinished completely as
aglassenclosed stairwell. Future planscall for an addition
of six rooms, three upper and three lower, to be attached to
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thiseast entrance.

Theentireschool containsthirteen classrooms, art room, central library, mediacenter, service
kitchen and agym, which servesasthelunch room and multi purposeroom. It includesofficeand
nurse’ s space aswell asteachers |ounge and work rooms, aspeech therapist office and two
music practicerooms.

Congtruction of the building wasdone by W. H. Breiholz Company at atotal cost of
$489,994.00.

The parents, teachers, and children take great pridein thefact that the school bearsthe name of
Horace Mann, who isknown asthe* Father of the American Public School” . It washewho
pioneered the concept that education should be universal, non-sectarian and free. Through his
influence, thefirst teacher training normal school was established 1839. Hewas an ardent cham-
pion of free speech, labor and women'’srights. He often defended negroesin the courts. He
enthusiastically believed that education wasthe basisfor democracy and said “ Thecommon
school isthegreatest discovery ever made by man”.

Peter J. Cunningham wasassigned asthefirst principal at Horace Mann School in January,
1962. Vi Coldren wasassigned as principal in September 1962, and continued until her retirement
inJune, 1971. LylaM. Lynchwasassigned asprincipa July 1, 1971 andiscontinuing at the
present time.

Horace Mann officialy becamean | GE ungraded multi-unit School in 1972. Individualized
ingtructionisofferedto al studentsintheareas of Math, Reading, Spelling and writing. At present
planning for individualizationintheareasof Languageinstruction and communication skills.

Horace Mann was one of the pilot schoolsin Elementary Career Educationin 1973. Thefifteen
Career Education clustersare presented on arotating basisin order to build awarenessat both
primary and intermediate levels. Wework closely with theM cCombs Jr. High in Career Educa
tion to themutua advantage of studentsin both schools.

Criterion Referenced Testing (SCORE) was piloted in Social Studiesin 1973-74. Scorewas
also pilotedin Science processesin 1974-75.

The school offersstudents specia helpin Speech and Learning Disabilities.

Parentsform astrong volunteer forceand participate actively inthe activities of the school.
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McKEE SCHOOL GradesK-5
East 38th and Easton Blvd.
Site-5.0 acres

Lateinthe summer of 1928 one of -thefamous Camp
Dodge housing unitswas moved to the present McKee
School grounds. It was christened “ Four Mile School”
probably out of deferenceto theinfamous creek of that
namethat isnearby.

InMay, 1931, the Board of Education renamed the
structure, in honor of thelate Edwin T. Meredith. The
formal dedication took placeonArbor Day, 1932, with
Mrs. Meredith present.

On March 30, 1948, bidsweretaken for anew nine-
room school with gymnasiumand auditorium. Thebuilding
cost wasmore than $591,000 and wasto house 300
children.

Thename of Meredith School was changed to Margaret
McKee School in 1959. MissMcKeewasaformer
physica education director of the DesMoinesPublic
Schools.

TheMeredithnamewastransferred to anew junior High
School at West 47th and Madison. The Meredith family
had given about 50 acres of land that would ultimately
house not only Meredith junior High School but also
Hoover Senior High. Itisestimated that theland value of
thisgift wasin the neighborhood of $300,000.

In 1960 eight additional classroomswere added tothe
south end of McKee School.

With the opening of Hoyt Middle School in September,
1972, the sixth grade of both M cK ee and Douglas School
wastransferred to the new structure. At thispoint, McKee
then became an elementary school, K-5. It also hastwo
roomsfor the educable mentally retarded pupils. Thereis
very heavy participationinthecommunity cultural recreation
programfor thisarea. Extensivenight school classesare
operated inthebuildingwith agreat deal of participation.
Since Four Mile Community Center opened we haveno
night classes--only after school classesfor children.

A classfor theHearing Impaired isbeing added in Sep-
tember of 1975.
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Datesof congtruction

1928 Wooden annex moved to site
1949 1<t unit of new building

1960 eight classroom addition

Principalsat McKeewere-

1928-1937 W. Lee Jordan
1937-1939 Ednal .E. Peterson
1939-1943 Ruth Pritchard
1943-1945 AlmedaNe son
1945-1952 Edith Patterson
1952-1957 Kenneth Smith
1957-1958 LorraineKimball Reed
1958-1964 JamesWise
1964-1965 Marjorie Schwien
1965-1972 James Daugherty
1972-1974 LydiaRogers

1974  Ruth Collins



McKinley

Datesof construction
1904 Two-thirds
1927 One-third

Principal swho have administered
McKinley are:

1907-1912 LauraMatthews
1912-1938 Alice Bradshaw
1939-1946 Edna Peterson
1946-1952 Florence Weisbrod
1952-1955 K enneth Rankin
1955-1957 Lorraine Reed
1957-1963 Nelle Cunningham
1963-1965 Patience Guthrie
1965-1966 K enneth Rankin
1967-1972 Snowden Moon
1972-  Patrick Moran

McKINLEY SCHOOL GradesK-6
1916 S.E. 6th
Site-1.6 acres

Pupilsinthe McKinley attendance areaattended \Wash-
ington School until the present building wasbuilt in 1904.
McKinley School and Greenwood School wasbuilt inthe
early 1900’ saccording to the school philosophy of their
day. Thereasoning wasagrammar school has8 grades
and soit has8 rooms. A building was designed with grades
[-4 on thefirst floor and has 5-8 on the second floor.
Kindergarten wasusualy housed in aseparate structure.
Theboard of education honored thememory of William
McKinley, 25th President of the United States, by naming
thebuildingfor him,

Theadditionin 1927 included thegym, auditoriumand
office spaces. McKinley School wasnamed for William
McKinley, thetwenty-fifth president of the United States.

Inthemid-1970sMcKinley School isfacing declining
enrollment asmany other DesMoinesschools. It maintains
aK-6 undepartmentalized classroom program for the
approximately 240 studentswho arethere. It hasTitlel
Reading, Titlel Math, aswell asthe Career Opportunity
project. Thefamily learning center hasreceived agreat
dedl of nationwide publicity and drawsanumber of parents
totheschool. Thereisalso agreat deal of adult participa
tioninthecommunity culturd recreationa program of the
CDA.

MITCHELL SCHOOL GradesK-6
Porter & South Union
Site-8.2 acres

J. 0. Mitchell School wasdesigned by the architects,
Dougher, Frevert, and Ramsey. Construction was com-
pleted in 1958 at an approximate cost of $445,000. The
building contains 14 classroomsand acombination cafete-
riaand gym. Approximately 400 children, thebooks,
furniture, and al school equi pment weremoved fromArmy
Post School to Mitchell School October 15, 1958.

Flagraising ceremoniesat the newly completed Mitchell
School wereheld at 8 0’ clock on the opening day, Mon-
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day, October 18., 1958. Members of Fort DesMoines
American L egion Post 669 presented theflag to the new
school faculty. Mrs. Walter Hiatt, in memory of her brother,
Carl Pack, madethe presentation to Lydia Rogers, school
principal. Commander R. H. Flowersand Walter Hiatt
raised theflag for thefirsttime.

Mr. William Findley, retired Assi stant Superintendent of
Schools, waspartialy responsiblefor the school being
named J. O. Mitchell. Mr. Mitchell wasateacher and had
served asprincipal of severa schoolslocatedinthisarea,
Maple Grove, Park Avenue and Fort DesMoines. Hewas
alargemaninstature, strict disciplinarian, but very kindly.
Former pupilsrelate storiesto verify thisfact oneof his
favoriteformsof punishment wasto havethe offender
“wak thebeat” ontheplayground.

A pictureof J. 0. Mitchell was presented to the school at
aDad’ snight PT.A. meeting February 10, 1959. Jay A.
Mitchell, DesMoinesattorney and son of J. 0. Mitchell
madethe presentation on behalf of hisfamily. School Board
member L. L. Daubert accepted the picturein behalf of the
board.

Inthemid-1970sMitchell enrollmentswererdieved with
the opening of the new L ovejoy School to the eastern edge
of the attendance area. Both Mitchell and the Ft. Des
Moinesprimary unit are operated asasingle attendance
center under thejurisdiction of oneprincipal. It dso utilizes
anorganizationa plan somewhat smilarto IGE.

Mitchell hasaK -3 non-graded language arts program
withasix-unit plan A for grades4, 5, and 6. It also utilizes
anorganizationa plan somewhat smilartol.GE. A centraly
located Instructional Media Center has been devel oped
through thejoint efforts of the student council, parentsand
faculty. The center boastsan extensive collection of audio-
materials (tapesand records) and contains 34 study carrels
built by acommittee of parents. Community Education
classesareoffered for children and parentsbefore and after
regular school hours. Someof the coursesoffered during
the past school year were: guitar lessons, cake decorating,
dimnadtics, bicycle safety, wrestling and bowling. Other
programsincluded inthecurriculumare: VVolunteer program,
Titlel Reading and Mathematics, Specific Learning Disabili-
ties, Speech Therapy, Kindergarten Waupon Project,
Individualized Mathematics Program Grades 4-6, Wiscon-
sin Design Study Skills, Career Education, Student Tutors.
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Datesof construction -- 1958

Mitchell

Principa swho have served at Mitchell

ae

1958-1966 LydiaRogers

1966-

Lawrence Hardy



Elementary School Activities-- 1930's

MONROE SCHOOL GradesK-6
30th and Hickman
Site-5acres

Just after the turn of the century, Monroe School began
asalittle one- room brick school on oneacre of ground
known as Pleasant Hill and located at 2313 30th Street,
on the northeast corner of 30th and Hickman Road. It was
long ago converted into aresidence. About 1905 the city
closed the school and traded that piece of ground for a
littlelarger acreage where the school now stands.

For about the next fourteen years, someof the children
inthisareamadethelong, hard trek to Kirkwood School.
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Other youngsterstrudged through different fieldsand
woodsto Byron Rice School.

At last, afew determined mothers met the school board
with such powerful persuasionthat inthefal of 1918, a
temporary building was erected where the auditorium now
stands, housing two teachersin two roomswith an enroll-
ment of 6 1. The sameyear theMothers Club wasorga
nized withMrs. J. H. Gooch, now deceased, as president.
By theend of the year therewere 20 members.

Thenew school was named after JamesMonroe, fifth
president of the United States. Hewasaquiet, ordinary
man, not brilliant, but he had proved himself dependable
and honest. At twenty-five he wasthe youngest member of
the Constitutional Congress, but hewasfifty-ninebefore
becoming president. JamesMonroewaswedll-liked, and his
picture now hangsinthefoyer of Monroe Elementary.

With an enrollment of 87 in 1923, abrand new 4-room
building (including our present kindergarten roomwiththe
bay window) was erected. The 2-room “Old Shack”
temporary building wasstill in usewhen, by 1940, enroll-
ment “ soared” to 183. Two moreroomswere added, and
in 1944 the* Old Shack” was connected to themain
building.

By 1950, the new addition to themain building of nine
classrooms, an auditorium, and gymnasi um was compl eted.
At that time, the school board bought enough additional
ground for our present five acres. Still another addition of
10 classroomswasbuilt in 1959, and the Old Shack finally
put to rest. That year, the sixth graderswent to Franklin
whilethebuilding wasin progress.

In 1975, James M onroe Elementary School hasan
enrollment of nearly 500 students. The PT.A. isstrong, and
aHome-School Community Advisory Council isnow
activein helping providefor the best educationa program
for students.

Theeducationa structureat Monroeissdlf-contained
for gradesK-4 and departmentalized (DesMoinesPlanA)
ingrades5 and 6. Monroeisan EEO receiving school and
usescommunity volunteersin theeducationd program. The
Wisconsin Designfor Study Skillsisused at Monroein
grades 3-6.

Someadditional developmentsat JamesMonroe
Elementary School arethe use of the school asaCommu-
nity Education center for students and adults, and the use of
aschool Child-Study-Team for student help (academic and
socia) at theschool level. In addition, aMonroe student
council hasbeen activated.
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Monroe

Datesof construction
-1924 1950 1959

Principalswho have served Monroe are:
1918 - 1922 W. Lee Jordan
1922 - 1923 LauraMoulton
1923 - 1926 Herman Eickelberg
1926 - 1927 Jeannette Mills
1927 - 1930 GeorgiaQuigley
1930 - 1936 BlancheV. Toohey
1936 - 1937 James Burr
1937 - 1946 M ae Heathershaw
1946 - 1955 James Daugherty
1955 - 1956 Paul Pace
1956 - 1960 James Daugherty
1960 - 1964 CharlesMindling
1964 - 1966 Charles Pedersen
1966 - 1973 L oretta Patrick
1973- Stephen Lipovac
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Moare

Datesof construction:
-1959

Principalswho have served at Moore
School are:
1950 - 1952 Frances Meneough
1952 - 1954 James Daugherty
1954 - 1963 AlmedaNelson
1963 - 1972 John A. Waldo
1972 - 1974 Gary Sheldon
1974 - Tom Stokes

MOORE SCHOOL GradeK-6
52nd and Douglas
Site-7.1 acres

Thefirst wing of the school wascalled Fair Meadows, but
the namewas changed | ater to honor Dr. Fred B. Moore,
thefirst Head of the DesMoines SchoolsHealth Depart-
ment.

Thefirst officia mention of an eementary school to be
built at 52nd and Douglas appearsin the Board minutes of
July 15, 1924, at which timethereal estate agent was
authorized to secure priceson e ementary school sitesfor
northwest DesMoines.

In 1944 the Board of Education devel oped abuilding
program consisting of 21 projectsincluding aproposal to
build at thissite, “thefirst four roomsof an e ementary
school.” Thebuilding program was presented to the voters
inMarch, 1945, and bondsfor the project were approved.

Becauseof thedifficulty of securing building materidsin
theimmediate post-war eraand because of the pressure of
crowded conditionsat other locations, preparations of plans
for thisbuilding werenot started until April, 1949. The
contract waslet in September, 1949, and the building
occupied in September, 1950.

Additionsin 1954 and 1959 have madethisone of the
most modern e ementary schoolsinthemidwest. Thefront
wing onthenorthwasbuiltin 1954 and the east wing was
added in 1959.

Inthe mid-1970sthiscontinuesto be oneof thelarger
schoolswith undepartmentalized classesfor gradesK-4 and
asix-unit programfor grades 5-6. It also has classesfor
childrenwithimpaired hearing andisareceiving school in
the EEO voluntary transfer program. Moorehasactivitiesin
adult education and classesgoing onin the after-school
hours.

Beginningin 1973, thesixth grade classesbecameactively
involvedin photography through agrant fromthe lowa
Council of FineArts. The students have become proficient
ingtill and motion pictures, development, animation, and
scriptwriting.

Parent involvement isemphasized with parentsinvolvedin
classroom activitiesand after school enrichment clubs.

An outside classroom has been constructed with various
treesand shrubs. Theclassroomisuitilized by all gradesfor
different learning experiences.

Pre-school classeshave been offered during theregular
school year and the summer months.
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MOULTON SCHOOL GradesK-6
7thand College
Site-3.0 acres

Intheearly 1960's Crocker School buildingwassoldto
the highway commission asit wasin thedirect path of the
new DesMoinesfreeway. It waslocated between Sixth
Avenue and Seventh Street, just north of School Street.

The DesM oines school board proposed remodeling of
the old North High school, then vacant, tobeused asa
replacement for Crocker School that would be demol-
ished. After approval in asuccessful school bondissue,
renovation began on the building located between Seventh
and Eighth Streets on CollegeAvenue. Thereplacement
building wasthen named Moulton Elementary school by
theboard.

Crocker enrollment dropped to alow of approximately
three hundred pupilsat thetimeof closingin June, 1962. In
previousyearsit wasnot unusual for six hundred or more
pupilsto be enrolled there. The declinewasgradual over a
period of four yearsafter the beginning of theRiver Hills
Urban Renewal project and Freeway work began. The
Urban Renewal project cleared all homesinthe areaeast
of Sixth Avenueand south of University Avenuewhichwas
alargeportion of the Crocker School district. Thefreeway
work cleared many homes and apartment buildingswest of
SixthAvenue.

Inthelast weeksthat Crocker wasin operation many
prominent DesMoinescitizensvisited thebuildingtoview
what they felt wasone of the historical monumentsto the
city. Crocker was one of the oldest public buildingsin Des
Moines, having been builtin 1874. Most visitorswere
former studentsand had sentimental feelingsabout the
building. Some requested and were permitted to purchase
small objectsasremembrances.

An open house was sponsored by the PTA and held at 8
PM.onMay 9, 1962 to giveal peoplewho wished an
opportunity tovisit thebuilding for thelast time. A short
programwasheldinthegymto honor all past PT.A.
presidentsin attendanceand Mrs. Winifred Nidiver. Mrs.
Nidiver had been ateacher forty-two yearsat Crocker
andwasretiring.

Crocker was demolished during the summer of 1962 by
burning. It wasused by astate agency for filming afire
traningfilm.

Moulton Elementary school opened September 1962.
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Maiilton

Datesof construction
-1914 1915 1930 1962
(remodeled)

Principa swho have served Moulton
School are:
1962 - 1969 Peter Cunningham
1969 - 1971 Cecil Leonard
1971 - 1975 JamesMitchell
1975-  Gary Sheldon



Onepart of the building, the original section on thewest, had been demolished because of age. Other
sectionsbuilt at much later dateswere remodel ed into classrooms. Therewere 15 classroomsand one
kindergarten. Thekindergarten roomisquitean attraction duetoitssize, draperies, lighting and | atest
equipment. Other facilitiesincludelarge offices, cafeteria, library, auditorium, gym and locker rooms.

Thebrassdoor handlesfrom thefront doors of the origina building that was demolished wereinstalled
on the College Avenue doors of the present building. The name of the school, Moulton, wasin honor of
EmmaCase Moulton, aretired teacher who taught anumber of yearsin the building whenit wasNorth
High.

Theschool cafeteriabegan operationin October, 1962, asasatellite of the Merrill Junior High kitchen.
Atruck arrivesat the building bringing lunchesat 11:30 daily. Food istransported in steam tablesand
refrigerated carts.

Enrollment in 1962 waslessthan four hundred but had increased to five hundred seventy in June,
1965, three school yearslater. Thiswas dueto boundary changesand the mobility of the populationin
the Moulton district. Asan exampl e of the mobility, 379 new pupilsenrolled during 1964-1965 school
year and 249 transferred out.

Dueto therapidincreasein enrollment it was necessary inthe summer of 1964 to remodel two sec-
tionsof thebuilding for additiona classroom space. Two teacher positionswereadded for rooms 10 and
11. Thismade atotal of 18 teacherson the staff in 1964-1965.

Becauseenrollment wastill rising, remodeling of theformer high school swimming pool spaceinto two
classroomswasdonein 1965.

In 1966 the locker areawasremodel ed to add two more classroomsand aremedial reading clinic.

During the 1970-71 school year ageneral reorganization of M oulton school took place. Thisreorgani-
zation was made possible by agrant from the Model City Project which wasacommunity action pro-
gram. Teachers, community people, parents, and centra office staff planned and implemented the
Continuous Development Project. The main features of thisprogram were, individualized approachto
instruction, nofail concept, much parent input, staff reorganization utilizing theteam approach, and the
non-graded approach to student assgnment tolevels.

Much mediamateria and equipment was purchased with moniesfromtheModel City grant.

In an effort to make Moulton school a“ community based school” many evening activitieswere pro-
vided to adultsaswell aschildren. Thisprogram wasknown as*the Expanded use of School Fecilities
Program”, it |ater became the Community Cultureand Recreationa Activities Program.

INn 1972 aL earning Center was added to the program which provided an aternative educational
program for those studentswho could not functioninaregular classroom environment. During thissame
year aEarly Learning Center wasdevel oped for 3year old children. The Early Learning Center was
funded by Titlel funds.

Sabin school, two blocks east of Moulton was closed in the Spring of 1974 and merged with Moulton.
Thismerger was necessary dueto low enrollmentsin each school. The combined enrollmentsmade
M oulton aschool of 586 children whichincludesthe children of the pre-school programs. The staff at
Moulton numbered 64 1/2.

During the 1974-75 school year anew grant was awarded to M oulton from the Office of Child
Development. Moulton was one of fourteen schoolsinthe nation to receivethisgrant. Themain empha
sisof thisgrant wasto merge the Head Start program with the Public Schools. The project was called
Developmenta Continuity andwill beimplemented inthe Fall of 1975. Successwith thisproject will
enable M oulton to beademonstration project sitefor the Office of Child Development.
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OAK PARK SCHOOL GradesK-6
6thand Madison
Site-3.0 acres

Oak Park School was named, aswasthe park of the same
name, because of the many oak treesinthat area.

The school wasfounded in 1891 asan independent school
district to serve the Highland and Oak Park areas, extending
northward fromwhat isnow Ovid Avenue. Theorigina
building consisted of four rooms. In 1893 ahigh school was
started on thethird floor. In the genera consolidation of 1907
Oak Park joined the Des M oines I ndependent School District
and sent itshigh school pupilsto North High. It continued as
an eighth grade school until the opening of Warren Harding
Junior High. Fromthat timeit hasbeen asix gradeplus
kindergarten schoal.

Inthe 1930'sextensiveremodeling wasdoneand thebig
domed belfry and third floor sectionsweretorn cut.

Our enrollment hasheld steadily through theyearswiththe
peak for 75-76 coming in April with 523 students reported.

In 1970, the staff initiated aprogram of Individually Guided
Education, oneof thefirstin DesMoines, andinlowal Along
with the staff of Sabin School, thisschool pioneeredinwhatis
popularly known today as| GE. The program continuesto be
supported by the staff and by the community, atributetothe
timelinessand adaptability of theschool to current educational
trendsand needs.

Inthespring of 1974, the school received ablow whenit
wasdiscovered that asection of the brick wall wasweaken-
ing from age and from theweight of decorative stonearound
thetop of thebuilding. That portion of thebuildingwas
evacuated immediately and two sidesof thebrick exterior
werehurriedly removed.

Despitedl thisand while awaiting the determination of its
future, the structure has continued to serve asone of the
largest attendance centersin North DesMoines. Former
studentsand staff membersattend thetraditiona reunionsin
large numbers, the most recent of whichwasheld thispast
May.

Timehasrun out onthe old school full of memoriesfor so
many, and on the community which hassoloyally preserved
it.
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Oak Park

Datesof congtruction
-1891 Three-eighths
1900 One-eighth
1925 Three-eighths
1954 One-eighth

Principalswho have been at Oak

Park Are:
1907 - 1920 BerthaSmith
1920- 1933 AdelaideLaird
1933 - 1949 Olney Weaver
1949 - 1953 MauriceLewis
1953 - 1968 Herbert Levenick
1968-  Joan Sherman



Park Avenue

Datesof congruction
-1885 One-third
1914 One-third
1950 One-third

Principalsserving Park Avenueare:

1907 - 1912 AnnaWertz
1912 - 1913 LauraMatthews
1913- 1918 W. Lee Jordan
1918 - 1919 C. E. Nickle
1919- 1941 J. 0. Mitchell
1941 - 1957 Ferne Thorne
1957 - 1966 C. L. Pease
1974 - Howard Hart

PARK AVENUE SCHOOL GradesK-6
S.W. 9th and Park Ave.
Site5.8 acres

Thefirst school inthe Park Avenuedistrict wason Ninth
and Broad and was called Belle Schoal, after Samuel Belle,
thefirst teacher. One source of information statesthat this
school wasbuiltin 1868. It wasalong brick schoolhouse
and was used for the upper grades. A small wooden house
wasused for the kindergarten.

In 1890 the kindergarten part was moved to Ninth and
Pleasant View Drive and becamethe home of Mr. Marsh.
Theold brick building wasused for many yearsasaboard-
ing house kept by Mr. and Mrs. Cotton.

It wasalsoin 1890 that the east part of what was called
the South Building wasbuilt on Ninth and Park Avenue, on
land formerly owned by the Baag family. Accordingto
information gathered by the studentsin 1944, thisschool
had two rooms. Oneroom had about sixty pupilsand two
teachers; the other room had forty pupilsand oneteacher.

In 1905 or 1906, the west part wasbuilt on, referred to
asthe South or “old” building. It wasnot difficult totell that
thisbuilding was constructed in two pieces.

In 1909 Park Avenue wastaken into the DesMoines
Public School System and the district purchased thefarm
home of the Baag family. Thishome had been constructed
during the Civil War and was used for many yearsfor the
kindergarten and some of thefirst graders. It stood where
the auditorium now stands. In 1914 the old section of the
New Building wasbuilt and the Wycoff houseand the Ryan
house were bought and moved off in order to enlarge the
playground.

Four treeswere planted in front of the school astributes
to thememory of Harry Chambers, Frank Ore, and George
and L ester Hartman, who died serving in Francein World
War 1. Two of these markerscan still beseeninfront of the
school, athough only onetreeremains.

In 1919 Mr. Mitchell becamethe school principa. The
school at thistime continued to have gradeskindergarten
through eighth. In 1923 Lincoln High School wasbuilt and
the seventh and elghth gradesweretransferredto Lincoln as
well assome of theteachers. Mr. Mitchdll continued as
principa at Park Avenueuntil 1939; hewasalso principal at
Ft. DesMoinesand Maple Grove. Park Avenue had itsfirst
full-timeprincipa in 1949 when MissFerne Thornewas
assigned.
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Through theyears, homeswere purchased and the playgrounds gradually becamewhat they are
today. Studentswho attended Park Avenuein the 1930'sand 1940'srecall that thelower playground
wasaravine and that ashesfrom the stokers, tin cans, etc., werethrown there. Leo Dagle (1 932-38)
recall sthat punishment meted out to offendersat that timewasto “walk thebeat” - thismeant marching
the prescribed number of |apsalong thefence linethat bordered the dump. Shirley Hall Pascuzzi
(1937-42) aso remembersthe dump, however, Sally Hall Fisher (1942-49) does not, so perhapswe
can concludethat sometimeinthelater * 40’ stheravinewasfilled and the playgroundswerefinished as
wenow know them.

Construction for the new addition beganin 1948 and at thistimethe old Baag house (called the
North Building) wastorn down. It was 83-85 years old and the teachersremember that it had an
unfinished dirt-floored basement with astream of water running throughit called ‘ themoat.” New
teacherswereinitiated by taking them on asight-seeing tour through * the moat.”

In 1890 the kindergarten part was moved to Ninth and Pleasant View Drive and becamethe home of
Mr. Marsh. Theold brick building was used for many yearsasaboarding house kept by Mr. and Mrs.
Cotton.

During the period of construction of the new addition (1948-50) someclasseswereheldinthe
basement of the Park Avenue Presbyterian Church and at Jefferson School. On March 23, 1950, the
public wasinvited to tour the new facilitiesand to see” the very latest in school room equipment; an
intercommunication system; aspecia darm system; soundproof musi ¢ practicerooms, gymnasium;
auditorium, which will seat 450 children or 350 adults; and anew heating plant equipped withan
automatic stoker.

Oneitem of particular noteisthedistinctive anima motifsused to decorate panelsat thekindergarten
entrance. Thesearetheresult of aproject in Miss Spizzsart classesand pupilswhose designsadorn
thisentranceare John Bellizzi, Suzanne James, Sherry Pennington, Ledlie Rump, LaMar Myersand
Karen Nash.

IN1957, Mr. C. |. Pease, after serving elghteen yearsasprincipal at Brooks School, wasassigned to
Park Avenue.

IN 1968, the School Bond issue beforethe city votersincluded an addition for Park Avenuewhich
provided ten classrooms (open space), anew mediacenter, and an addition to the cafeteria. Theold
building wastorn down.

Beginning intheyear of 1972, the primary grades have been taught in the open space classroom
areaswhilethe upper gradeshavereceived their instructionin thetraditiona classrooms. However, the
organizationa patternfor al of the pupils hasbeen based on the | GE (Individually Guided Education)
concept. Pupilsaregrouped and taught within unitsinstead of within gradesby teamsof teachers. Park
Avenue pupilsaredivided into three units.

Inthefal of 1974, alearning disabilitiesclass, on ahalf-day basis, was started. Inthefall of 1975,
thisclasswill be expanded to servemore children and will beal day. Two additional classeswill be
placed at Park Avenueto serve children from the Southside who havelearning problems.

A primary Educable Mentaly Retarded classwill also belocated at Park Avenue beginning in 1975-
76 school year. Children fromthe South sidewill attend this center.
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PERKINS SCHOOL GradesK-6
43rdand College
Site-10 acres

The school was named in memory of David G Perkins,
former superintendent of theWest DesMoines Schoolsin
1870. Mr. Perkinsdied in 1907. Hewas best known for
introducing calisthenicsinto the DesMoines Schools. Mr.
Perkins served as secretary to the Board of Education and
later as Polk County Superintendent of Schools. Hewas
commissioner of thelowaEducationa Exhibit at the Cen-
tennia Expositionin Philadelphiaon 1876.

In1919, PerkinsPT.A. had $14.00 initstreasury. There
wasademonstration of anew victrolaon themarket, and a
dinner washeld for all Perkinsfamiliesto raise $85.00 for
thefirst payment onthe new schoal victrola. Later $35.00
wasraised to compl ete the payments! The agendafor one
of the PT.A. meetingsincluded such stimulating subjectsas
“How to know your son’spds’, “When should father tell
hissontheLifeStory?’, “ Should thefighting spirit be
encouraged?’, and “istheworkbenchin the basement
worththemoney?’. The PerkinsPT.A. paid for part of the
first scalesused by the school nurseto weigh the children.
AmosHiatt Junior High and Park Avenue School had been
built and theproblemsarisingintheir schoolsweredis-
cussed at our meetings. In 1920 Perkins school asked that
CollegeAvenue be paved.

In 1925 thefirst pre-school mother group wasformed
and became most active. Sidewakson CollegeAvenue
from 44th to 41st street were paved and also on 44th to
Hickman. ThePT.A. bought thefirst musical instrumentsfor
the school; adrum, triangle and cymbal . In September of
1927 they had to close the school because of extremely hot
weether. Thefirstimmunization of our children wasstarted
in 1928, aprogram condemningthe*jazz age” andits
effectsonour youthwasgivenat aPT.A. program, eight
stall barsfor thegymwereinstalled and threevictrolaswere
purchased for theschool.

Perkinsteachersand children contributed 100%to the
Red Crossin 1941 and were recommended highly to see
themovie® Smilin’ Thru” with Jeannette M cDonald and
GeneRaymond. The PT.A. till met inthe community
room, held nutrition classes at night, and donated cookies
each month to the U.S.O. During World War 11 in 1943-
44. Perkins had 485 pupilsand 14 teachers. War Bond
saleswere urged, workersrolled bandagesfor the Red
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Datesof construction
-1918 One-fourth
1920 One-fourth
1926 One-fourth.
1952 One-fourth
1975 Cafetorium

Principalswho served Perkins School
ae
1918 - 1923 W..Lee Jordan
1923- 1930 Mr. H. D. Eickelburg
1930- 1943 GeorgiaQuigley
1943 - 1960 ErmaAnderson
1960 - 1963 Kathryn Christian
1963-  Paul Pace



Cross, coat hangersand old papers and magazineswere collected and sol d--53,325 poundswere
collected during the year and Perkinsled the city inthisdrive. The sum of $275.00 wasreceived
whenthey were sold. Perkinsalso led thecity intheWar Bond Drive, selling $7,325 worth of war
bonds.

After exhaustiveefforts, traffic lightswereinstaled at 44th and Franklin, our present pre-school
mothers group wasformed and Perkinswasbulging with 656 children. Petitionswere signed for
the new Northwest and Southtown swimming poolsin 1957. A Civil Defense program was set up
for thecity during some crucial monthsof world conflict and Perkinswasdesignated asan Air
Raid shelter and properly equipped.

A record number of 720 pupilswereenrolled at Perkinsin 1958-59.

The Centrd Library wasformed and the RT.A. contributed $500.00 to thislibrary fund. Mrs.
Kathryn Christian joined the staff asthe new principal, replacing ErmaAndersonwhoretired that
year. Thefirst television (portable) set for the school was purchased.

The Central Library wasgrowing rapidly when 160 booksweregiventoitin 1960-61, which
brought thetotal up to 2,491 books. P.T.A. gave $200.00 to buy more booksthat year. Also,
beginning the school year 1960- 61, Perkinswas chosento be one of thefirst schoolsinthecity of
DesMoinesto takepart in an experimental program using large-classviewing of educationa
television. Thisprogramwaslimited inthe beginning to Social Studiesand Scienceingrades4-5-
6.

Inthe school year 1963-64 Mr. Paul Pace became principal of Perkins. A Polio Clinicwasheld
at the school for thecity in March and againin May of 1964. Through the effortsof the PT.A.
Safety committee and Mr. Pace, a, pedestrian cross-light wasinstalled at 44th and Hickman. In
thefall of 1963 abefore and after school gymnastic program wasinitiated at Perkinsand waswell
received by the patrons. A Swedish Gymwas aso installed on the 6th grade playground.

In 1968 Perkinswas one of anumber of high achieving schools selected to bereceiving schools
for the* Equal Educationa Opportunity” program (later to becalled the* Voluntary Transfer
Program”). In 1974-75, Perkinsreceived 10 black students and sent 4 white studentsto Edmunds
Schoal.

In 1968, Perkinsbecameinvolved inthe Follow Through Program. Two classeswereformed of
kindergarten and 1st grade children. Half of each classwas composed of disadvantaged children
from Moulton and the other half was made up of volunteersfrom Perkins. Theprogramwas
successful but lack of space prevented it from expanding and it was discontinued after 3 years.

In 1971, alibrary and mediacenter was established intheannex. By 1975 thelibrary contained
dightly lessthan 10,000 books, plusawidevariety of A.V. materialsand equipment.

In 1971, Perkins became part of apilot programin Career Education where self-conceptsare
developedrelated to “Who Am 1’ ?and an awareness of careersavailableisalso developed.
Thesearenot separate programs but areintegrated into the existing curriculum.

In 1973, Perkinsbecameinvolvedinthe®Learning Disability” programand by 1975an“L.D.”
resourceteacher wasin the building one-haf day every day.

IntheFall of 1974, MarthaCampney, asecond grade student, was struck and injured fatally in
thecrosswalk at Beaver and Franklin. Asaresult, the city was persuaded to hire an adult crossing
guard for the corner. Fellow studentsdonated $230.00 to amemoria fund for Marthaand books
were purchased and placed inthelibrary.

OnMarch 4, 1975, the Board of Education awarded abid for acafetorium to be added at
Perkins. Construction beganin May of 1975 and completionwill beinlate July, 1975. Thelibrary
and mediacenter will be moved to the old gym and the annex torn down.
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Inthe Spring of 1975, Community Educationwasinitiated
at Perkins. Classes such as sdlf-defense, gymnastics,
painting and drawing, puppetry, weaving, etc. were offered.
Our combined enrolIment was 150.

Perkinshasamodified eight-unit program for grades4 -
6 with specia teachersinart, music and physica education.
The present enrollment isroughly 500.

In 1975 weareusing Career Education asavehicleto
implement the study of Mult-Ethnic groups, the Bicentennia
and Equa Rightsfor Women.

Theforegoing pagesare but abrief resume of the many
eventsof Perkins School fromitsbeginning.

PHILLIPSSCHOOL GradesK-6
1701 Lay Street
Site—6.7 acres

Thereislittleinformation availableat thiswritinginregard
tothehistory of Phillips School. JudgeWilliam Phillipsfor
whom the building was named wasalawyer, businessman
and prohibitionist, member of the DesMoines Coal Co.,
organizedin 1865, original stockholder of Hotel Savery
1886, and vice president at prohibition meeting 1887 at
Foster’sOperaHouse.

Phillipsschool inthe mid-1970sissuffering somedeclin-
ing enrollment. They still maintain 19 teachersand an
associate. They havethe six-unit program for grades5and
6 with the specia teachersof music, art, and physica
education.

OnMarch 4, 1975, the Board of Education awarded a
contract to the Lovejoy Construction Company for the
addition of aphysica educationfacility. Thetota cost for
thisaddition was $103,000.
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Phillips

Datesof congtruction

1914 Two-fifths

1916 One-fifth

1925 Three-tenths

1951 One-tenth
1975—New gymnasium.

Principalswho have served thereare-

1909 - 1910 MissWarren
1910 - 1914 Katherine Dent
1914 - 1918 EmmaBradiey
1919- 1920 M. J. Wilcox
1920 - 1937 J. EllaBaker
1937 - 1957 Ruth Pritchard
1957 - 1965 Kenneth E. Rouse
1965- Richard Rose



Pleasant Hill

PLEASANT HILL SCHOOL GradesK-6
4801 East Oakwood Drive 50317

h ThePleasant Hill Independent School District operated
|| % | theschool until 1961, a thistimethe Southeast Polk

School district wasformed by anumber of schoolsinthe
eastern part of Polk County. The Polk County Board of
Education arbitrarily assigned the present Pleasant Hill
attendance areato the DesMoines Public Schools. The
DesMoinesDigtrict kept the Pleasant Hill building open
for oneyear, and then started transporting the pupilsto
Willard School. Theschool building isnow the Town Hall.

Principal swho have served: Asthe population of the Town of Pleasant Hill grew it
1972 - 1975 K enneth Rouse became necessary to house some of the pupilsat
1975- MévinKiner Longfellow School.

Oncemoreit wastimefor achange. Thecitizensof the
DesMoines | ndependent Community School District
voted bondsagain andin 1972 built afine new fireproof
building.

ThePleasant Hill School Program

Thisnew school isan open spacebuilding, designedto
accommodate 420 pupils, with thirteen teaching stations,
four in each of threelarge open learning centers, and one
roomfor thefive-year-olds. In addition to theselearning
centerswe have amusic room, an art room, amedia
center and acombination gym and cafeteria

Our building wasdesigned by architectsMcKIveenand
Carney. Thegeneral contractor wasVawter and Walter
Inc. The cost was approximately $660,000.

Thethree open learning centersprovidefor three Units
inaMulti-Unit School organization. The5-6-7 year olds
areinUnitA, the8-9-10'sin Unit B andthe 10-11-12'sin
Unit C. At thispoint in our devel opment weincludethe
fiveyear oldsvery littleinthedaily routinewith theolder
pupilsinUnitA. Thisismainly duetothe haf day sessons
for fiveyear olds (kindergarten).

Theteachersin each Unit work asateaching team. One
of theteam membersisemployed asthe Team L eader and
receivesasmall monetary remuneration for thisposition.

TheUnit Leadersand the Principal serveastheInstruc-
tional Improvement Committee(1.1.C.) for theschool.
Oneof themain functionsof thisgroupisto coordinatethe
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activitiesof thethree Units.

Whilethereareagood many different organizationa plans
being used to meet the challenge of individuaized learning, the
concept isbecoming widely accepted throughout the country.
Our organization pattern isaproduct of theWisconsin Re-
search and Devel opment Center for Cognitive Learning. We
areglad to have apart in devel oping this concept of Individu-
aly Guided Education (I.GE.).

Theideaof I.GE. iswell stated intheexpression, “Oneat a
timetogether”, which suggeststhat “ individua” doesnot
necessarily mean“ separate”’ . We accept the philosophy of
teaching by objectiveswith continuous assessments of
progress. We believethat |earning takes place best when
attentionisgivento the particular needs, abilitiesand interests
of theindividual learner. Attention must also begivento
differencesinlearning modesand styles.

For thethird year of operation our staff wasincreased by
threeteaching positions; an additional haf timekindergarten, a
half timemusic, afull timeteacher for Unit A and aphysica
education teacher.

Pleasant Hill School isoneof theexceptionsin thisperiod of
declining enrollment. Thecity of Pleasant Hill isarapidly
growing residential community. Wewill reach our rated
capacity during the school year of 1975- 76. Thiswill present
anew challengeto our school which was created to meet

chdlenge.

RICE SCHOOL GradesK-6
Beaver and Adams
Site—4.7 acres

Thebuildingwasnamed Byron Riceinhonor of thefirst
appointed teacher and superintendent of thefirst organized
schoal districtinold Ft. DesMoinesin 1849. Thefollowing
year the school had 92 pupils. The PT.A. wasorganizedin
October 18, 1910. Having no public utilitiesthey carried
parlor lampsand lanternsto themeetings. They bought
equipment for the school including agramaphoneand the
pai ntings of Washington and Lincoln. The school becamea
social center and in addition to programs ,with speakerson
intellectual topics, partiessuch as* box socias’ wereaso
held. A description of onesocid isto befoundinthe Minutes
of April 7, 1911 asfollows:. “ The boxes containing delicate
and ddliciousrefreshmentsweresold and donejusticeto by all
whoindulged. Themeeting wasoneof the best of theyear in
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Datesof construction
-1916 1925 1958

Principalswho haveserved at Rice
School are:

1910- 1921 AnnaHartingan
1921 - 1923 LauraMoulton
1923 - 1930 Herman Eickelberg
1930- 1941 GeorgiaQuigley
1941 - 1942 George W-. Hohl
1942 - 1945 Gerald W. Cron
1945 - 1957 Frances Meneough
1957 - 1968 N. Ferne Thorne
1968 - 1972 Patience Guthrie
1972- Mildred Kaisand



which hearty good fellowship prevailed.”

In1912the PT.A. led avigorous campaign to defeat two proposalson the ball ot at aschool
electioninMarch. Memberswereurged to vote“No” on theteaching of the physiology of the
reproductive organsin the grades of the public schools, and“No” on the proposition of having
schoal thirty- eight weeksayear.

InMay 16, 1913. the PT.A. voted to buy aschool banner for Rice, It wasto be maroon and
whitewith gold fringe. Committeeswere a so formed for the purpose of getting sewing, music and
manud training includedinthecurriculum.

In 1916 two men were appointed as special policeto stop auto speeding on Beaver Ave. infront
of the schoolhouse. In 1918 no meetingswere held in the school owing to the quarantinefor Spanish
influenza. In 1919 no meetingswere held in November and December on account of the coal strike.
A MissHartiganwasprincipa during theseearly yearsand worked very closely withthe parentsin
theinterestsof child welfare. Scaleswere purchased to weigh the children and determine those who
were undernourished. Playground equipment costing $23.70“wholesal €’ was purchased at her
urging.

ThePT.A. raised money by salling luncheson election day. InMay of 1922 aVisual Education
fund was established and aflag and curtain were al so purchased for the use of the school. By 1922
therewere 160 familiesrepresented in the school and sincethe children upon graduating from Rice
either attended North or West High, the PT.A. sent del egatesto each of their PT.A. meetings. In
1923 the PTA bought a second-hand oil stovefor $10.00 and wicksfor 65 cents. Thiswasto aid
them in serving noon lunches once each month. Alsoin 1923 Mr. Eickelberg becamethe new
principal succeeding MissM oulton. The minutes of October 25, show that hewascalled uponto
addressthe PT.A. and did so in aninteresting manner. Construction on the new addition including the
auditorium and gymnasium got under way at thistime and acommittee headed by the principal was
appointed to seeto the beautifying of thefront lawn. They were allowed to spend to thelimit of
$25.00for thispurpose.

In January of 1926 the Parent Teacher A ssociation met in the new auditorium of the school build-
ing. Mid-year kindergarten classeswere a so started at Rice at thistime, Thenew addition con-
fronted the PT.A. with the problem of providing equipment for theadditional classroomsandthe
kitchen. Asusual these energetic and willingwomen, many of whom il liveinthearea, cametothe
rescue and wefind that during thefirst few months of 1926 they purchased $35.00 worth of geo-
graphical equipment, supplementary textbooksin arithmetic, materia for kindergarten blocks, new
stovesfor thekitchen and ascreen for motion pictures. In additionto that, in one month they made
or mended 169 garmentsfor the Red Cross.

Themost recent addition to Rice conssting of an office suiteand 10 classroomswas compl eted
and ready for occupancy in September of 1958. Ricetoday hasan enrollment of 598 studentsin
classesfrom kindergarten through sixth grade. It has specid classesfor those who need additional
help and for thosewho are gifted. Earnest young musiciansmay take privatelessonsaswell as
participatein theschool program of music. Recessfindsthe school ground covered with healthy,
happy children. Nor doesthe activity stop when the school day isover. Pack 92 of the Cub Scouts
usestheauditorium for their pack meetings. Little League usesthe playgroundin summer for games
and practice. Whenroomisavailable, Adult Education classesare held at the schoal. It hasbeenthe
pollsfor voting in eectionsfor many years. Thusthe school named Byron Rice on the corner of
Beaver and Adamshastruly been acrossroads of democracy sincetheday of itsfirst planning,.

Theeducationa program for Riceelementary school inthe mid-1970s continuesto bethat of asix-
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unit program for grades5 and 6. Thismeansthat they have specid teachersfor art, music, and physica
education. They aso have educable mentally retarded rooms. Rice servesasavoluntary transfer program
receiving school with black studentsbused infrom theinner city. They have aresource personfor learning
disabilities. Career Education will beadded tothecurriculumonal levelsin 1975-1976.

RicePT.A. established amediacenter for Rice School in 1967 in memory of Ferne Thornewho was
principal of the school from 1957-1968. Sincethat timethe PT.A. hasmade annual contributionsfor media
for the center. They a so providevolunteers, on atwice-weekly basis, to keep the center open and its
materia savailableto students.

New PT.A. Committeesreflect theinterest of parentsin their children and their school and alsothe
changing times: Blue-Star - late 1960’ s VVolunteer - 1973 Ecology - 1974 Great Books- 1974

During the 1974-1975 school year morethan fifty volunteers hel ped individualsand small groups of
childrenat Rice.

ThePT.A. hasgiven generoudly to support and enrich programsat Rice. In 1973 they provided fine
stereo equipment for themusic program. In 174 they provided supplemental materiasfor readingonall
levelsandin 1975 they provided materiasfor al gradesin theareaof mathematics.

In 1975 four parent volunteers began a Great Books program for childrenin gradesfiveand six.

In 1974 Rice parents and teachersjoined together in astudy program: “How to BecomeaMoreAffective
AdultintheLifeof Your Child.” Inthe Fall semester of 1975 the parentswill hold aseriesof meetingswith
thetheme: “How to Help Your Child Learn Better in School.” Theteachershave organized astudy program
inmathematics.

TheRiceAdvisory Council hasbeen particularly activeinthe 1970's. Oneof their more notable efforts
hasbeento organize and carry out an annua program of summer activitiesfor childreninthecommunity.

In 1974 sixth gradersat Rice under the sponsorship of theAdvisory Council interviewed many of the
older residentsof Beaverdal e regarding the history of thisarea. They recorded their findingswhichwere
later used to build aprogram: “ Beaverdale, aProud Past” with which the children began the school’'s
bicentennia observance.

Mr. Merrill and 2 students

Page 93



Samuelson

T

Datesof construction
-1965

SAMUELSON SCHOOL GradesK-6
43rd and Bdl Aire
Site-8.8 acres

Thisbuilding was opened in September, 1965. It was
named to honor Agnes Samuel son, long time superinten-
dent of schoolsinlowa.

Samuel sonislocated inthe DebraHeightsareawhich
had the uniquedistinctionfor several yearsof beinginthe
City of DesMoinesbut not inthe DesM oines School
Digtrict. It wasapart of the Johnston School Didtrict.

Asof July 1, 1962, DebraHeightswas one of, four
areasthat joined the Des M oines | ndependent Commu-
nity School Digtrict. For the past threeyearsthe pupils
from thisarea have been bused to Rice, Hillis, and
Cowles Schoals.

AGNESMATHILDA SAMUEL SON washborn at
Shenandoah, lowa, April 4, 1887 and died May 12,
1963. Her parents, Sven August Samuelson and Alvina
(Johnson) Samuel son, were of Swedish ancestry. Agnes,
theeldest daughter inafamily of seven children, was
determined to beateacher early inlife.

From 1923 - 1926, Miss Samuel son served as Exten-
sion Professor of Rura Education for |owa State Teach-
ersCollege, traveling throughout the state and working
tirelessy toimproveteaching and to secure up-to-date
ingtructionad materids. It wasduring thistimethat she
received her B.A. degreefrom the University of lowain
1925 and threeyearslater wasawardedan M .A.
degree.

When she became State Superintendent of Public
Instructionfor lowain 1927, shewas equipped witha
wealth of administrative and teaching background for her
work with governors, legidators, community citizens, and
many agencies. Great educational progresswasredized
intheyears between 1927 and 1938 under her capable
leadership.

Miss Samuel son wasrecruited in 1939 by thelowa
State TeachersAssociation to serve asitsexecutive
secretary. She continued inthispost until 1945, when she
returned to Washington, D. C. asastaff member of the
National EducationAssociation until her retirementin
1952.

Agnes Samuel sonwasadistinguished leader and a
dedicated educator who devoted alifetime of serviceto
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children*

Customarily, the building holdsayearly | ce Cream Social
in September, anArt Exhibit and aMusic Festival inApril
andaField Day inMay.

A tenth year birthday anniversary wascelebrated in
February, 1975 honoring ten original staff memberstill
assigned to Samuel son and ten past PT.A. presidentswho
received recognition plaquesand scrollsfor their serviceto
children, the school and thecommunity.

Through budget appropriationsand aPTA sponsored
“birthday book plan”, the Samuelson library hasgrowninits
first ten yearsfrom 681 to nearly 6,000 volumesand in-
cludesmany film strips, recordsand other software.

Inrecognition of her Swedish ancestry, aSt. Lucia sDay
celebrationisheld yearly in December. Each room chooses
aSt. Luciawho delivers Swedish Spritz to the children of
another room. Dressed in awhiterobewith ared sash and
wearing acrown of candles, sheisaccompanied by her
classmateswho sing Christmascarals.

The principa of Samuelson School isKenneth Smith.

SMOUSE OPPORTUNITY SCHOOL
28th and Center
Site-18.3 acres(including Callanan)

Smouseisaschool facility for the physically handicapped
in GradesK-8. Smouse School wasdedicatedin 1931 to
serve physically handicapped children of theDesMoines
Schooal district who could not satisfactorily attend regular
school. It was made possible by the gift of $333,000 from
Dr. and Mrs. David W. Smouse. In 1954 therewasthe
swimming pool addition andin 1963 an addition of four
classroomswas compl eted.

Through the generosity and foresight of aformer Des
Moinesphysician and hiswife, morethan 1900 children
have benefited by attending the Smouse Opportunity school
for physically handicapped childreninthe past twenty-five
years. Thebuilding and equipment was made possible by the
gift of $333,000 from Dr. and Mrs. David W. Smouse.

Dr. Smouse wastoo good hearted asafamily physicianto
save much money. However, astheresult of afortunate
bus nessventure he accumul ated wesalth and choseto leave
itinDesMoines. Ashe expressedit, “the school seemed the
best way.” Thegenerousgift of money alowed for many art
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Datesof construction
-1954 1963

Principa swho served Smouse:
1931 - 1958 Bess Johnson
1958-  Dr. Robert W. Langerak



objects, such aspaintingsand colorful printsthroughout the building.
EARLY PLANNING OF BUILDINGAND POLICIES

Smouse School wasdedicated in 1931 to serve physically handicapped children of the DesMoines
School district who could not satisfactorily attend regular school. The school wasmade possible
through thegift of $333,000 from Dr. & Mrs. David W. Smouse. Through the generosity and foresight
of thisformer DesMoines physician and hiswife morethan 2200 children have benefitted from the
servicesof thisschool. Thegenerousgift of money alowed for many art objects, such ascolorful prints
throughout the building. Original ceramictiles, wrought iron signs, and fireplace screenswere designed
by Mrs. BerneiceV. Setzer, former Director of Art. In more recent yearsthe funds provided by the
Smouses have been used to build an addition of 4 classrooms, carpet the building, providealearning
center and air condition the classroomsof the building.

For many months preceding the drawing of plansand establishing of policies, Supt. of Schools, John
W. Studebaker, Dr. Fred Moore, Director of School Health, Mr. Clark Souers, architect, and Miss
Bess Johnson, principal, visited, severa other citieswhich wereknown to have good specia education
programs. It was determined that Smouse Opportunity School should be acombination of good
therapy and educational program-directed to the needsof hearing, visualy and orthopedically-impaired
children.

THERAPY AND EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMMING

When Dr. Studebaker became United States Commissioner of Educationin 1934 hewasinstrumental
ininteresting many citiesin devel oping specia education programsfor the physica, aswell asother
handicapping conditions. In recent years Smouse has extended its servicesto the Greater DesMoines
Area, andiscurrently serving pupilsfrom six nearby counties. With theformation of thenew Area
Education Agency program Smousewill be providing servicesto an evenlarger area.

Theeducationa program cons stsof four mgor educationa blocks. Theungraded primary includes
pupilsof kindergarten age and ol der. The continuation department includes children of limitedlearning
capabilities. The deaf department includes children of preschool through eementary grades. Themiddle
and upper grades unit extendsthrough theeighth gradelevel.

Therearenormally about 150 pupilsenrolled at Smouse. Included are children with disabilitiesdueto
cerebral palsy, muscular dystrophy, spinabifadaand other orthopedic conditions, deafnessand visua
problems- including blindness. In 1974 the Ruby Van M eter School for Severely Retarded wasbuilt
and dedicated on the same grounds. Thetwo schoolsarejointly involved inasizeable bustransporta-
tion plan serving thearea.

Program forerunnersto Smouseincludethe open air school a North High, the school for Deaf at
Clarkson, and the Saylor School for Crippled Children on Pleasant Street.
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STOWE SCHOOL GradesK-6
1401 East 33rd St.

Prior to 1909 therewasatwo room framebuilding
located at E. 29th and Guthrie known as Sandhill School.
In 1910 the name of thisschool was changed to Harriet
Beecher Stowe, and in 1912-13 oneroom was added to
thebuilding. During the school year 1914-15 therewas
no Stowe School listed asbeing apart of the DesMoines
Schoolsanditisbelieved that afiredestroyedit.

In 1915-16 anew Stowe School wasbuilt at E. 33rd
and Cleveland. Thesetwo roomsarestill apart of the
building. In 1917 thefront two rooms on the second and
third floorswere built; in 1924-25 the back two rooms
were added to thefirst and second floors. Sometime
between 1925 and 1930 agymnasiumwasbuilt. Thisaso
servesasacafeteriaand auditorium. In 1943-44 the back
two roomswere added to thethird floor. A six- room
additionwashbuiltinthefall of 1952. At that timethe
kitchen of the cafeteriawasenlarged and remodeled
providing morework room and storage space. A new
officewasaso provided.

During thefall of 1960 another addition was completed.
Four new class- roomswere opened and acentral library
was started.

The Stowedementary buildinginthe1970shasan
Individualy Guided Education multi-unit program. They
areoneof thefew older structuresto havethisprogram
whichiscommonly found in the newer open-space
buildings. Stowea so hasTitle 11 Wisconsin Reading
DesigningradesK-3. They areparticipatingintheTitle
[11 learning disabilitiesprogramsfor gradesK-3. They
alsohavetheWisconsin Titlell study skillsfor grades4-
6. They areinthe SPURT Program.

Westinghouse Score Science Program. Kindergarten
Waupon Program Career Education Program
Wewill be having Mental Disabilities Resource Room
beginningintheFal of 1975.
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Stowe

Datesof constuction
-1915 Tworooms
1925 Two rooms
1943 Two roomson 3rd floor
1953 Six rooms, offices, storage area
1960 Four rooms

Principalswho have served at Stowe
ae
1915 - 1940 Grace Troutner
1940 - 1952 C. 1. Pease
1952 - 1966 L orraine M cFadden
1966 - 1958 Pherrin Dowell
1968- KeithVanHorn



Studebaker

1972 - Mr. Jerry Millsisprincipal
of Studebaker Schoal.

STUDEBAKER SCHOOL
S.E. 1st and County Line Road
Sitel O acres

Studebaker School honors John W. Studebaker
who servedinthevariouseducationa postsasfollows:

1914 - 1920 Assistant Superintendent, DesMoines
Schools; 1920 - 1934 Superintendent of Schools, Des
Moines; 1934 - 1949 U. S. Commissioner of Educa-
tion.

The Greenfield Plazaareain Warren County which
formsthe major attendance areafor Studebaker contin-
ued to grow throughout the 1960sand early 1970s. The
addition of portable classroomsdid not solvethe prob-
lemandin February, 1971, the contractswerelet for a
large open-space, 12- teacher station addition. This
included alibrary learning center and acafetorium. This
addition cost $562,426.

The opening of thisnew addition in September, 1972,
enabled the staff to plan and inaugurate the | GE—
individually Guided Education multi-unit program. This
wasoneof thefirst schoolsin DesM oinesto have open
spacesand the |GE program. Other programscarried
out at Studebaker includethe Berkeley Smoking and
Health project. Thisisservingasamode for other Des
Moinesschools. Thereisalso an active career education
program at thisbuilding,

Studebaker Multiunit School

Inthefall of 1969 aDistrict-widebondissueeection
washeld whichincluded plansfor building an additionto
Studebaker. Theissue was passed with a61.2% major-
ity ... the Studebaker district gave a90% favorablevote.
Atthetime, Studebaker haditsorigina ten classrooms
full, plususing eight portable classrooms, and bussing
fifty pupilsto Maple Grove School.

Congtruction of the new addition beganin the spring of
1970 and was compl eted so that we could beginusing it
for the 1972-73 school year. Thisadditionincluded a
12,000 squarefoot open-spacelearning area, acentrally
located mediacenter, gym, and cafeteria.

Thearchitect firmwas CharlesHerbert & Associates
and thegeneral contractor was Vawter & Walter; same
asfor theorigind building. Thisaddition cost $562,426.

In January of 1971, Studebaker was accepted to
participateinthe K ettering Foundation’'sIGE, Individu-
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aly Guided Education, program. Theopening of thenew
addition enhanced thisprogram by providing flexible space
for themultiunit, multi-aged approach tolearning. Studebaker
was selected in 1973 to participatein the HEW-Berkely
Smoking and Health project. Thisisservingasamodel for
other DesMoines Schools. They arealsoinvolved inacareer
education program.

Ruby Van Meter School
710 28th St. 50312

The present program for moderately retarded childrenisan
outgrowth of many yearsof work onthe part of great num-
bersof parentsand school personnel.

A pilot classwas started in 1956 by the Polk County
Association for Retarded Children. Inthefall of 1959 the Des
Moines Public Schools, under the ableleadership of Mrs. Van
Meter, assumed the obligation of educating moderately
retarded children between the agesof 7 and 14. MissMary
Fern Crawford conducted two classes, onefor younger
childreninthemorning and onefor older childreninthe
afternoon. The classeswereheld at Moulton Cottage, Eighth
and CollegeAvenue, DesMoines. Thecurriculum consisted
of sdlf-care, socia adjustment, language devel opment, and
economic ussfulness.

Classenrollment outgrew the Moulton Cottage and in the
fall of 1961 the program wasmoved to Slinker Schooal,
located at Fifteenth and Center Streets, DesMoines. Princi-
palsat Sinker included Violet Coldren and Robert Langben.

Sincethat timethe program has continued to grow. During
theseyearsthe agelimitshave been expanded to 5to 21, the
length of the school day hasbeen increased to afive-hour
day, transportation has been furnished for each pupil, and a
hot lunch program hasbeenintroduced.

Bidsfor $1,250,000.00 werelet for the present building
November 30, 1971, and construction started inApril, 1972.
OnJuneb, 1973, the Board of Education approved the
naming of the new facility for Mrs. Ruby F. Van Meter who
was Director of Special Education at thetimeof theinception
of thisprogram. Thefirst classesin the new buildingwereheld
in September, 1973.

Mrs. Ruby F. Van Meter started her career inthefield of
education teaching primary grades. After teachingin Texas
and lowashe cameto DesMoinesto teach retarded children
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Constructed - 1972

Principa who serverd Van Meter
- Morris Spence



Datesof constuction
-1890 Two-ninths
1910 One-ninth
1923 Five-ninths
1954 One-ninth

Principalswho have served at Wallace

ae

1909 - 1913 Cora Parr

1913- 1915 EllaMaone

1915- 1918 JuliaBeah

1918- 1933 Mrs. BelleMcConnell
1933 - 1936 AnnaStohigren

1936 - 1960 L eonaWilcox

1960 - 1965 Ann Schott

1965 - 1972 L ester ReesKnisley
1972 - Robert McGraw

at Crocker school. She soon becamewell known both
locally and throughout the nation for her successinworking
with retarded children. Shelater becamethe Director of
Specia Education for the DesMoines Public Schools, a
post shesuccessfully held until her retirement. Many
accomplishmentswere noted while she served at the
Director of Specia Education but none moreimportant
than the beginning of aspecia programfor thetrainable
mentally retarded.

Mrs. Van Meter now livesat Wesley Acres, 3520 Grand
Avenue, DesMoines, lowa.

WALLACE SCHOOL GradesK-6
1404 East 13th St.
Site-2.4 acres

Originaly thisbuilding was Capitol Park High Schooal. It
waspart of aseparate school district whichincludedthe
areas served by Whittier and Logan Schools. Inthe 1907
merger it becameapart of the DesMoines Public Schools.
Thehigh school unit continued until Chrissmaswhen the
principal resigned. Then the high school closed and stu-
dentswent to East, North or West High.

Capitol Park School with gradeskindergarten- 8. The
Capitol Park Mothers Circleasoincluded Whittier School
inal of itsmeetings. In 1912 thisorganization changed its
nameto Capitol Park Teachers' Circle.

ThePenny Provident Plan wasintroduced into Capitol
Park Schools October 10, 1910. Thisplan was champi-
oned by Mrs. CoraBussey Hillisandinasensewasa
forerunner of the Savings Stamps plan of the 1940's,50's
and60's.

Therecordsarenot clear inregard to therenaming this
building Wallace Elementary School in memory of Henry
C. Wallace, who served asU. S. Secretary of Agriculture
under President Wilson.

Wallace school inthemid 1970sissuffering the usua
declining enrollmentsthat are commonin DesMoinesand
acrossthenation. They maintain asix-unit programfor
grades5 and 6 with the usual teachersin special subjects.
They dsomaintainaTitlel1 Wisconsn Reading Design

Management program for K-4 aswell asparticipatingin
aTitlelll learning disabilities, K-3 program. Theschool is
eligiblefor Titlel funding and thereforehasTitlel Reading,
K-6and Titlel Mathematics, K-4,. They also havea
career education program.
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WASHINGTON SCHOOL GradesK-6
1 East Hartford Ave.
Site-2.0 acres

Until 1874, the children of south DesMoinesattended a
school at 9th and Locust. During 1874 and early 1875
work was progressing on thefirst wing of George Washing-
ton School. Thisfinebrick building of four roomswasthe
first unit of morethan thetypical oneroom school to serve
the areasouth of the Raccoon River. Thisareawas part of
theorigina school district of DesMoines.

Theschool waslocated on HillsdeAvenue, haf way up
thehill sothat it would be safefrom the rampaging floods
that plagued the southern bottom land. Pupilscamefromall
of south DesM oinesand Sevastopol.

INn 1880, six yearsafter theorigina building waserected,
two roomswere added. In 1890 two moreroomswere
built on, making it possibleto accommodate seventh and
elghth grade pupilswho previously had been compelled to
walk totheold Lincoln building at 9thand Mulberry for al
their, schooling beyond thesixth grade.

In 1898 aseparate building waserected for useasa
kindergarten. Theentire building wasremodeled in 1909
andfour large classrooms, aprincipd’soffice and other
facilitiesadded. By this process, the school housethat had
oncefaced Hillside now faced Hartford Avenue.

AsWashington grew and more ground was needed, the
property to thewest on Hillside was purchased from Owen
Cunningham, father of Nelle Cunningham. Miss
Cunningham wasateacher at Washington from 1933-
1939, assistant principal from 1939-1942 and principal
from 1956 until retirement in 1963.

At onetimeWashington wasthethird largest e ementary
school inthe city with an enrollment of 550. Over-crowding
wasrelieved when M cKinley School wasbuiltin 1904.
Enrollment was again reduced when S. Anthony’swasbuilt
in1912.

Firein 1941 destroyed the original four rooms. Thispart
wasrazed and replaced by the present gymnasium.

Washington has housed anumber of second and third
generation of Italian-American childrenfromfinefamilies
that havelived inthisneighborhood.

Washington school haslost considerable enrollment and
by September, 1976 may be under 200 students. Because
of theselow enrollmentsthey havean undepartmentalized
program. They haveaTitlell Wisconsin Reading Design
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Washington

L.
Datesof congtruction

-1874 1910 1914 1941
Principalswho have served at Wash-

ingtoninclude:
1907 - 1930 Blanche Snook
1930- 1939 AliceBradshaw
1939- 1942 Ednal. E. Peterson
1942 - 1948 N. Ferne Thorne
1948- 1956 MerleWilson
1956- 1963 Nelle Cunningham
1963 - 1965 Jerry Mills
1965- 1967 Kenneth Rankin
1967 - 1969 Snowden Moon
1969- 1971 LylaLynch
1971 - 1972 Robert Langbehen
1972 - Patrick Moran



Watrous

Datesof congtruction
-1954 1957
Principalswho have administered

Weatrous School are;

1954 - 1957 Nelle Cunningham

1957 - 1966 DorrisMorgan

1966 - 1969 LucileTruitt
1969 - 1972 Larry Martindale

1972 -

Kenneth Hook

Study Skillsprogram for grades4-6. They participatein
alearning disabilities program and have acareer educa-
tion program.

WATROUS SCHOOL GradesK-6
S.W. 14th and Army Post Rd.
Site-5.9 acres

The CharlesL. Watrous Elementary School was
named for aprominent early settler of South Des
Moines. Thegrowth and devel opment of avast portion
of the city south of the Raccoon River areduelargely to
hisefforts.

Mr. Watrouswas agraduate of alaw college. How-
ever hisoccupation asaresident of south DesMoines
wasthat of anurseryman. He became known not only
nationaly but internationaly for hiswork intheareaof
nursery work.

CharlesWatrousled aninteresting life. He had been
bornin Cortland County, New York, January, 1837. He
enlistedinthecivil War and became acaptain. Hewasin
the second battle of Bull RuninAugust, 1862, when he
waswounded by three separate bullets. He spent atime
convalescing and ultimately was mustered out of the
service, ‘onaccount of disability from gunshot wounds
receivedin battle,” asthehonorabledischargeread. He
returned to the university and passed hislaw studies,
receiving adiplomain 1865. L ater that sameyear, he
located in Winchester, Virginia, for the practice of law
and served ascounty attorney for threeyears. During
thistime heal soreceived apresidential appointment as
oneof the United Statesregistering board examinersand
administered the oath of allegianceto the United States
toall persons*“lately inrebellion” who met therequire-
ments and subscribed to the oath.

Thelifeof aNorthern maninthe Southimmediately
following the Civil War wasfull of interest aswell as
danger. On several occasionstherewere attempts made
onthelivesof variousformer Union soldierswhowere
living inthe South. It was hecessary to go armed onthe
street after dark and to be careful and alow no oneto
come up behind, without careful scrutiny.

Thefuture of CharlesWatrous, aformer Northern
Union soldier inthe South, appeared to haveits prob-
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lems. Inthe spring of 1869, till suffering from the effectsof
hiswounds, hefelt obliged because of medical adviceto
forego the practice of law and to work out inthe open air.
Hecameto DesMoinesand purchased twenty acres of
land and then began the nursery businesswhich hefollowed
for therest of hislife. Hewasthefirstin DesMoinesto carry
onthenursery businessinacommercia way-that isby selling
hisproductsby agentsandfilling theordersby railroad

shipments. All othershad depended upon sales at the nursery.

By additional purchasesof land fromtimetotimeheex-
pended hisnursery to an areaof 145 acresin south Des
Moines. Thus, withthe additional land rented fromtimeto
timeinthe neighborhood he soon had alarge business
employing 75 to 100 salesmen. He also owned other pieces
of property inthecity.

In 1904 hewas commissioned by theU.S. Agricultura
Department to vigit the Philippinesand other Asian countries
to study horticultural conditionsand makeinquiriesabout the
introduction of certain fruitsinto the United States.

CharlesWatrousdiedin 1916 and wasburied inthe
Woodland Cemetery herein DesMoines.

Inthe mid-1970sthe Watrous student populationisholding
fairly firmand not declining asrapidly asin other sectionsof
thecity. Theprincipal and staff haveintroduced aunique
educationa program at Watrouswhichincludes:

PlanA, first and second grades, departmentalized, non-
graded reading. Plan 8, third and fourth grades, departmen-
talized, nongraded reading. Plan C, Fifth and sixth grades,
departmentdized, nongraded reading.

They havetheTitlell Wisconsin Design Reading Manage-
ment system. They have roomsfor the educable mentally
retarded pupils.

WILLARD SCHOOL GradesK-6
East 30th and Dean
Site-4.2 acres

Origindly the school for thisareawasknown asthe Grant
Park Schoal. Inthe 1907 school merger, Grant Park High
School was discontinued and the pupilstransferred to East
High. At some point the building wasrenamed Frances
Willard Elementary School. TheWillard building continued as
akindergartensbuilding inthe DesMoinesschoolsuntil a
disastrousfireon Friday, December 14, 1923.
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Datesof construction
-1917 One-seventh
1925 Six-sevenths

Principalswho have been at
Willard School are:
1915- 1940 Grace Troutner
1940- 1957 DorisMorgan
1957 -1965 Kenneth Srnith
1965- 1972 Kenneth Rouse
1972 - Bernard MiUer



SOMEWILLARD SCHOOL HISTORICAL HIGHLIGHTS

Asonebrowsesthrough the early Willard PT.A. records, these historical factsarerevealed. The
school’s name was changed from Grant Park to Willard to honor FrancesWillard who wasaTemper-
ance Union lady of DesMoines. The Temperance | adies presented adrinking fountainin 1909 to
Willard School. Thiswasthefirst indoor fountain in the school and aboveit wasapictureof Miss
Willard. Former Mayor George Whitmer recalled thefirst day that this particular fountain wasused. He
told how the pupilswere placed in straight linesto taketurnsat drinking from thefountain and they
wereinstructed that they must keep their hands behind their backsasamore responsible adult turned
thewater off and on.

Mr. WillieTiley, aformer Willard student recoll ected thisamusing incident which had many students
laughing asthey observed Miss Troutner, thefirst principa of Willard School, running her car intoa
telephone pole upon which sat alineman busy at work. In her attempt to stop her vehicle, shehit the
polesevera times.

Mr. Tiley recalled someof the early discipline practices. It seemsthat Miss Troutner wouldgotoa
ditch south of the school and cut willow switchesto be used for disciplining. Another form of discipline
sheemployed for theolder boys, Willard Nyent through elght grade at thetime, wasforcing themto
dressasgirlsfor theschool day.

WillieTiley a so described the public transportation of many Willard studentsin 1921 and thefoll ow-
ing years. The DesMoines School System hired adriver and hisgreen wagon covered by abeautiful
white canvas, smilar in appearance to aConnestoga\Wagon, to transport the studentsto and from
school daily.

Inthemid 1970'sWillard School’ s student popul ation remainsfairly constant and continuesto be one
of thelarger e ementary schoolsin DesMoines. Thisschool isan |.GE. school meaning it employsthe
Individually Guided Education multi-unit approach toinstruction. Thisisrather unique considering the
fact that Willardisan older building and was not remodel ed when the |.G.E. concept was adopted.
Career Educationisanother important factor in the school’scurriculum. TheTitlel reading programis
proving avauableasset. A Learning Disabilities Resource Teacher a so rendersan important service.

TheWillard Tiniklers, fifth and sixth graders, have made Willard School well known throughout the
state of lowaaswaell asin adjoining states. Their performancesat thelowa State Girls Basketball
Tournament have becomeayearly event and are often carried onlivetelevision. Thistinikling group has
also performed at the lowa State Fair, and a so, for the pleasure of many citizensof DesMoines
retirement and nursing homes. Many educatorsfrom other school systemshaveadsovisited Willard to
observetheseperformersinaction.

InMay, 1970, atrack and field event was begun which hasbecomean annud affair. Thiseventis
known asthe Chet Butler Relays named in memory of Chet Butler, aformer Willard custodian, who
passed away of cancer.

In 1975, Willard School commemorated its 50th anniversary of the present building. TheWillard P T.
A. dsoproudly observed its50th anniversary asit had beenin existencesince 1925. A very extensive
program was presented and many former studentswerein attendance who recalled their happy child-
hood dayswithin Willard'swalls. Dr. Wilbur Miller, president of Drake University, George Whitmer,
former DesMoines mayor, and Robert Wright, aDes M oines attorney, were among theformer stu-
dentswho were present for thismemorable occasion.

Page 104



WINDSOR SCHOOL GradesK-6
58th and University
Site—4.2 acres

Thisbuilding wasnamed for the Windsor family who donated
thelandin memory of their son. Henry Clay Windsor settled
near the present Windsor School in 1840. Theorigina Windsor
building in 1918 wasatwo- room brick structurethat housed
22 pupilsinthe primary grades. The upper gradeyoungsters
attended Perkins.

Theteacher had to walk from the end of the street car lineon
49th street and University. The nurse came about oncea
month, but thefirst one gave up because she did not wish to
walk from 49th to 58th street particularly sinceit washilly. Mr.
Jordan, thefirgt principal had ninesmall out-lying schools. This
kept him busy because transportation wasslow and in some
placesnonexistent.

Whenthefirst Armisticereport wasannounced in November,
1918, schoolswere closed for therest of the day-but not
Windsor. It had no telephone and thus did not hear the news.
Water was provided by awell and the pump waslocked or the
handleremoved at night to prevent thewell from being pumped
dry beforethe pupilsarrived the next day.

The second teacher camein 1922 for the upstairsroom. By
1928 Windsor had four teachers and occupied the main brick
building, an annex and abuilding acrossthestreet. In 1949 the
present main building wasthefirst postwar projectsandin
1954, anineroom addition wascompleted. Theorigina
Windsor structureisnow an annex and isnot used for elemen-
tary classes. In 1965 therewere over 600 pupilsand 20
teachers.

Windsor school inthe 1970s hasactually shown an increase of
studentsfor the past severd yearsrather than adecline. They
maintainthelarge structurefor grades4-6. They areavolun-
tary transfer recelving school which meansthat anumber of
black studentsfromtheinnercity are bused to Windsor. They
alsohaveaprovisionfor serving the hearingimpaired students.
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Windsor

Datesof congruction
- 19180ne-eighth
1949 One-half
1954 Three-eighths

Principaswho haveserved at
Windsor are;
1918 - 1925 Mr. W. Lee Jordan
1925 - 1937 Frances Umpleby
1937 - 1950 ErmaX. Anderson
1950 - 1965 Florence Murphy
1965 - 1966 JamesWise
1967- VirginiaLawrence



Woodlawn

Datesof congtruction
-1953 One-third
1957 Two-thirds
1965 Remodeing-Addition of amusic
room, library, kitchen, teachersroom.

Principalswho have served at Woodlawn
indude:

1953 - 1959 Robert Denny

1960 (6 months) Melvin Rexroat

1960 - 1964 Jack Jones

1964 - 1965 Richard Rose

1965 - 1972 Florence Murphy

1972- OliveDevine

WOODLAWN SCHOOL GradesK-6
Lower Beaver and Madison
Site-4.7 acres

Woodlawn School owesitsnameto thework of a
former member of the Board of Education, Harry L.
Gross, who desired to perpetuate the name of the
former Woodlawn | ndependent School District.

Thisolddigtrict included al theland west of theDes
MoinesRiver, north of Adams Street and Urbandale
Avenue, and east of Merle Hay Road. The north
boundary wasAurora. Theentireareaof Rice,
Moore, and Woodlawn Schoolsaswell as part of the
boundariesof Monroe, Riley, and Hilliswereincluded.

Thereweretwo schoolsinthe Woodlawn School
District. East Woodlawn School at 30th and Euclid
served the eastern part and West Woodlawn School
located on the northwest corner of Beaver and Dou-
glaswasfor thoseyoungstersto thewest. Thebrick
building that was East Woodlawn School istoday the
homeof Mr.and Mrs. S. 0. Blanc andisthefirst
house outsidethe cast gate of the VeteransHospital.
West Woodlawn was aframe structure of theclassic
one-roomvariety; and whenit wasclosed, it was
moved south on Beaver and today isaresidenceat
3828 Beaver. Thesite of West Woodlawn isnow part
of theMeredith pastureand thereislittle evidenceto
show that aschool once stood there. Itisinterestingto
observethat, recently, apart of thistract wasgivento
the DesMoines School Board by the Meredith family,
thus, it will again servethe citizensof DesMoinesfor
educationd purposes. A junior high school isthefirst
school unit onthistract.

We areindebted to, Mr. Harry L. Grossfor the
following paragraphs of information about \Woodlawn.
Thesewerewrittenin 1953, whenthefirst part of
Woodlawnwashuilt:

“When amember of the school board my specia
interest and thought wasthat for the pioneer or old-
timeresidentsof that locality, the continuation of the
name Woodlawn would be appreciated and recog-
nized asbelongingtotheir area.

Unfortunately several yearsago before my mother,
Mrs. Jennie Layman Gross, passed away, | did not
think to secure any historical dataon the membersof
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theoriginal Layman family who haveal passed away. At the origina Layman home, 2701 Euclid, now
owned by agranddaughter, Mrs. LouisLayman Staggs, therea so residesagrandson.

Theenclosed picture of the old Woodlawn School showstheway the building looked for many years, at
least around 1900, or before Euclid Avenue was paved or long before the present hospital waslocatedin
that area. Youwill notethewood shed and fencein thefront, and theland to the south (covered with snow)
which wasnot even planned at that time.

| dorecall my mother saying, when shewent to school intheearly gradesa ong about 1884, frequently
thereweretribesof Indianswho would take what was called the old Ridge Road whichisnow Lower
Beaver near your present school.

| alsorecall that an aunt who recently passed away wasateacher about 1890 at thislittleschool. Aslate
as 1909, | believetherewasaSunday School maintained in thisbuilding for, asyou say, the operation asa
school was discontinued. One of thefew remaining original studentsat the school isMrs. Marybell Shaver
of 2722 Payne Road. It isknown that she went to school there with my mother and her younger brothers
whenthey al lived at the origina farm home constructed about 1866 at 2701 Euclid Avenue.”

In spite of thelarge areathere were not too many familiesresiding in Woodl awn Independent School
Didtrict. Therecordsshow theaverage daily attendance of thetwo schoolsin 1900 wasonly 15! Thisisa
far cry from thethousands of youngstersthat attend the six elementary schoolsinthisareatoday.

In 1907 the Woodlawn School District became apart of the Des M oines|ndependent School District. In
1909 East Woodlawn School closed. When the present Rice School was opened in 1910, West
Woodlawn School was closed and the pupilstransferred there. In 1910-1911 Rice School waslisted for
thefirst timewith astaff of threeteachers.

The pupilsfrom the Woodlawn areaattended Rice School at Beaver and Adamsfrom 1910 until Sep-
tember, 1953 when the* new” Woodlawn School was opened. It consisted of sSix classrooms, anall-
purpose room, kitchen, and office spaces. In the 1953-1954 school year therewere six teachersand 163
pupils. An additiona 30 pupilsweretransported from M oore school which was being expanded.

In September, 1956, four classeswere moved to the Pilgrim Church basement which the Board of
Education had remodeled for school purposes. | nthe meantime blueprintsfor an even larger addition than
originally planned were made and in November, 1956, the contractswere awarded. During all of 1957,
pupils, teachers, and parentswatched the progress of the addition.

In September, 1957, theincreased enrollment and the shortage of classroom space brought about double
sessionsfor anumber of classes. This, dong with the continued use of the church basement facilities, meant
more adjustmentsfor Woodlawn youngsters, teachers, and parents. In November, 1957, the compl etion of
four rooms permitted al pupilsto attend on afull-timeschedule.

OnJanuary 27, 1958, the entire building was occupied and classeswere moved from the Pilgrim Church
basement. For thefirst time since 1956 all the pupilsat Woodlawn School were under oneroof.

Inthe spring of 1958 the parking west of Woodlawn was converted to aplayground area. A lot was
purchased on the south side of Madison, and asmall house wastorn down. This space becamethe parking
lot for Woodlawn faculty and parents. In October, 1958, asmall piece of ground was acquired and added
to the parking site. An addition consisting of anew music room, library, teachersroom and kitchenwas
completed in February, 1966.

Woodlawn school hasasix unit program, PlanA, for grades4, 5, and 6. They participatein thevoluntary
transfer program asthereceiving school for youngstersbused therefrom theinnercity. They have classes
for the educablementally retarded aswell asaresourceteacher inlearning disabilities. They havean active
career education program.
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WRIGHT SCHOOL GradesK-6
5001 S.W. 14th St.
Site-11.2 acres

Wright School was openedinthefall of 1961 having
been built at acost of $477,000. Theformal dedication
was held on Sunday, December 17, 1961, with about
500 persons present.

Guestsof honor included Mrs. MyraWright, 91,
Wrizht widow of Craig T. Wright for whom the school was
named. Dr. ThomasWright of Newton, son of Mr. and
Mrs. Craig Wright, was al so present. Assistant Super-
intendent W. C. Findley, reviewed Craig Wright'syears

Principalswho haveserve at Wright of serviceto the schoolsof DesMoines.

include- Mr. Craig Wright wasanative of DesMoinesand
1961 - 1965 James Daugherty wasawell known lawyer hereuntil hisdeathin 1947.
1965- 1972 Mildred Kaisand He served on the Des M oines School Board for fifteen
1972-  BarbaraSloan years, from 1924-1939,

Wright School washbuilt closeto Hoak School since
thelatter building could not be expanded. Origindly
Hoak wasto have been alarge building but achangein
flight patternsat theairport created arestriction on
enlarging the present facilities. ThusHoak upper grade
pupilsfinish at Wright beforegoing tojunior high
school. Both Hoak and Wright operate asasingle
school unit under thesupervision of asingleprincipal.

Wright School isdecliningin student populaioninthe
mid-1970s. However, the self-contained K-4 classes
and departmentalized classesin grades 5-6 continueto
provideaframework for excelenceinskill building.
Specia emphasisisplaced upon the devel opment of
organizational skills, aswell astherecognition of salf
worth and theworth of other. Studentswith learning
disabilitieshave been provided with meaningful help
through aresourceteacher.

Career education has created afocusfor relevant
activities. Classeshave been offered to both students
and adultsthrough Community Education, and recre-
ationa periodswere established for the community
through the Des M oines Recreation Commission.
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1956—Mr. Hoyt and students

Mes Moines University—2nd and Euclid




Principas
1966 - 1970 Earl Bridgewater
1970-  Lacey Spriggs

Broalv Jumlor Hizh School

BRODY JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL
2601 Park Ave.

Brody Junior High was opened in September, 1966. The plansthat were used were modifications of the
Merrill Junior High architect’sdrawings. Some minor modificationswere made. Themajor additionsthat
weremadeweretheinclusion of air conditioning not intheorigina Merrill building. Thesite selected was
30 acreson the north side of 25th and Park. Thereisan unobstructed view over the Raccoon Valley to
thecity of DesMoinesand isindeed asplendid sitefor ajunior high schoal.

Until the opening of the new Jefferson Elementary School, Brody junior highincluded variouselementary
gradesinvolving severa hundred studentsfor anumber of years. It becameexclusively ajunior high
school in 1974.

The school was named for Joseph L. Brody who was aprominent citizen of DesMoines. A brief descrip-
tion of Mr. Brody and hisbackground follows:

JOSEPH L.BRODY
Graduate of East High School in DesMoines, Grinnell College, University of Chicago Law School,
Honorary L.L.D. Degree, Grinnell College.

Servicetothe DesMoinesCommunity:

Practiced law in DesMoines- 1915-63

Member - Des Moines School Board - 1955-63

President - DesMoines School Board - 1961-62

President - Congregation B’ nai Jeshurun President - Jewish State Welfare Fund

Member - State Executive Committee of the National Conference of Christiansand Jews
President - Polk County Bar Association

Member - American Civil LibertiesUnion

Lay Member - Rhodes Scholarship Committee Director - |owa State TaxpayersA ssociation

Page 110



Programs.

Common Learnings 7th -interdisciplinary teaching with large group, smal group, andindividuaized
ingruction using unipac and multimedia.

Outdoor science classroom

Individuaized math 7th, 8th, 9th Family living 7th grade

Faculty advisory committee

Teacher on-going staff development in areas of human relationsand multi-ethnic sudies

Brody Onstage - musical production Brody On Page - newspaper

Coed home economicsand industrid arts/PE Shared activitieswith Central City schools

Student Council with emphasison school/community service 9th grade. Christmas production

Titlelll Rent-a-Kid Career Guidance- Titlel1l Career Interest Parent and student volunteersin class-
room Student tutoring program

Mini-courses- nonacademic emphasis

Police-School Liaison Program (Brody-Kurtz)

During the 1970’ sthe curriculum at Brody Junior High hasundergone extensive eva uation by thefaculty.
Asaresult theprogram of studieshasbeen cons stently updated and although several of theunitsstill bear
the same name, the subject matter may beentirely different than it wasinthe 1960's, with mgjor emphasis
intheareasof human relationsand student involvement. Theuse of outside activitiesasameans of
broadening the educational experiencesof Brody students hasbeen increased inthelast few yearswith
rewarding results.

Our continued emphasisin the curriculum will be on getting our studentsinvolved inred-life education.

Industrial Arts — 1910
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Callanan Jr. High

Listof Principas.
1928 -1939 C. F. Schropp
1939 - 1942 Walter Trott
1942 - 1954 Delmer Battrick
1954 - 1961 Victor Mastin
Feb 1961 to June, 1961 Harry

Dickson (Acting)

1961 - 1969 Warren W. Nixon
1969- Paul Devin

CALLANAN JR. HIGH SCHOOL Grades?7,8,9
31st and Center

James Callanan cameto DesMoinesin 1863. Hetook the Rock Idland to lowa City, itsterminus, and
then cametherest of theway by stage. A complete sketch of Mr. Callanan appears|ater.

Insofar aseducation isconcerned, Mr. and Mrs. Callanan started an academy on thesite of the
present Methodist Hospital . In fact the central wing of M ethodist Hospital that faces Pleasant, with few
changesistheformer Callanan College.

In regard to the present Callanan Junior High School it isnoted that on October 3, 1921, the Des
M oines School Board purchased from Dr. Dodlittle, for $55,000, aplot of 20 acreslying between 28th
and 31t fronting on Center. Smouse School ison the northeast corner of thistract. Theentiretract of 40
acres had been the homestead of Mr. and Mrs. James Callanan.

In December, 1926, ageneral contract for building thejunior high was|et to Arthur Neumann Com-
pany. The cost of the building and equipment was $400,000. The corner stonewaslaid in 1927 and the
school opened in February, 1928. For many yearsthe building housed somelower e ementary gradesas
well asthejunior high classes.

Anadditionto the building consisting of a beautiful auditorium, aboys' locker room, two classrooms
and anew heating system wasformally opened for uselateinthe spring of 1954.

Theenrollment moved from 584 in 1928 to 1051 in 1934-35 and maintained ahigh level until the
construction of Franklinin 1951.

Biographica Sketch of JamesCallanan

Thehistory books describe James Callanan as one of the most prominent peoplein DesMoinesinfifty
years.

Mr. Callanan, wasborninAlbany, New York, intheyear 1822, where he also was admitted to the bar
and beganto practicelaw. Hewasawaysvery interested in the businessworld and participated in many
venturesfrom which he hoped to becomewedl thy. Some of hisbusinessdealsled him far from hisnative
hometo DesMoines, lowa. Inthelate 1850'shefound it necessary to cometothisprairielandandin
1860, he and hiswife decided to move here. From then on his business became more prosperous.

Many peoplethought of him asbeing aman of two personalities. Inthevast world of businesshewas
very methodical, specific, and exacting. All businessdea swere promptly and accurately fulfilled, whilein
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privatelifeand below hissupposed hard crust, hewasaman of great kindness, generosity, and sincerity.

Quite often hewould drop al obligationsand agree whol e heartedly to forget the entire matter of aperson
whowas unableto repay borrowed money to him. Through thiskind gesture he unawaringly contributed
thousands of dollarsto those who needed it desperately.

Never oncewas he known to refuseto wade in the high mud of unpaved streetsto help ahorsewho had
been left by itsheartlessowner to stiffer.

Besidesthese many things, James Callanan wasashy timid man who preferred to go unnoticed, and work
inasmall, drab officeaway from others.

Hedied at theage of 84, after being ill for nearly ayear, but hismemory will liveforever inlowahistory
books.

From many land holdings, Mr. Callanan el ected to build asuburban homeon aforty acretract west of the
city of DesMoines. Callanan Junior High School now stands on what wasthe northwest corner of that
estate. Theforty acreswasthe property now bound by Center Street on the north, 31st Street onthewest,
Woodland on the south, and 28th Street on the east. Thisland was completely covered with beautiful trees,
largely oak and hickory. Those you see standing on the campus now are some of the very sametrees!
Callanan built alarge home, acarriage house and housing for hishorsesand other animals. Mrs. Callanan
choseto namethe new homelInglebrae. They werevery proud of their country home, whichit wasat that
time. Infact, the streetcars of that day only ranto 15th and Woodland, from there on was considered to be
out inthe country

Mr. Callanan, not being aparty lover or oneliking to stay indoors, spent asmuch timeaspossible at
I nglebrae. Hewould often bring his officework homefrom downtown and work at Inglebrae. Mrs.,
Cdlananwasmoregivento socia affairsand often entertained groupsof prominent women at her home.
Shewasquite activein several women'’s organi zations, especialy those having to do with thetemperance
movement and with effortsto obtain social and political rightsfor women. When the Nationa WWomen's
Suffrage group met in DesMoines, Mrs. Callanan entertained such famouswomen asAmediaJ. Bloomer,
who advocated freedom for women to dress differently, and Susan B. Anthony, who was|eading thefight to
obtaintheright for womentovoteinelections.

Theyear after James Callanan’sdeath, in 1906, Dr. Hill purchased Inglebrae with theintention of making
itinto asanitarium or retreat for personswith temporary mental illness. Thiswasaccomplished and themain
homeand carriage house comprise what isnow known asHill’ s Retreat. Dr, Hill later sold the north half and
part of thewest end of the estate. In 1920, the people of Des M oinesvoted abond issueto build five new
junior high schools. In 1921, for $55,000, they purchased the north 20 acres of the estatefrom Mr. J. C.
Doolittle. Fiveyearslater, in 1926, planswere completed for ajunior high to be built on thewest end of this
property, andin March, 1928, thisnew school was dedicated under the name--James Callanan Junior High
Schooal.

Callanan opened February 1, 1928 with Mr. R. E. Smith asprincipal and Mrs. Miriam Brooksasvice-
principal. The staff consisted of 18 teachersand an office assistant. Theenrollment was489injunior high
and 95in elementary.

Callanan Junior High School ishaving theusua declinein enrollment for themid-1970's, with enrol Iment
at 500-600 students. The changing soci o-economi ¢ status of the community hasresultedinitsbeing class-
fiedasaTitlel school and thusiseligiblefor certain specia funding. For example, they haveTitlel reading,
aswell asthe New Horizons Program. They haveworked diligently intheAlliance of Businesswiththe
American Republic Insurance Company. Thiscompany hasfinanced two week-long ecology projectsin
which studentsbecameinvolvedin environmenta projectsaround the city and state. Thefirst ecology week
washeldin 1971 and the secondin 1974. They were one of the pioneersin thiscooperative movement with
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businessand industry. They adsoinaugurated the SPEL L Program (Student Prescriptive Educationa Learn-
ing Laboratories) and were an early participant inthe World of Manufacturing and World of Work pro-
grams. They haveaninnovativeTitlel1l Career Interest Sudent Survey Program.

The campus has changed in someways; in September 1973 anew school was opened for mentally
retarded students; Ruby Van Meter School was built on the southeast portion of theoriginal Callanan estate.
Between the three school snow, Callanan-Van Meter-Smouse, an outdoor classroom and naturetrail are
being developed. Over 100 trees have been planted in thisareaby Callanan students, along with planting of
other plantsnativeto lowa. This project was started during the ecology week in 1974 and isbeing com-
pleted by scienceclasses.

A mini-classprogram hasfunctioned for threeyears; seventh and eighth grade students are exposed to 42
different two-week unitsin place of thenormal study hall situation.

Callanan has alwaysbeen most activein community relationswork. Over fifty parent volunteersservein
thebuilding in various capacities. In 1971 Callanan won the Vol unteer Bureau Award.

These, plusother programs point up theinterest of the staff of adapting educational programsto the
interests, abilities, and needsof their student bodly.

Previousprincipds,
1951 - 1962 ErwinA. Hafenstein
1962 - 1973 Walter B. Besley
1973- SamlLong

Frankiin Jr. High

FRANKLIN JUNIORHIGH SCHOOL
48th and Franklin Grades 7, 8, 9

Franklin junior High School was opened January, 1951. Thisbuilding carriesthe name of afamous
American, Benjamin Franklin.

InJanuary, 1951, thefirst classes consisted of grades 2, 4, 7, and 8, with an enrollment of 467. Septem-
ber, 1953, wasthefirst timethat Franklin housed grades 7, 8, and 9 exclusively. Being apart of arapidly
growing section of DesMoines, thisfine new building with acapacity of almost 1,000 studentswasquickly
filled to capacity and then overflowing by themid-1950's. Thisnecessitated an additionin 1957 of eight
classrooms, scienceroom, art room, wood shop, metal shop, drafting roomand library. Thisaddition raised
the capacity to approximately 1,400 students.

Theenrollment in February, 1965 151262 and astaff of 51. The peak enrollment of 1562 wasreachedin
September, 1960. The opening of Merrill Junior High in September, 1961 and Meredith Junior Highin
September, 1962 relieved the enrol Iment pressuresat Franklin.
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Over 50% of junior high students participateininstrumental or vocal groupsother thaninmusic
classes.

Inthemid-1970sFranklin junior high school continuesasone of thelargest junior high schoolsinthe
city with upwardsof 1100 studentsin attendance. They haveavariety of programsavailableand these
includetheTitlell1 Career Interest Student Survey. They participatein the Police-School Liaison pro-
gram being affiliated with Roosevelt in thisrespect. They carry out acorrelated studies programwhichis
aninter-discipline approach for 80 7th grade students.

They participatein thevoluntary transfer program which meansthat they arerecipient of about 100
innercity black studentswho elect to attend Franklin.

They have aclassin photography aswell asan ecology club. Their career education clustersinclude
theWorld of Construction, Communication and Media, Public Service, Environmenta Science, and
Hospitality and Recreation.

Datesof congtruction
-1961-8 room pluslibrary addition

Principasof Goodrell J. High
School have been:
1955 - 1959 Merle F. Schlampp
1959 - 1971 Raymond D.
Bishop1971-  Norman
Miller

Goodrell Jr. High

MAY GOODRELL JUNIORHIGH SCHOOL
East 29th Street and Ovid Avenue Grades 7, 8, 9

Original building openedin 1955--cost $1,377,090. In 1961 an 8 room pluslibrary addition was
opened costing $210,784. Now it hasatota of 33 teaching stations. Educationally it offersaregular
junior high programwith 4 half-timeelectivesingrade7, 7ingrade 8, and 12 haf-timeand full-time
electivesingrade9.

MAY GOODRELL ISNAMED AFTERMAY GOODRELL

Even on May Goodrell’s 18th anniversary many studentsdon’t know who May Goodrell was. Miss
Goodrell, knownto hundreds of friendsand former studentsas“Aunt May’ wasbest known asthe
former principa of East High School.

MissGoodrell wasbornin DesMoines, lowain 1859. She graduated from East Highin 1877 and
wasteaching at Bryant School by 1890. By 1891 shewasassistant principal at East High. Tenyears
later shebecamethe principal of East High and remainedinthejob for eight years. During that timea
new East High building wasbuilt at 13th and Walker Streets. Inthe spring of 1912, Miss Goodrell,
carrying booksand achair, led aprocession fromthe old East High to the new one.

In 1918, she had relinquished the principal ship at East High to becomethe Director of the Bureau of
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Child Labor of the DesMoines schools. She spent two yearsat that work and then returned to school
work asthe Director of the Department of Attendance and Employment.

East High faculty membersand students presented her with asilver goblet commemorating her lifeasa
teacher and student. Aspresident of the East High School Alumni Association, MissGoodrell received a
number of honors. To show their appreciation of her leadership and guidance at East, High School, the
alumni sent her to Europewith al expensespaid. Throughout her 40 year career she had threebasic
characteristics. Shewasalwaysdescribed asstrict, firmandfair.

Mr. L. K. Boutin, aformer pupil under Miss Goodrell, described her as*well respected and well
thought of.” Dr. Harry Dahl, amember of the school board when May Goodrell wasbuilt, described her
as“outstanding.”

Miss Goodrell wasrushed to the hospital on August 29, 1939 after she suffered afracture of theright
hipinafall. Bronchia pneumoniaresulted. Thisdiseasewasgiven asthecause of her desth. May
Goodrell died September 3, 1939 at theage of 80. Her sister and family aretill living herein Des
Moines. Her memory isstill kept alive by the school that was named after her - MAY GOODRELL -
THE PRIDE OF DESMOINES.

Inthemid-1970s Goodrell findsitsalf faced with anumber of empty classrooms. The opening of Hoyt
Middle Schoal to the east of them took agood many studentswho wereformerly inthe Goodrell
attendancearea. Their enrollment in 1972 wasover 1000 and in 1975 was about 720.

Their educational programsincludeTitlell1 Career Interest Student Survey aswell asTitlel11 Rent-A-
Kid. Inthe World of Work they have typing and businesstraining. They participatein the Police-School
Liaison program and have alearning disabilitiesresource teacher. They a so maintain amath lab, special
hel pfor reading improvement, student tutoring and peer counseling.
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Principds

1926 - 1956 James M. Sterrett
- 1956 - 1971 Chester A. Pratt

. 1971-  Robert J. Donly

Harding Jr. High

WARREN HARDING JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL
Euclid Ave. and Cambridge Grades 7, 8,9

About thetimethis school wasbeing built, there seemed to beamarked tendency to name school
houses after American presidents. Warren Harding Junior High, completed in 1926, was no exception to
that rule. It was named for the then recently deceased Warren Gamaliel Harding, 29th President of the
United States, who had been in office only 29 monthswhen hisdegath occurred in 1923.

Datesof Construction

The corner stone of Warren Harding waslaid on Thursday, May 7,1925. The student body and
faculty moved into thebuilding in February 1926.

During the 1959-1960 school year, acomplete remodeling of al shower and locker facilitieswas
donein conjunction with the building of anew gymfor theboys. All hall lockerswerereplacedanda
new Intercom systeminstalled during the summer of 1971.

The Student Council financed the purchase of placement of amonument at the corner of East Euclid
and Corndll during the 1971-1972 school year. The monument enhancesthe corner and givesthe name
of the school and theyear of itsopening.

Brief History

Warren Harding Junior High, built at acost of $587,692, opened itsdoorsin February, 1926, with an
enrollment of 525 students. Therewasasteady increasein the student population until apeak enrollment
of 1095 wasreached in September, 1960.

Thenew gym and remodeled facilitiesput into full use with the opening of the 1959-1960 school year
enabled Warren Harding to have an expanded physical education and intramural program.

Inthefabul ous50'scame Sputnik. The school sreorganized their curriculum to meet theneed for a
more scientific approach.

Whilestruggling to revamp curriculumintheearly 60's, rights, riotsand supremeruleshad aserious
impact on schools. Warren Harding Junior High administration, staff, and the Des M oines School s, made
what they thought to be ajust decision regarding “black arm bands’ .

The Supreme Court of the United States, initsdecision, over-ruled the opinionsof thelower courts
and the school digtrict. Tinker vs. DesM oines School sbecamethe basisfor the many student rights
decisionswhich havefollowed. What began and had itsinception at Warren Harding Junior High has
had aprofound effect on all schoolsinthe United States.
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January 10, 1974, oil, from abroken feeder line, ignited, causing extensive smoke and fire damage.
Temporary school facilitieswereset up in space availableat North High. Accommodationswere
crowded. Threeweeksafter thefire, wewerealowed to return to our building. Two other firesoc-
curred, during ashort period after our return, which were determined to bethework of an arsoni<t.

During the 1975-1976 school year, Warren Harding Junior Highwill celebrateits 50th anniversary of
educationa servicetothecommunity.

Educationa Program

The organization of ajunior high school geared to meet the needs of the adolescent involvesavaried
program built around the activities of thisage group providing valuabletraining in scholarship, sportsman-
ship, leadership, and service.

The program at Warren Harding isplanned to provide continued training the basi c areas of knowledge;
to enabl e studentsto expl ore academi c and non-academic areasfor vocationa and avocational possibili-
ties dependent upon their interest, aptitude and ability; to learnto live with and understand those with
differing backgroundsor customs; and to achieve abetter understanding of their own rightsand responsi-
bilitiesto their self and others.

With student rights, teachersrightsand therightsof theindividua themid 70’ sfindsour programsbeing
congantly examined. Therightsof al interest groupsarethoroughly explored by al 8th grade socia
science studentsduring an extended unit on American Diversities.

Career Education hasbeen integrated into al subject areateaching. Students|earn thewhat, thewhy
andthehow of their career interest. Onthejob visitationsin differing career interestsareapart of our
programin Manpower and Economics.

Learning Disabilitiesarerece ving much recognition. Our Specia Program Utilizing Resource Teachers
(SPURT) isenabling studentsto examinetheir bas ¢ fundamentalsand improvethemwherethey find
themselvesto beweak. Volunteers have been beneficiad in making the program work. They providethe
one-to-onelearning Stuation which many studentsneed.

During the 1975-1976 school year Warren Harding Junior High will participatein the Statewide
M athemati csA ssessment Program.

Interscholastic athletic events at the 9th gradelevel, for boys, beganin 1967, with competitionin
basketball, wrestling and track. Competition, for girls, beganin 1973, with softball, basketbal| and track.

Inthemid 70'sWarren Harding Junior High continuesto maintain ahigh student population. They
participatein thevoluntary transfer program which permitsinnercity black studentsto el ect to attend
Harding. They participateintheTitlel11 Career Interest Survey andtheTitle I Rent-a-Kid program.
Other programs, which they participatein are, theWorld of Construction, Police-School Liaisonand
SPURT, the program for studentswith learning disabilities.
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Principalswho have served at Amos
Hiattare:
1918- 1923 R. J. Cornéll
1923 (Jan.-June) Mae Goldizan
1923- 1929 R. L. Grigshy
1929- 1935 S. E. Thompson
1935 - 1939 C. O. Hoyt
1939 - 1942 Victor Mastin
1942 - 1946 Elmer Betz
1946 -1960L. L. Wires
1 1960 - 1961 Robert Denny
Higtt Jr. High 1961 - 1964 Gareld Jackson

1964 - 1966 Bruce Gardner
AMOSHIATT JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL 1967-  Phillip Cooper

E. 15th and 6arfield Grades 7, 8, 9

HISTORY OFAMOSHIATT JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL 1918 - 1965

AmosHiatt Junior High School had itsbeginning inthe building on E. 12th and Court. Thisbuilding,
knownvarioudy as*Old East” and*“ Old Amos,” wasfirst occupied in March, 1891 when pupilsfrom
Webster and Bryant marched over in asnowstorm to bethefirst occupants. From 1891 to 1903 it wasa
grade school and high school combined, then Cary wasbuilt to house the elementary grades. Mr. Amos
Hiatt was superintendent of East Des M oines Schools, and his office and the office of the board of
education wasat the E. 12th and Court | ocation.

In 1912 the high school students moved to the new East High School building and inthefall of that year
the DesMoines Grammar School, made up of the seventh and el ghth grade pupilsfrom Webster,
Longfellow and Bryant was opened at thislocation.

OnanightinMarch, 1915, the building caught fire and equipment and furnishingswere destroyed. The
eighth gradewas moved to thethird floor of East High and the seventh gradeto thethird floor of
Webster. The building wasrepaired that summer and in thefal it again housed the DesM oines Grammar
Schooal.

AmosHiatt Junior High School was established September, 1918, following reorganization of the
Grammar School. Mr. R. J. Cornéll, itsfirst principal, pioneered thejunior high school movementin Des
Moines.

During the summer of 1918 the Parent Teachers Organization cooperated with the school officiasin
the selection of anamefor the school. The name of Mr. AmosHiatt, 18 years Superintendent of East Des
Moines Schools, was chosen and permission to use his namewas obtai ned. Announcement of Mr. Hiatt's
|etter of permission wasmade at astudent assembly and thisassembly then voted on the school colors,
greenandgold.

During the 1967-68 school year Amos Hiatt celebrated its 50th Anniversary. The PTA planned severa
eventsin honor of the celebration with al activitiesculminating onApril 23, 1968. At that time an open
housewasheld so that former pupils, teachers, administrators and patrons could meet for an evening of
reminiscing and renewing of past friendships.

During thisperiod of time, typing wasinitiated to thejunior high program and awork experience
programwhich givesonthejobtraining at thejunior high level wasingtituted. Both have proved to be
popular and productive courses.

Theattendance at Hiatt has declined somewhat in the past few yearsand in 1975 hasan enrollment of
about 630 students. Their programsincludeTitle! Spellingaswell asTitlel Reading. They havean active
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New Horizonsprogram. They havethe World of Manufacturing aswell asthe SPEL L program. They
havethe community cultural recreational program aswell asthe Police-School Liaison program.

Principds
1971 - Wendell Webb

. -nﬂ- iﬁ?ﬁ%._

HOYT MIDDLE SCHOOL

HOYT MIDDLE SCHOOL
1700 E. 42nd Street

Hoyt Middle School opened asan e ementary building in September, 1968. The building was
designed asan elementary building that |ater could be expanded to ajunior high school structure. This
wasdonewith an eyeto thefuture and an anaysisof theenrollment trends. It was seen that ajunior
high school building would be needed to relievethe enrollment pressuresthat weretaking place at
Goodrell and Wilson Junior High Schoolsinthe eastern part of the city. Hoyt wasan elementary
school from 1968-1972.

A great deal of work planning and study went into the matter of devel oping amiddle school at the
Hoyt site. Theresult wasthat the Hoyt Middle School was opened in September, 1972. The new
Hoyt Middle School addition consisted of 21 classrooms, an auditorium, cafeteria, gymandalibrary.
Thetotal amount spent on construction was $1,684,000. InAugust, 1974, acontract waslet for an
addition of amusic room and practice areasin the amount of $103,500. In 1975 still another addition
was contracted for expanding theindustria arts shop areaand theamount of the budget alocated for
this project was $120,000.

Theopen areas of the new Hoyt Middle School presented adifferent organizational patternand
team teaching Situation. The Citizens Planning Committeethat worked on thisdecided they would like
the head of the school called an executive coordinator with the other jobsindicated asan administra
tive coordinator, coordinator for instruction, coordinator for pupil affairs, and acoordinator for com-
munity affairs. Inthislast respect avery active adult program istaking placeat Hoyt with hundreds of
studentsand adultsfrom the areaparticipating in the nighttime use of the building.

The 1975 Hoyt curriculumincludesfour genera related areas of study taught by teaching teams.

I. Math/Science - Continuous progress and ungraded. Outdoor classroom and problem solving
techniquesincorporated.

I1. LanguageArts Socia Science- The Socia Sciencevehicleisused toteach LanguageArts. This
team hasafour year teaching cycleand ahighly organized basic skillsprogram.

[11. Fineand Applied Arts- Art, Music, Career Education Exploration, Business Education, World
of Manufacturing, World of Construction, Consumer and Family Education.
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IV. Hedlth/ Physical Education/ Recreation (co-educational) , Physical Education, Hedlth, career
approach to Communication Mediaaswell asthe Hospitality and Recreation cluster, Leisure Reading,
Group Guidance.

Therewill bealL earning Disability program, Pupil Servicesaswell asfull extracurricular and club
program. Hoyt continuestoindividuaizeingtruction and offer options. Thestaff isdifferentiated. The
philosophy embracesfieldtrips, volunteer workersand extensive community input through an active
Community Advisory Boardand PT.A.

Hoyt maintainsabusinessalliance project with John Deere. The organization since 1973 has continued
toincludesixth gradersfromthearea, sincethereisnot room for these studentsat the McK ee Elemen-
tary and Douglas Elementary School. Thusfor 1975-76 the grade rangefor Hoyt isgrades 6 through 9.

Followingisadescription of thelife of Cress0. Hoyt, the person for whom thisbuilding was named.

Cress. 0. Hoyt wasateacher coach, vice principal, principal, assi stant superintendent, and superinten-
dent in the DesMoines schoolsfrom 1922 until thetime of hisdeath on March 1, 1957.

Mr. Hoyt wasborn February 26, 1891, onthefamily farminAdair County. Hisfather’searly death
left him asthe oldest boy inthefamily, then living at home. Heand hisbrother, Charles, stayed out of
school for two yearsand farmed theland.

In 1914, when hisbrother Charleswas graduated from high school, hismother moved thefamily to
Grinnell in order to makeit possiblefor the brothersand sistersto attend college. Mr. Hoyt joined the
family and entered Grinnell Collegewhere he played | eft tackle on the undefeated footbal | team, whichin
1916-1917 met major competitionincluding the University of lowa. Hewasvoted one of thetwo
outstanding linemeninthestatein 1917.

Because hewasthe oldest boy inthefamily, the students gave him the nickname of “ Dad.” Hewas
known by that nametherest of hislife.

WhenWorldWar | came, heenlisted in Naval Aviation. Inthe Spring of 1918, onleavefromthe
Navy, hewasgraduated with hiscollege class. Hewas discharged in January, 1919.

Hebecame ateacher and coach of football at Oskal 0osa, lowa, in September, 1919, and in 1922,
accepted the position associa studiesteacher and football coach at East High, DesMoines. During the
rest of hislife hewas contacted by former playersand studentswho so greatly respected and admired
him - agreat tribute.

In 1935, Mr. Hoyt was appointed vice principal at East High School. In 1936 he becamethe principal
of AmosHiatt Junior High School, andin 1939, principal of Roosevelt High School. In each school he
was highly successful and when hewas appointed assi stant superintendent of schoolsin 1941, hehada
host of friendsand supporters.

In 1955 Mr. Hoyt was appointed to the superintendency of thelargest school systeminthe state. He
had demonstrated hisleadership qualities, histeaching skills, and hisdedicationto educationinal of his
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previousand diverse experiences. Hisability toingtill asense of high endeavor in hiscolleagues, his
vison and courage, will long befelt by al inthefield of education.

Mr. Hoyt wasfortunatein hispersonal life. Heenjoyed lifeand living. He had the devoted and
stimul ating companionship of two unusua womenwho enriched hislife. In 1920 hemarried Mary
Bartley, ahome economicsteacher at Roosevelt, who died in 1937 leaving Mr. Hoyt and ason, Jack.
INn 1942, he married Genevieve Anderson, the Director of Elementary Educationinthe DesMoines
School, who later becameaprofessor at Drake University.

Mr. Hoyt had many and varied interestsin educational and community organizations. Hewasa
member of Phi DeltaK appa, president of |owa Schoolmasters Walt Whitman Club, member and
officer of the Des M oines Educational A ssociation, the Commission on Teacher Educationand
Professional Standards, National Education Association, American Association of School Administra:
torsand lowaEducationa A ssociation. Hewasalso a40-year member of the Baldwin Patterson
American Legion Pogt, the East Des M oines Club, member and president of the Lions Club, Capitol
Masonic Lodge, Commandry and the ZaGaZig Shrine. Hewasamember of the Plymouth Congre-
gationd Church.

C. O. Hoyt wasabig man, asensitive and perceptive man of unique personaity, who had the ability
to establish closerapport with all of hisassociates. He wasagenerous man who had asixth sense
concerning human relations- agreat humanitarian.
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Previousprincipas.

1926 - 1941 Walter 0. Allen
1942 -1945L. L. Wires

1945 - 1946 Victor E. Mastin
1946 - 1954 Emmett J. Hasty
1954 - 1961 Warren W. Nixon
1961 - 1965 Donad R. Emanuel
1965 - 1966 Earl Bridgewater
1966 - 1970 Lacey Spriggs
irving Jr. High 1970-  Gerald Conley

WASHINGTON IRVING JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL
16th and Forest Grades 7, 8, 9

Thecornerstonewaslaid onApril 28, 1925, and classes began September, 1926. Washington
[rving Hunior High School isnamed for Washington on Irving, America spioneer inthefield of
generd literature. It wasgiventhisnamein 1918.

Washington Irving cameinto existencein 1918 asoneof thefirst two junior high schoolsin Des
Moines, AmosHiatt wasthe other one. At that time I rving was housed in the old Forest Home
building on the southwest corner of 13th Street Place and Forest. Thisbuildingwaserectedin
1925-26. It was added to the Nash elementary structurethat existed onthe site. Thustherewas
both an elementary and ajunior high school under the sameroof.

Because of the nature of our school, the Irving faculty must continually be aware of their responsi-
bilitiesin guidance and citizenship. They need to help pupilsgrow in sdf-redlization through the
mastery of basic skillsand abetter understanding of theworldinwhichthey live. Thismust be
accomplished by awakening their interestsinlearning through motivated instruction on such level sas
they aresuccessfully ableto master.

Irvinginthemid-1970sfindsitsalf with areduced student enrolIment duein largemeasureto the
voluntary transfer program. Many of thejunior high school students have elected to be bused to
other junior high schoolsin thecity. Asthisreport isbe ng written one of therecommendationsfor
desegregation would beto closelrving junior high school in September, 1976.

Thiswas adopted by the Board of Educationin June, 1975. Theexact distribution of students
now inthelrving attendanceareaistill amatter of discussion.
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Principasof Kurtz have been:

1959 - 1965 Merle F. Schlampp

[ - 1965 - 1971 Donald Emanuel
— 1971- VelmaCross

Hurte Jr, High

LOUISKURTZ JUNIORHIGH SCHOOL Grades7, 8,9
S.W. 12th & Porter

Sincetheincorporation of Bloomfield Townshipin 1919, Southwest DesMoineshaswitnessed a
great expansioninthebuilding of churches, storesand motels. But what ismost remarkable about the
south sideisthegresat increasein the number of new homesbeing built. Itisfitting then that Kurtz Junior
High School hasbeen erected to serve the educational needs of thisrapidly devel oping community. The
floor plan of Goodrell Junior Highwasa so used for the Kurtz building. Mr. Schlampp who wasthefirst
principal of Goodrell dso becamethefirst principal of Kurtz.

LouisC. Kurtz wasapioneer Des M oinesbus nessman who served hiscommunity in many ways. He
wasamember of the Board of Education for many years. Inthistradition, Kurtz Junior High School will
striveto maintain high standards of educational and socia development for the studentswho will bethe
citizensof tomorrow.

Continual increasein numbersof students- team teaching and large classesin English and social
science. Kurtz operateswith no bells, no student council and no hall monitors; al studentshavetheir
own placesto sit in thelunchroom.

Contract L et - September 1957.

Datesitewasacquired - 1951 to 1955

Date construction started - October 1, 1957 -- 30 classrooms
Grades 7 through 9 -- 1000 students

FACILITIES
Saff Offices, Cafeteriaand Kitchen Auditorium Seating 750 Double Gymnasiumwith Folding Bleachers
Seating 700 Library

Kurtz Junior Highinthemid-1970sfindsitsalf with asharply reduced student population. Thisisdue
inlarge measureto the opening of McCombs school to the south of them. The programsat Kurtz
includetheTitlelll Career Interest Student Survey aswell astheTitlell Rent-a-Kid program. They
offer astudent potential enhancement program at the 7th gradelevel. Their career education programis
especidly broad sinceit includesthefollowing; Communication and Media, Environment, Public Ser-
vice, Marketing and Distribution and World of Work Economic Education. Beginning in 1974 the school
has aspring greenhouse project. Thishasbeen adynamic arrangement whereby most of the students at
Kurtz areinvolvedinthisecol ogical movement to grow and sell plants. It has proved to beaunique
learning experiencethat isbeing copied in other junior high schoolsacrossthecity.
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The7-period day dlowsall 7th and 8th grade studentsto have Physical Education every day and both
boysand girlsinthe 9th gradeto have Hedlth classaternating with Physical Education. Thenurseanda
male Health teacher work asateam to plan and teach this practical course uniquein DesMoines Schoals.
All 7th, 8th and 9th grade studentsreceive First Aid training. All teachersand 9th grade students com-
pleted the Red Cross First Aid Course.

The Developmental reading program providesdaily reading instruction for 7th and 8th grade students.
| ndependent reading, an eectivefor 9th grade, istaught by thelibrarian.

8th Grade students operatethe K Math Company. All aspects of an employee’slifewheremoney is
concerned are covered including social security, taxes, wages, etc.

Industrial Artsand Homemaking are coeducationa aswell asmany Physical Education activities. Artin
7th grade, and musicin 8th are offered every student daily.

Oneof themost successful activitiesinthestudent activity fair whichisheldinthefal semester. Every
department in the school presentsademonstration and/or sellsaproduct made by studentsin that depart-
ment. The project was planned as an approach to open house which had suffered declining attendance. It
wasvery well supported by the community asafamily open houseinvolving students, parents, teachers,
and othersinthecommunity.

-4

Dates of Construction:
1973
Princid:
1973- Wendell Miskimins

Mol LIYIRS

McCombs Junior High Schoal
201 S. W. County Line Road
Principal Grades7-8-9

McCombsisamodified open-space school. Some areas are semi-open and others are quite self-
contained. The students havethe experience of workingin both kinds of situationsasthey go through
school. The spaceisused to benefit the students according to the need of theindividual child and accord-
ing to themogt satisfactory meansof hislearning thevariousareasof the curriculum.

Thegoal isto help each student. Effortismadeto find out at what level of learning each studentisand
to hephimtogofromthat level. To accomplishthisspecia skill groupshave been established inlanguage
artsand socia science. Thisisto teach the studentswhat they do not aready know or to teach them
something new to them. In math the students are placed at thelevel wherethey areand where each one
can succeed and moveonward. Thereading programishighly individualized. Thegroupsare carefully
selected. Some students do not take reading because they do not need it. Thereisa Skill Lab manned by
volunteer parentsor community residents. Thishasbeen successful.
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Thecurriculumisextensiveinthefineand applied artsareas. Offeringsinclude band, orchestra,
chorusand music. Theart coursesare on athree-year cycle so that astudent wanting three years of
art may experience different kinds each year. Inthe shop areathereistheworld of construction,
world of manufacturing, world of communication including experiencewith printing presses.

McCombsisthefirst and only junior high school in DesMoinesto offer anAgri-Businesscourse.
(Seventy percent of all businessinlowaisrelated to agriculture.) A student may chooseto takethree
yearsof home economicsincluding vocational home economics. Thecurriculumiscareer education
oriented. McCombs school has been designated for oneyear asacareer education junior high. This
istheonly junior highin DesMoineswith aCareer ,Education Advisory Committee. Members
includefaculty and parentsfrom McCombsand itsfeeder el ementary schools.

The science program, Intermediate Science Education Studies (I SES) isbased on the scientific
methods of experimentation. In addition the students have coursesin environment and Unified
Scienceand Math for Elementary Schools. (USMES).

Thephysica education program for both boysand girlsinclude cross country, soccer, basketball,
volley ball, softbal, golf, tennisand recreational games. Interest activities serve asthe core-curricu-
lum and they are adjusted to the needs and interest of the students. Studentswith special interestin
athleticsmay usethe gym every morning from 7:15to 8:15. After school thereisanintramural
programinvolving homeroomsor by signing up for ateam.

McCombs studentsa so have awidevariety of extra-curricular clubsand activitiesto choosefrom
including Drama, Photography, Future Homemakers, Future Farmers, and Art Club. These offer
many worthwhile and interesting activitiesand experiences. Service Club, Y-Teensand Pep Club
offer opportunitiesfor serviceto McCombsaswell associal activities.

Studentstal ented and interested in music are encouraged to try out for Swing Choir and Stage
Band or join the chorus. In addition the newspaper staff providesan outlet for creative ability and
Student Council an opportunity for participation inthe democratic processaswell asdeveloping
leadership potential.

McCombsisacommunity school wheremany activitiestake place during theweek after schoal. In
addition to those named above they haverecreation for the studentsand night school for students
and adults of the community. Thereisan on-going Parent Action Group.

It haslong been acustomin DesMoinesto giveto aschool the name of aperson who hasmadea
significant contribution to thefieldsof education, government, and socia organizations. Many of these
persons have been nationally known figuresaswell ascommunity leaders. Newell Devin McCombs
iseminently qualifiedinal categoriesfor thishonor. Hewasanationally known educator who held
positionsinlowapublic school systemsfor thirty- fiveyears, thelast nineteen yearsbeing with the
DesMoinesPublic SchoolsasAssistant Superintendent from 1937 to 1941 and Superintendent from
1941 to 1956.

Mr. McCombswas born December 13, 1895, in DeSoto, lowa. Hedied May 27, 1966 at age
seventy, in. St. Petersburg, Florida, whereheand hiswifelivedinretirement for ten years.

Hewas graduated from DeSoto High School in 1914 and entered Simpson Collegein Indianola,
lowain 1915 where heworked to earn money for hisschooling waiting tablesand serving asa
student instructor in chemistry. He concentrated academically on theareas of physics, chemistry, and
economics. He played the cornet and wasamember of aquartet that traveled extensively inthe
Midwest during vacations.

Hiseducation wasinterrupted after two yearswhen heenlisted inthe U.S. Navy during World War
[, serving primarily asaspecia lecturer and instructor of wirelesstelegraphy (radio) at Harvard
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University. Hereturned to Simpson College after discharge from the servicein 1919 where he com-
pleted two years of schooling in oneyear, graduating at thetop of hisclasswithaB. A. degreein
1920.

He spent oneyear training at an automobile deal ership before accepting hisfirst positionin education
asahigh school scienceinstructor in Cherokee, lowain 1921. Four yearslater (1925) hebecame
principal of the high school and oneyear later (1926) he was appointed as Superintendent of Chero-
kee Public Schools. He attended summer sessionsat the University of Californiaand the University of
lowa, receiving hisM.A. degreefrom the University of lowain 1927. He continued graduate work
during summersat Northwestern University, Chicago University, and New York University.

He served in the capacity of Superintendent of Schoolsat Cherokee, lowauntil 1936. Hethen
became Superintendent of Schoolsat Muscatine, lowafor oneyear before accepting the position of
Assistant Superintendent of Schoolsin DesMoines, where he completed his career asan educator. In
1943 hereceived, from Simpson College, the honorary degree of Doctor of Education, andin 1944 he
received, from Drake University, an honorary Doctor of Lawsdegree.

“Mr. Mag” wasaman of highidealsand great intellectud ability, aman of many accomplishments, a
man of friendly dignity, and aman of quiet courage and strength, the* likes’ of whomwill not be seen
foralongtime, if ever.
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Principds
1962 - 1970 Victor Mastin
1970- Gerald Dockum

W!gr-

Meredith Jr. High

MEREDITH JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL
West 48th and Madison
Grades 7, 8,9

Meredith Junior High School was opened September 2, 1962. Thisbuilding honorsthe memory of
Edwin T. Meredith who served lowaand the nation in thefollowing capacities:

Secretary of Agricultureof the United States

Trustee of Drake University and Simpson College

Publisher of Better Homesand Gardens, Successful Farming and others

Director of United States Chamber of Commerce Director of Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago

President of Associated Advertising Clubsof theWorld Member of the British War Commission

TheMeredith family donated the 50 acre site upon which Meredith Junior High School and Herbert
Hoover High School arelocated.

Meredith wasorigindly planned and built under the*little school” plan, whichinvolved three schools
within aschool, each withitswing principal. During thethree year period the student was at Meredith he
or shewas assigned to the same homeroorn and the samewing. Thisbasi c concept wasfollowed until
approximately 1970, when the administrative structure was changed to providefor aprincipal, onevice
principa, and acentralized counsdling arrangement.

Theorigina planfor Meredithinvolved thefuture addition of asenior high to the north of thejunior
high building. Thiswasaccomplished inthefall of 1967 when Herbert Hoover High School acceptedits
first students. These buildings share some common facilities, including theMeredith kitchen which
preparesfood to serve both schools, the Hoover auditoriumisavailablefor use by thejunior high, and
other sharing of facilitiesand staff. Thisjoint sharing wasfurther facilitated when the current principa of
M eredith was appointed to administer both buildingsin January of 1974. Thishasresulted in the plant
and transportati on force being combined under one head custodian for both buildings.

Anadditiontotheoriginal structure openedin 1972. Thisaddition included three generd classrooms,
amusic room, and theremodeling of existing roomsto provide additiona art and homemaking spaces.
Thisaddition allowed theremoval of three portable classroomsthat had beeninusefor severa years.
Whilethe capacity of theorigina building was 750 students, enrollment had climbed to ahigh of 1,011
studentsin September of 1968. The use of the portabl e classrooms plus classroom space at Hoover
was required to accommodate the overflow of students. A boundary changein 1968 transferred several
studentsto Franklin and enrollment has gradually moved to approximately 850 students per year the
past few years.
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Theschoal iscontinuing to maintainitsstudent population, largely because of the open enrollment and the
voluntary transfer program. Approximately 10 per cent of the current enrollment ismade up of students
who liveoutsidethe designated attendance area.

Theschool operatesonabasically traditional structurewith various patternsof instruction, including team
teaching and individualized approaches. Recent years have seen the addition of specialized personne,
including apoliceliaison officer, asocia worker assignedto dl schoolsinthearea, aspecificlearning
disabilitiesresource person, speciaized reading ingtructor, and aspecia education resource person. Thus,
whilethethrustisstill toward providing abasi c backgroundin the academic areas, increased provisionis
madeto help al studentsaccordingto their needsand abilities..

Meredithreceived national publicity inanarticle, A Junior High Little School, written by Dr. Robert
Denny and Dr. Victor Mastin for the June, 1963, of the American School Board Journal. Thisarticlewas
reprinted in the October, 1963, issue of Midland Schools.

Detailed information about M eredith:

Origind Building

Size- 81,350 squarefeet

Contract let - March 18, 1961 Siteacquired (gift) - 1957

Construction started - May 1, 1961 Cost - General contractor
Mechanical contractor Electrical contractor

Total (Cost per square foot $16.90) Architect’s fee $68,690
Equipment $188,000
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Principalsof Merrill have been:
1961- 1974 Edward Bigot
1974-  John 1. Barrett

Merrill Ir. High

MERRILL JR. HIGH SCHOOL
52nd and Grand
Grades 7, 8,9

Merrill Jr. High School was opened for studentsin September, 1961. Thisbuilding honored the memory
of aman who had devoted themajor portion of hislifeto the education of boysand girlsin DesMoines,
Mr. Albert W. Merrill.

Mr. Merrill’slong tenureisgiven below:

Principal, Forest HomeHigh School ... 1892 - 93
Teacher, West High School  ................... 1901-11
Principal, NorthHigh School  ................ 1918 - 23
Assistant Superintendent — .......... 1923 - 34
Acting Superintendent — ............... 1934 - 37

Superintendent of Schools 1937 - 41

Withthe opening of Merrill, thejunior high at Roosevelt ceased to exist and it becameasenior high unit.
Merrill too, provided somerelief for Hanawalt Elementary School. It isinteresting to read inthe Grieder
Building Study of 1939, that the siteat 52nd and Grand should house all of the lementary pupilsat
Hanawadlt“plusasmal junior high.” Thereverse hashappened withasmall e ementary enrollment attend-
ing withamuch larger junior high group. Jordan Elementary School stood ontheMerrill Site-intheearly
part of the century-

Specificinformation about Merrill isgivenin an abbreviated fashion below:

Contractlet  September 15, 1959

Siteacquired 1944101959 - 9.5 acres

Date construction started - September 19, 1959 24 classrooms

Grades7 through 9

Plus4 e ementary classrooms

750 students
Facilities
Staff offices, cafeteria, master kitchen
L ectureroom seating 250
Doublegymnas umwith folding bleachers seating 500
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Library

Future Expansion

Two story classroom addition

Contents 89,500 square feet 900,000 cubic feet

Cost
General Contractor ........ccoeeeeveveeeeesns cne $1,081,147
Mechanical contractor ..........cccceeeevveeiee veeene 268,500
Electrical contractor ...........ccceveveveeeies cevveeeennen. 98,493
TOAl e e $1,448,140
ArchitectSfee ... e, $ 42407

Cost per squarefoot - $16.18, exclusive of Architect’sfee
Builders- William Knudson & Sons, A. J. Allen Plumbing & Heating Co., Weston Electric

Gradesfifth and sixth remained at Merrill until the Fall of 1973 when the construction of anew addition
to Hanawalt Elementary School alowed for the departure of the elementary grades. During thistimethe
peak enrollment was 867 in 1968. Beginningin 1968 Merrill wasdesignated asareceiving school for the
Voluntary Transfer Program initiated by the school district to providefor better city wideintegration of
minority students. Thefirst year eighteen studentswere bused to Merrill. The program expanded over the
yearsso that 72 studentswere scheduled to attend Merrill inthe Fall of 1975.

Merrill hasmaintained arather traditional curriculumthroughtheyearsintermsof coursesoffered and
skillstaught. M ost studentstend to takeafull schedulewith many studentstaking aforeign languageand
many othersinvolved in excellent vocal and instrumental music programs (Band and Orchestra). In 1972
Merrill becamethefirst secondary school to provideaprogram for studentswith learning disabilities. For
thenext two years, until other schoolsdevel oped programs, studentswere enrolled from all areasof Des
Moines. Recently the school has been actively involved in other district programs such as Career Educa
tion, Business-EducationAlliance, and remedia reading.

Mr. Edward Bigot opened Merrill in 1961 and continued in the post of principal until hisretirementin
1974.
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i Principasof Weeks Junior High
. ue B indude:

: . - — 1953 - 1961 Edward G. Bigot
1961 - 1962 Warren W. Nixon
1962 - 1965 ErwinA. Hafeustein
1965-  Carl Millsap

weeks Jr. High

NATHAN WEEKSJUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL
S.E. 9th and Park Avenue
Grades7, 8,9

OnApril 16, 1952, the school board asked for bidson construction of Nathan Weeks Junior High
School. The bidswere opened May 20 at apublic hearingand A. H. Neumann and Brothersfirm
received the contract. Thisculminated yearsof planning ajunior high school to servethe southeast area
of DesMoines.

Congtruction started May 26, 1952. During the summer of 1953 aprolonged strike of local building
unions(May 1to July 8) caused ahalt on construction. Twelve classroomswere completed by Sep-
tember 8, 1953. Therest of the building wasready for use December 8, 1953. Thelunchroom was not
completed until February 8, 1954. Constructionisnow going forward for an addition of ten classrooms
and alibrary to be added at thewest end of the building. Thisaddition should beready in the spring of
1966.

Themoveto namethe school in memory of Nathan H. Weeks, for thirty-nineyearsateacher and
administrator inthe DesMoines Public Schoolsand thefirst principal of Lincoln High School, was
started by the Howe School Parent-Teacher Association. Mr. Weeks had been along timeresident of
thedigtrict and activein al movementsfor thegood of thearea.

Other organizationsand residents of the south side where\Weekswasaleader in community activi-
tiesthen backed theidea. Included werethe Build Lincoln Higher Club, the Lincoln High School
PT.A., and morethan seventy-fiveindividua swho signed apetition asking that thenamebegivento
thenew school.

Weeks, agraduate of Amherst College, who al so attended Hartford Theol ogical Seminary, entered
the DesMoines School System asahistory teacher at West High School in 1903. Helater was
gppointed vice-principa of that building.

Inthefall of 1923 hewasassigned to the new Lincoln High School asitsfirst principa. He continued
inthisposition until 1935 when he asked to return to theteaching of social scienceat Lincoln. He
taught until hisretirement in 1942.

Whileat Lincoln heestablished ascholarship loan fund avail ableto deserving Lincoln High graduates.

The School Board voted to namethe new junior high school for Nathan Weeks, July 18, 1951.

Remar ksAbout Educational Program, Accomplishments, etc.
After the School Board approved preliminary plansfor ajunior high school to belocated at S.E. 8th
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and Park Avenue, the architects, Wetherel| and Harrison were authorized to proceed with the preparation of
working plansand specifications.

Thebuilding wasto belocated on 16.08 acres of land purchased from Edward Van Ginkel and Frank
Gillaspy. It wasto be of brick oneand two story 356 by 252 feet.

Glasshrickswereused in partsof the building. No plaster wasused. Waylite concrete blockswerethe
principal material. Theonly wood floorswerein the gymnasiumsand the shops. Asphalt tileswere used on
al other floors.

Although construction had begun May 26, 1952, astrike of building unionsin 1953 held up compl etion of
thebuilding. Because of thisstrike school opened September 8, 1953, with only twel ve westwing class-
roomsof thetotal nineteen finished. Therefore, double sessions congisting of six thirty-five minute periods
were conducted morning and afternoon.

Therewere 462 students enrolled in the sixth through eighth grades. The sixth graderswere studentsfrom
over-crowded e ementary schools. Later therewerejust seventh, eighth, and ninth grade students.

An old-fashioned hand bell was used to signal the end of classes becausetherewereno clocks. Thebdll
systemwas not yet working.

Thenurse’ squarterswere used astemporary offices. Small cardboard boxesthat had contained bl ocks of
floor tilewere used asteachers mail boxes.

A school banner in memory of her husband was given to the school by Mrs. Alice Weeks. The banner
wasformally presented to the school at an assembly by Aaron Hutchens, Principal of Lincoln High School.

It wasdesigned by Carl Linder, art teacher at Weeks. It carriesatorch and aportion of afavorite motto
of Mr. Weeks:. “ Striving for Better Thingsand Finer, Fuller Lives.”

A framed portrait of Nathan Weekswas presented to the school by the Build Lincoln Higher Club. The
presentation was made by Mrs. Fred Brown. Vice-principa Ralph Tomlinson acceptedit.

Theformal dedication of the $1,053,787.43 building washeld during aregular PT.A. meeting February
23,1954, at 7:30 p.m.

The speakerswere Superintendent N. D. McCombs; President of the Board of Education, Mrs. James
Shannahan; and Mrs. A. C. Hutchens, afriend of theWeeksfamily. Principal Edward G. Bigot, presided.

Thelarge school contract awarded for Weeksjunior highin March, 1955 wasfor ten classroomsand a
library. Theamount awarded in the contractswasfor $335,000. I nthe mid-1970s more room was needed
at Weeksjunior highfor ashop so plansare being madefor anindustrial arts shop addition to be built.

The programsat Weeksjunior high school inthemid-1970sincludetheTitlel11 Career Interest Student
Survey aswell astheTitlell1 Rent-a-Kid project. They also havealearning disabilitiesteacher. They
participateinthe Police-School Liaison project with McCombsasateam.

Threerooms of the new addition were opened in February 1966 to beginaTitle| Federal Programto
improvetheteaching of reading and mathematics.

With the opening of the entire new addition, eleven classroomsand alibrary, inthefall of 1966, Weeks
entered aprogram of modular scheduling, Weeks <till usesacombination of modular scheduling with block-
timeprograms.

Afireintheoffice started by an électrical short inaceiling caused about $2,000 damagein August of
1969. After that dl celling light fixtureswerelowered fromthecelling.

School enrollment reached ahigh of 960 studentsin 1969. Three mobile unitshel ped house the students.
Some of the overcrowded conditions have been eiminated by decreased enroliment. New industrial arts
facilitiesarebeing planned.

Theeducationd program at Weeks hasincluded individudized programsin mathematicsand emphasison
“studying yoursdf” inrelaiontotheworldin socia science. A real improvement hasbeen made over the
past few yearsinthe quality of the music programs, the number of students participating, and the size of the
audiencesat the programs.
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Woodrow Wilson principal shave been:
1925 - 1954 Everett Davis

1954 - 1959 Raymond Bishop

1959 - 1962 Walter Beasley

1962 - 1966 Wendell Webb

1967 - 1968 Don Blackman

1968 - 1972 Rolland Brownell

1972- Richard Tuller

Wilsen Jr. High

WILSON JR. HIGH SCHOOL Grades7,8,9
E. 24thand Univergty

HISTORY OF WOODROW WILSON JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL

Woodrow Wilson Junior High School was opened in 1925. Therewere 28 teachersand 925 pupils.
Thisenrollment steadily increased until in 1954 it was above 1200. TheenrolIment was 1067 in 1974.
A dight declinein enrollment, to approximately 980, isindicated for the 1975-1976 school year. The
staff in 1975is44 classroomteachers, aprincipal, viceprincipd, assistant principd , afull-timenurse,
twofull-timecounsdors, and afull-timelibrarian.

Before opening thefirst year, astudent council was organized. Each contributing grade school sent
severa of itsoutstanding pupilsto confer with the principal and advisers. A congtitution wasdrawn up
and under thisconstitution Wilson has enjoyed astrong and meaningful student council until thisdate.

The school’s colors have always been black and gold; and the school’ s symbol isthe Chanticleer.
Theschool mottois*Our Spirit Never Defeated.” The campusisappointed by unusual treesand
flowersplanted by Wilson'sfirst principal, Everett Davis. Thetenniscourtswere built with fundsmade
available by paper drivesand the W.PA. labor force. One of these courtswas hard-surfaced by the
city recreation department in 1964.

Thetrack, whichisconsidered oneof thebest junior hightracksin the city, wasbuilt by Woodrow
Wilson students under thedirection of the physical education teachers. Theoverall athletic record of
Woodrow Wilson Junior Highisoutstanding.

Through theyears, Woodrow Wilson has sponsored many fine operettas and other musical entertain-
ments. At the present, theannual Christmas program, Father-Son Night, the Mother-Daughter Tea,
and the Spring Festival of theArtsarelooked forward to by the community.

Thelibrary wasopenedin 1956. The school district allowed $1500 and two rel eased periodsfor a
librarian. Thereisnow afull-timequalified librarian and 8,500 volumes.

Afull-timenurseisonduty al day. Team Teaching and individuaized ingtruction have becomeintegra
partsof the programat Wilson.

The school paper, THE CHANTICLEER, hasbeeninstrumental through theyearsinforminga
strong school spirit.

The seventies have seen Wilson continueto grow - to the extent that it was necessary toadd a
portableclassroominthefall of 1974. Much of the continued growth has been theresult of new
housing, the Pleasant Hill areaat the eastern edge of the District. A new open space elementary school,
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Pleasant Hill, hasbeen constructed. To accommodatetheincreasein enrollment, the number of periodsin
the day have been extended from six to seven. Al so, curriculum offerings have been increased so asto
providetwenty-oneéelectivesat the ninth gradeleve, sixteen at the elghth and eleven at the seventh grade
levd.

Pilot projectsin career education and learning disabilitiesal so becameapart of the Wilson sceneinthe
seventies. Both programs have been highly successful and, when coupl ed with the upcoming expans on of
Specia Education, greatly enhancethe servicesrendered to students.

In 1975-76 school year marksthe golden anniversary of Woodrow Wilson Junior High School. That it
ranksamong theleadersin lowaisafitting tribute, not only to itsname sake, but to the thousandswho
have passed through itsstately portals.

DOUGLASSLEARNING CENTER
Housed at Y MCA Building 2nd and Locust

HISTORY OF THE FREDERICK DOUGLASSLEARNING CENTER

During the 1969-70 school year the unrest of junior high students, especialy intheinner-city schools,
became apparent. With thissituation, atentative plan wasformul ated to devel op an dternative school to
housethesejunior high students.

A suitablelocation wasfoundinthevacant St. Ambrose School building located at Fifth and Ascension.
Richard E. Peterswas named to direct the school. Before aprogram could be devel oped, spring arrived
and therewas unrest once again inthejunior high schools. In order to show good faith to the teachers of
these schools, the District moved swiftly. With no formal plan at hand, the school opened itsdoorson
April 27,1970. The school wasnamed the* Parallel School” and generally followed the pattern of the
other Junior High SchoolsintheDistrict.

The student body was composed of those studentsthat were generally unruly intheir Home Schools.
At thecloseof the school year, one hundred thirty-ei ght students had been assigned to the* Parall el
School.” It had been atrying ordeal for the students, five staff membersand the District. It did however
fulfill itsmain purpose, to remove disruptive studentsfrom their Junior High School, there-by showing the
teachersof DesM oinesthat the District understood their teaching problems.

During the summer that followed, acommittee worked on aphilosophy and curriculum for the schoal.
It wasat one of these meetingsthat theideaof changing the namefrom “Parallel” to Frederick Douglass
L earning Center was suggested. Thethought wasto namethe school after arenowned black person, due
to thefact that 90% of the student body was black. Frederick Douglasswas chosen because of hisanti-
davery bdief. Inhistory hewasreferred to asthe nation’ smost renowned abolitionist. With anew name
chosen, the next stepswereto work on objectives, curriculum, ahomeand staff.

Thefirst year theuse of Behavior Modification was successful. The students apparently accepted this
approach, but by November the money alocated for thetoken system was depl eted so other methodsin
therealm of Behavior Modification were used.

The 1971-72 school year brought two changes. New Horizon’s, awork experience programwas
introduced to the students and Behavior M odification was dropped.

The 1972-73 school year brought more changes: asecretary was added to the staff, an educational
aidewaslost, and awaiting list developed. Thelist of 20-25 students stayed somewhat constant during
the school year. Even though the school wasdesigned for fifty studentsthisnumber roseto sixty students
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during the school year, because of thelarge number onthewaiting list.

The 1973-74 school year continued about the same asthe previousyear. Enrollment remained at sixty
for theschool year, and thewaiting list remained about the sametoo. The Douglass L earning Center
added an assistant director.

The 1974-75 school year showed the greatest growth since the Center’sbeginningin 1970. A Learn-
ing Disabilitiesteacher, aResource Teacher of Emotionally Disturbed Children, aScienceteacher anda
part timeNurse, have, given strength and support to the educational program at the DouglassL earning
Center. With additional staff came anincreaseinthenumber of students served from sixty to eighty.
Even though the number of studentsallowed to attend the Douglass L earning Center increased, the
waiting list increased too, from 20-25 to 30-35. Apparently the services provided by the Douglass
L earning Center are being accepted by the various Junior High schoolsinthe Didtrict.

-~ Principasat wereat East:

~ - 1885-1891 Frank Plummer
1891 - 1901 Elmer E. White
1901 - 1918 MissMay Goodrell
1918- 1934 A. J. Burton
1934 - 1954 0. G. Pritchard
1954-1964D. Q. “Duke’ Williams
1964 - 1970 Gareld Jackson
1970- Earl Bridgewater

East High

EAST HIGH SCHOOL
East 13th and Walker

East High Schoal, like the other Des M oines High school s, hasbeen housed in severa different
buildingsinitslong andillustrioushistory. East High first existed inthe Bryant School at East 9th and
Grand whichwasthe only schoolhousein East DesMoines. In simple chronol ogy the dates and build-
ingsare:

1861 - 1877 Bryant School (top floor) East 9th and Grand

1877 - 1891 Webster School (top floor) East 12th and Lyon

In 1888 the freshman class of East High was moved back to Bryant dueto

overcrowding.

1891 - 1911 East High-Built asasenior highwith laboratories, auditorium and cafeteria.
East 12th and Court

1911 A“new” East High at 13th and Walker.

Additionsin 1955 and one dated for 1966.

Inmaking formal plansfor ahigh school, the East DesM oines Board of Education has some definite
ideasabout their aimsand goals. They appointed acommittee of Honorable JamesWright, William
Matthewsand D. E. Jonesto draw up and report aplan or course of study for said school.

“Wewould state that it isthe sincere desire and wish of the Board, asthisschool isnow organized
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upon asolid basis, that the people of East Des M oinesberegquested to unitewith usin sustaining it by
generous support.

“Wewould recommend asastandard of admissionto, the high school that each applicant berequired
to spell and read well, and writeafair hand, understand the rules of arithmetic so far asto solve ques-
tionsin fractions, must understand descriptive geography and be ableto definethe parts of speechand
andyzeplain English sentences.

“Wefurther recommend that femal es entering the high school be permitted (at their own option) to
subgtitutefor geometry, trigonometry and survey, drawing, music and other branches suitablefor young
ladies such asFrench, German or Latin.

“Wewould further recommend that an examining committee of the board be appointed consisting of
not lessthan three persons, assisted by the principal of said school, to meet al pupilsdesiring admission
tothe high school for examination, at such timeand place asmay here- after be agreed upon; at which
time certificates of admissionwill begiventoal applicantsfound qualified.

“Wewould beg |eaveto recommend the use of Easton’s Grammar Arithmetic instead of both Ray’s
Practica and Higher, believing that the pupil will acquire asmuch knowledge of arithmetic fromthe study
of one sooner thanthetwo. We are, however, at the sametime opposed to the frequent change of text
books.”

AsDesMoinesgrew in population and asthe public of thelate 1800’s cameto accept education
beyond the eighth grade as necessary and important, the enrollment of East Highincreased. In 1871 the
first classgraduated—only one member: MissElizabeth Mathewswho comprised theclassroll. The
dropout rate of the 187-0 eramust have been unusually high because there were no more graduates
until 1875!

Asnoted above, the high school moved to thethird floor of the Webster building in September, 1877.
But thereweretill nolaboratories, gymnasium or cafeteria. In oneend of thelarge room they spread
matsand hung someringsand they called thisthegym. Therewerethreerecitation roomsin additionto
thelarge study-gym room at Webster.

In 1888 school enrollmentsrequired the freshman classto, move back to Bryant. In 1890 the high
school used still another floor at Webster. Fortunately Webster had the“new” brick annex onthe
groundsto accommodatetheir pupils. Thisannex wasknown asthe L ouisaMaeAl cott buildingwhich
honored apopular author of the day.

Inthe spring of 1891 anew East High was completed containing facilitiesspecificaly designed asa,
senior high school. Therewerelaboratories, sewing rooms, cooking rooms, auditorium, cafeteriain
additiontorecitation rooms. The superintendent of schoolshad hisoffice onthefirst floor. Thetraining
school for primary teacherswasheld in the basement. The studentswerevery proud of their new
building and marched from Webster led by the freshman classand the principal, Mr. EImer White. The
new unit at East 12th and Court started with about 200 and soon grew to 700.

By 1901, only 10 yearsafter the new building was occupied, thefirst step wastaken toward anew
structure. The Board of Directorsof the East DesMoines School District purchased asquare block of
ground bounded by East 14th, East 13th, Maple and Walker Streets. Theland was purchased fromthe
state of lowaat acost of $8,000.

OnMay 21, 1907, the city of DesMoineswas consolidated into one school district, The consolida
tionwasfinally approved by the Supreme Court of lowain an opinion handed down on July 7, 1908.
By thistimethe conditionsat East High were such asto demand immediaterelief. The new school board
agreed that anew building adequate“ to the present needs and future needs, should be built.”

The cost of the building would haveincreased theindebtedness of the school district beyond thelegd

Page 137



limit. The Thirty-third General Assembly passed abill alowing school digtrictsof citieshaving apopula
tion of 65,000 or over to becomeindebted up to two and one-half percent of the actual value of the
taxable property withinthedistrict, for the purpose of building and furnishing, aschoolhouse. Thishill
was Chapter 184 of theActsof the Thirty-third General Assembly, May 21, 1909.

Oneof the provisionsof thebill wasthat before anindebtednessin excess of the pre-existing legal limit
could be contracted, apetition signed by 2,500 el ectors, ownersof real estate, asking for the erection of
such abuilding, must be presented to the Board.

Such apetition was prepared and circulated among the businessmen of DesMoinesby acommittee
appointed by the East DesMoinesCommercid League. East High students speedily circulated many
petitions. On December 21, 1909, apetition with 2,994 nameswas presented to the Board. On March
14, 1910, thefavorable votewas 7,695 for, and 2,153 againgt, i ssuing $400,000 worth of bondsfor the
erection of anew East High School. At thisel ection women were allowed to vote.

Ground for the building was broken September 6, 1910, by MissMay Goodrell, principa. The
cornerstonewaslaid January 18, 1911, by Miss Goodrell. Superintendent William Riddell gavethe
formal address. A few of thethirty-eight itemsthat were placed in the corner stonewere:

1. ABible

2.  AnAmericanflag

3. AnlowaOfficia Register 4. A Masonic directory

5  Acopy eachof the Register and L eader, the Daily Capitol, the Evening Tribune, the Daily News
and PlainTak
Copiesof the school directory 1907-1911
Copiesof the superintendentsreports, 1907-08 and 1908-09.

8.  Portraitsof AmosHiatt, for 20 years superintendent of East D.M.,
Mr.W. 0. Riddle, first superintendent of the consolidated D.M. district, Miss Goodrell, principal
of East High

9. Afootbal extraof each of the evening papersannouncing East Highvictories.

10. Namesof the Greater DesMoines Committee

| 1. A copy of theDesMoinesplan of government

No

Finaly onMay 17, 1912, after many trialsand hardshi psthe students and teachers marched trium-
phantly to the new school. Because the new building had cost so much, $400,000, it wasimpossibleto
haveit furnished that spring. For thisreason, the entire student body turned out with vehiclesof every
description to carry desks, chairs, equipment, booksand waste-basketsfromtheir old building to the
new East High. A paradewasformed by the studentswho marched to the new building, led by the GAR.
Drum Corpsof Kinsman Post No. 7. Within three hours after the moving began, the studentswere
reciting lessons!

East Highwasdesigned by thearchitects, Bird and Rawson. They used theclassical stylewiththefront
entrance patterned after the north portico of the Erechtheum; the northeast door istaken fromthe
Choragic Monument of Lysicrates, the northwest from the Tower Templeto Hephaestus. Throughout the
building smplicity of theclassic styleisa, factor. Much of the credit for the styleand harmony of the
building“isdueto J. A. McKinney, who was president of the school board at that time.”

Themotto, “ For the Service of Humanity” over thefront entrance was submitted by CharlesA.
Cumminginacontest held for that purpose. Theivy plantedin 1915 was sent from Harvard University.

Theinterestin athleticsby East High studentshasawaysbeen very keen. Until 1893 baseball wasthe
chief sport but it becameless popular when track and footbal | were begunin 1894. In 1895 thefirst
track meet was held with thefollowing high school s parti cipating--East, West, North and Capitol Park.
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Neither Oak Park nor Grant Park entered thiscontest. East won thefirst meet aswell asthosefor the
next threeyears.

Footbal | was not common at thistime and few boysknew how to play the game. Burdair Hartung,
who owned afootball used for Rugby, learned the game of football and taught it to some of hisclass-
mateswho then formed ateam. Football was adopted asaschool sport through the efforts of Miss
Millicent Cuplin, ateacher at East Highin 1894. Inthat year, East played six games, losing only one.
Thesevictoriesinfootbal | seemedto call for school colors. Thecolorsof Scarlet and Black, Grinnell
College colors, were adopted by the East High Athletic Association.

Theneed for the development of ahigher type of sportsmanship was seen asthefootball gamesoften
endedinafree-for-al. In 1904 Mr. S. A. Foster, offered the Foster Trophy to the DesMoinesHigh
School that won the city championship threeyearsin succession. At the sametimethe students must
conduct themselvesin an orderly and friendly manner towardsthe opposing teams. East wonthis
trophy, anAmericanflagin 1910.

Thestudentswho largely handled the athl etic program, had much difficulty infinding asuitableathletic
field. Anold cemetery at East 15th and M aple was|eased and converted into an athleticfield. Thetiling
and grading cost about $2,800 and the senior classbought the bleacherswith money obtained froma
specia benefit. The school board, convinced that thiswasa‘worthy’ project, contributed a, fence-and
thusthe* Alumni Field,” dedicated by alarge bonfireand speeches, was compl ete. The studentsex-
pressed thewish that George Garton, Fred Van Liew Clark Beard, and J. A. McKinney should always
havefreeadmissiontothefield because of their untiring effortsin securingit.

Curriculum Changesat East High

The curriculum grew asfast asthe enrollment. The subjectsoffered now are quitedifferent fromthe
first course. Different languageswereintroduced into the curriculum—German in 1903, Spanishin
1915 and Frenchin 1918. The study of German was discontinued in 1917 but has since been resumed.

Therewerethreefour-year coursesoffered in 1908:

1.Latin

2. Scientific

3.Business

Every student wasrequired to completefour yearsof English, threeyears of mathematicsand two
and one-half yearsof history. In addition the requirements of the respective courseswere:

Latin--four years

Science--threeyears plusan extrayear of mathematics

Business--commercia geography, bookkeeping, commercia law,. and stenography.

Studentswere alowed to el ect subjectsinthethird and fourth yearsonly.

When manua training wasintroduced into the school in 1908, Miss Goodrell madethefollowing
report to Superintendent W. 0. Riddell: “We are gratified that manual training has been added to the
courseat East High. | havewaited long for thisand have asked for it several timesin the past seven
years”

Inthe sameyear, Miss Goodrel | reported about the beginning and devel opment of cooking classesin
theschool. “I1t wasthisdesirethat our school keep abreast of thetimesin providing meansfor themore
practica side of education that led usfour yearsago to begin aseries of cooking demonstrationsoncea
week for al girlswho desired to attend. The effort was materially assisted by the kindnessof Mr.
Jansen Haines of the Des M oines Gas Company, in donating astovefor our use. The demonstrations
weregiven after school hoursin the afternoon and the expenseswere met by the proceeds of entertain-
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ments. Theinterest was so great, the course so successful, that, it was repeated the next year. Thethird
year adight changewas made. Mr. Haines extended hisinterest by donating the servicesof Mrs. Sarah
Moore, demonstrator for the gascompany and met all expenses of thefood demonstrations. The past
year we have enjoyed the privilege of Mrs. Moore' sservices, the school, however, meeting the other
expenses.”

Throughtheyearsclubshave played avery important part in the school life of many students. Thefirst
formal club organization wasthe Boys Debating Soci ety which wasrecommendedin 1901 by Miss
Goodrell. Thenext club which lived any timeat all wasthe Bible Club for boys, organized December,
1915. TheBicycle Clubwasagirlsorganization. The student council wasintroduced into East Highin
1919 by Principal A. J. Burton.

Theschool publication, the QUILL , was started in the spring of 1905 by MissMary Patterson. The
QUILL wasquarterly until 1930 when it becameasemi-annual andin 1963 becamean annual. The
SCROLL, abiweekly newspaper was started in 1930 by Mr. Kenneth Stratton.

When Miss Goodrel | was graduated from East Highin 1877, she conceived theideaof an Alumni
Association and asssted initsorganization. At first the meetingswere held annualy, later semi-annually
when therewere graduating classesin both January and June. In recent yearswith just June classes, the
East High Alumni Association hasmet thefirst or second week of each June. Graduates comefrom
many of thefifty statesand even fromforeign countries. It isreputed to bethe oldest high school dumni
organizationinthe United States.

East High in the 1960s and 1970s

Therising enrollments of the 1960sin the East DesMoines arearequired that an addition be built at
East High School. Also therewasthe matter of modernization of facilitiesand in the 1950sand 1960s
an adequate high school library became astandard feature of al of the high schoolsin DesMoines.
Thus, planswere drawn and contract | et in September, 1966, for eight classroomsand library addition
to bebuilt at the south of the original East High school building. The decision was madeto usethe same
stoneexterior finish so that therewould be harmony in design withtheexisting facility. In 1973 therewas
anew wing added to the north of East High School replacing theinadequate cafeteriaand the old
outmoded classroomson thethird floor. Thismodern new facility again emphasized theneed to maintain
avigorousacademic program at East High by providing the physical plant to carry it out. In addition
therewas an addition to the heating plant at thistime. Both the new north wing and south wing wereair-
conditionedfacilities

Probably the most dramatic changein and around East High School has been the expansion of the
school grounds. With the addition to the north, the city agreed to the closing of Walker Avenue and this
incorporated into theimmediate school grounds. Also, the square block to thewest of East High School
was acquired and converted to parking facilities. In 1975 an extensive plan was submitted to the School
Board for landscaping and compl etelayout of the new land added around East High School. Thisplan
total ed $250,000 When completed with plantings, East High School will be not only the same splendid
building that it was before, but will have amore adequate landscaped background to show thedignity of
thebuilding.

Other changesinthe 1960s and 1970sthat have taken place have been the expansion of theland area
around WilliamsField. Sincethisisnow considered acity-wide stadium therewas aneed for adequate
parking facilities. Thecity installed new mercury-vapored lights on the streets adjacent to the stadium so
thiswasan improvement. Homesaround the stadium were purchased and demolished. A gradual land

Page 140



acquisition has been taking place between Williams Field and the East High School physical plant. The
ultimateaimisto have an open corridor existing from the high school to the stadium area.

Plans have been discussed with the State Department of Public Instruction of having an open space
driving range constructed on thissite. While houses have been acquired and land acquisition has proceeded
inthisdirection, fina plansfor such acity-widefacility have not beenfinalized asof the summer of 1975.

CurriculumWork inthe1970s

One of theexciting new curricular core areasthat has been added at new East High School wasthe
communi cations and mediadepartment. Thisishoused inthe northwing of East High and providesaunique
educational offering for the students. Other projectsat East Highinthe mid 1970sinclude the New Hori-
zons program aswell asan East High mathematicslaboratory. ThereisasoaTitlell] Career Interest
Student Survey project aswell asTitlell1 Rent-A-Kid (Career Guidance). East High hasmaintained a
vigorousproject carried out with Alliance of Businesswith IPALCO. Thereisaso ahomeremodeling class
at East High schoal that provides unique opportunitiesfor studentsto renovate older homesinthedistrict
and have practical learning experiencesat the sametime. Thereisaso an Englishlaboratory aswell asa
learning disabilities project. Minimum performancestestsare being developed in Math, American History,
Englishand Biology. Thesetestsestablish minimal level sof achievementsthat all studentsshould attain at
sometimeduring their senior highyears.
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Herbert Hoover High School

HOOVER HIGH SCHOOL
4800 AuroraAvenue

Herbert Hoover High School islocated on afifty acretract of land in northwest Des M oinesthat was
originaly donated to theschool district by the Meredith family. A junior high school, named after Edwin T.
Meredith, was erected on the sitein 1962 with future plansincluding the construction of asenior high
school on the same campus.

Establishment of asenior high school onthissitewasthe center of controversy for anumber of years
prior toitsconstruction. The primary concern waswhether there should be another high school added to
theDesMoinesdistrict. In 1962 the votersrejected the school administration and the Board of
Education’sproposal to construct additionsto North High and Roosevelt High to house the high school
studentswho lived in the northwest section of the city. Such additionswould have beeninlieu of building
anadditiond highschool inthisarea.

Rejection of thisbond issuewas considered amandateto build thisadditional high school, and the next
bond issuein February 1964 included anorthwest high school, which ultimately resulted inthe construction
of Hoover. Thisdid not end the controversy, however, asthe next issueinvol ved whether or not the
building should beair conditioned. At that time the school district had no air conditioned buildingsand
therewas consi derabl e discuss on by the Board of Education and the community asto whether or not this
“frill” should beincludedinthisnew building and ajunior high school to be constructed in the southwest
section of thecity. Ultimately the decision wasmadeto construct buildingsthat would includeair condi-
tioning, and Hoover High School and Brody Junior High School becamethefirst school buildingsinDes
Moinesto haveclimate control. Inclusion of thisfeature hasresulted in Hoover Highmaintaining alarge
summer school enrollment ever sinceit wasbuilt and a so serving asameeting placefor numerous school
and community groupsthroughout theyear. Three sessionsof adult education classeslireheldinthis
building each year, including asummer session.

Contractsfor atotal of $3,065,988 wereletin March 1966 for the construction of the building. Inflation
of the 1960’ s had eaten into the money that had been alocated from the bond issue, and several modifica-
tionsof theoriginal planshad to be made. Two additionsin later yearswere primarily theresult of those
itemsbeing diminated fromtheorigina plans. On July 8,1964, John Haydon, amember of the Board of
Education moved to namethe new high school in honor of anative lowa, Herbert Hoover. Mr. Hoover
wasborninlowain 1874 and died in 1964. During hisillustrious career he served aschairman of the
American Relief Committee during World War 1, where heachieved internationa status. Helater served
as Secretary of Commercefrom 1921 until 1928, when hereceived the Republican nomination for Presi-
dent and later went onto defeat the Democratic candidate, Alfred E. Smith. Following hisdefeat by
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Franklin Rooseveltin 1932, he served on many government and private committees, including the
powerful Hoover Commission of 1953. A bust presented by thislibrary and apersond letter from
President Hoover to the President of the Board of Education in 1962 are both on display at Hoover
High Schoal.

Thefirst principa of Hoover High School, Dr. Donald Wetter, assumed hisdutieson January 23,
1967, and he capably guided the selection of personnel, ordering of equipment, and the handling of the
multitude of detail snecessary to open anew school. Much discussion washeld before deciding the
make-up of thefirst student body. It wasfinally decided the school would house only thetenth and
eleventh gradesduring itsfirst year of operation. These students, who would have been attending either
North or Roosevelt began classesin September 1967. Much of the construction remained to befinished,
but the use of classroomsat the adjacent Meredith Junior High and agreat deal of ingenuity resultedina
smooth beginning for theschool.

Enrollment thefirst year consisted of 429 sophomoresand 402 juniorsfor atotal student body of
811. September enrollmentsthefollowing yearsof the school’ sexistenceareasfollows:

1968 - 69 - 1255
1969 - 70 - 1299
1970 - 71 - 1292
1971 - 72 - 1320
1972 - 73 - 1265
1973 - 74 - 1215
1974 - 75.- 1134

Sincethe school attendance areaisbounded on the north and west by other school districts, thereis
no room for further expansion of housing withinthe present school boundary area. Thus, unlessdistrict-
wideboundary shiftsare madeinthefuture, it appearslikely that total enrollment inthe school will
decrease, reflecting the nation-wide declining birth rate.

Asmentioned earlier, ashortage of avail ablefunds necessitated amodification of planson theexisting
structure. Thus, inApril 1971, contractswerelet for additiona spacefor science, music, homemaking,
and shop facilities. Thetotal expenditurefor thisaddition was $366,700. Construction was compl eted
andthefirst classeswereheldin thesefacilitiesin September 1972. Sinceonly one gymnasiumwasbuilt
intheorigina construction, another facility wasneeded for physical education classesfrom the outset.
On February 18, 1975, contractstotaling $385,743 werel et for thisaddition. Also, additiona funds
weredlocated toingtall auditorium lighting, which had been omitted from theoriginal plans. Completion
of these projectsthus providesabuilding very similar to the one recommended intheorigina plansbut
which had to be modified because of ashortage of appropriated fundsat thetime.

Theschool soon established itsownidentity, reflecting the enthusiasm and competence of the students,
parents, and staff. While the primary emphasi ssince the school’ sbeginning hasbeento provideastrong
academic background for the students, extraactivitieshave also been anintegral part of theschool’s
history. Studentsin the school soonexcelledinall areas, including music, drama, debate and athleticsin
additiontotheir classwork. Theresult isthat at |east one areaof the school’s program hasreceived
statewide recognition through winning astate competition initsareaeach year sincethe school was
opened.

A large percentage of the graduates enroll in sometype of post-high school training upon their gradua-
tion. Currently approximately 65% of the graduates seek additiond training beyond the high school level.
Although no comprehensiveformal study hasbeen made, itisobviousthat alarge percentage of these
graduates completethelr advanced training.

Fromits-beginning the school has maintained strong programsin the English, mathemeatics, foreign
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languages, scienceand socid scienceareas, with most studentsenrollinginafull schedule of subjectsfrom
theseareas. Inrecent yearsthe addition of programin distributive education and office education have
provided opportunitiesto combine school training with practical work experience. Studentsat Hoover have
also participated in the Executive Intern program from itsbeginning in the 1974-75 school year. Theart,
industrial art and homemaking areas continued to devel op their programsand coursesto reflect the changing
needsof the school community. The music department hasenrolled large numbers of studentsin instrumental
and vocal groups, with al groupsreceiving top ratingsin state competition intheir areas. The development
of awidevariety of eective coursesin thephysical education areaprovides many opportunitiesfor all
studentsto develop their skillsandincreasetheir knowledgein activitiesthat will helpthem to developand
maintaintheir physica hedth during and beyond their high school years. Nearly dl studentsareenrolledina
daily physica education classthroughout their threeyearsat Hoover.

Even though the school has had only asmall number of minority sudentsenrolled sinceitsopening, a
consciouseffort hasbeen maintained throughout theyearsto devel op curriculumthat will includethe contri-
butions of the minoritiesthat make up our country. The development of the Voluntary Transfer Program by
theschooal digtrict isbeginning to resultin alarger number of minority studentsfrom other areasof thedistrict
electingtoenroll at Hoover.

Thefirst evaluation of Hoover by the North Central A ssociation was conducted by ateam that visited the
school November 4, 5, and 6, 1969. Recommendations of the team were accomplished where ever finan-
cia resourcesand physical facilitieswould alow. During the school year 1975-76 the Hoover staff again
engagedintheir self-evauation with afollow-up visit, by the North Central team during thefall of 1976.

Thefirst principal of the school was Dr. Donald Wetter, who served in this capacity from the opening of
the school in 1967 until December 1973, when he was appointed as Executive Director of Secondary
Education for the DesMoines School District. Mr. Gerald Dockum wasthen appointed to the position, at
whichtimethe administration of Hoover High School and adjoining M eredith Junior High School was
combined under oneprincipa. Implementation of thiscentraized administration included combining, the
custodia forceinto onetotal unit, sharing of teachersin specialized teaching areasand further sharing of
physical facilitiesin addition to the combined food service plan that had been utilized ever since both build-
ingsbegan operation.

L ooking ahead, the emphasiswill continueto be centered on meeting the changing needs of the students
and the society inwhich they live. Theaddition of aresourceteacher to work with studentswho areidenti-
fied ashaving specificlearning disabilitiesand theimpl ementation of acareer education programareonly
two examplesof programsthat will continueto helpimplement the purpose of the school asstated inthe
opening linesof itsphilosophy, “ The primary concern of education at Hoover High School isto encourage
thestudent inthefullest possible development of hisintellectua abilities, hiscapacitiesasapersonand asa
member of society.”
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Principasof LincolnHighinclude:
1923-1935 - Nathan H. Weeks
1935-1968 - Aaron C. Hutchens
1958 - - Melvin J.Bowen

Linceln High

LINCOLN HIGH SCHOOL Gr. 10-12
S.W. 9thand B€ll

In September, 1966, Lincoln High School became solely asenior high school for thefirst timesinceit
opened in September, 1923 asa 6 year junior-senior high school. Beginningin September, 19,67, Lincoln
will houseonly grades 10-12. The post WWI growth in DesM oinesand the boom eraof the 1920's
required many new classroomsto house the high enrollments. The public school philosophy of thefirst two
decadeshad |ooked to the 8-4 program; eight years elementary and a4 year high school. The 1920's saw
theriseof thejunior high school philosophy or the 6-3-3 plan; six yearselementary, threeyearsjunior high
andthreeyearssenior high.

TheBuilding of Abraham Lincoln High School

Thebondswhich wereto pay for the building of Abraham Lincoln High School werevoted March 18,
1918. They were sold asthe money was needed between theyears of 1918 and 1923. The site sel ected
waswest of Southwest Ninth Street.

Samuel Bdll bought theland from the government in theearly 1850's. Whenit was purchased for theHigh
School, most of it belonged to hisdaughter, Mrs. Rachel Mosier, although thereisalist of somehalf-dozen
ownersbesides. It was condemned for school purposesin 1919, costing the school district $49,280.80
including appraiser’ sfeesand cost of condemnation.

Work was started on October 7, 1921. The architectural work was given to Proudfoot, Bird, and
Rawson, thegeneral contract to J. E. Lovejoy; and the heating and plumbing contract went to the Van Dyke
Heating and Plumbing Company. The cost of the building was $775,492.25; fixturesand furnishing in-
creased it toagrand total of $949,754.95.

The ceremoniesthat marked thelaying of the corner-stone of theAbraham Lincoln High School Monday,
May 16, 1922, werevery impressive. J. W. Studebaker, the superintendent of schools, made abrief
address, after which he spread the mortar and helped put the corner-stonein place. Mrs. MacKinnon,
former president of the board of education, who waslargely responsiblefor the school in south Des
Moines, helped Mr. Studebaker. One of theinteresting spectatorsat thelaying of the corner-stonewas
Mrs.R.A. Mosier, pioneer resident of DesMoines.

In 1923 Lincoln High School contained fifty-fiverooms. Thereweretwo gymnasiums, aswimming pool,
home economicslaboratories, art and music rooms, acafeteria, spaciousoffices, and an auditoriumwith a
capacity of 1,300 persons.
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Thereareanumber of prized possessionsin Lincoln High School. Inthefloor of thevestibuleisthe
school monogram donein bronze, surrounded by adesignin variegated marble. Onthesouthwall isa
portrait of “ TheBoy Lincoln” painted by Russell Cowles, aformer student of West High School. Onthe
northwall is“Lincoln the Statesman” painted by William Reaser. IntheMain corridor isabronze bust of
Lincoln, thework of Laurence Stewart, former student of East High.

Thecorner stoneof the old Lincoln School, which used to beat Ninth and Mulberry Streets, hasbeen
set asamemoria ontheLincoln High lawn. It was presented to the school with appropriate ceremonies
when the old school wasdemolished. Thiscorner stoneisonly one of the many remindersof President
Lincolnthat are preserved by theschool. Thereisasted engraving of the Lincoln family when Lincoln
wasin office, a so one of the President himself, both presented to the school by Fred Foss. A piece of
log from Lincoln’s cabin birth place was presented by W. L. King, aformer school teacher. An engrav-
ing of the national monument inthe Soldiers’ National Cemetery, which wasdedicated by President
Lincolnwith hisfamous Gettysburg address, isalsointhe collection. Inthe auditorium abovethe stage
arethewordsof that famousaddressdoneingold.

FireDestroyed Lincoln Shops--1957

InApril, 1957, fire destroyed the shops building annex at Lincoln High. Thelosswasestimated at
$300,000. Thetwo-story annex was burned out by the blaze. Equipment initsthree classroomsand
four shops (Iaboratories or auto mechanics, mechanical drawing, wood and metal working classes) was
destroyed. Cause of the spectacular blaze, discovered at 12:07 am., wasnot determined. City Fire
Marshal, George Soderquist said, however, hat investigators had found no evidence of arson.

The school was closed Wednesday, but classeswere resumed inthe main Building Thursday morning.
Classesordinarily heldin the shopsbuilding were heldinthe school lunchroom, library, auditoriumand
inhallways. They included one English and two arithmetic classes. All shop work was abandoned
temporarily.

“Weare overcrowded now (Lincoln had about 1,650 students), but wewill make out someway,”
Principa Hutchenssaid.

The continued growth of housing in South DesM oineshasresulted in anumber of new elementary
schoolsbeing builtinthe 1960sand 1970s. In turn, aselementary schoolswere built therewasade-
mand for junior highsto housethese students. For example, inthelate 1940sthe Lincoln building was
both ajunior and senior high school. It wasidentical in many waysto Roosevelt whichwasalso built as
asix-year high school inthe 1920s. Throughtheyears, junior high school sthat were built, Weeksin
1953, Kurtzin 1959, Brody in 1966, and McCombsin 1973. Thiscalled for more spacerequired at the
senior highlevel. While some studentsin South Des M oines attend Tech Highamgj ority of themgoto
Lincoln. Thus, there has been aneed to build an adequate educational facility to housethese students.

The decision was madeto add eight classrooms, and contractswereletin May, 1971 for thisaddition.
Thetotd of contractswere $355,719. Inthefall of 1974 the educational needs of South DesMoines
were carefully examined and planswere drawn for an addition that woul d enable the school to dispense
with the use of portable classrooms. Contractswerelet inthe sum of $544,950.00, General Contract,
$79,694.00, Mechanica Contract and $43,361.00 Electrical Contract, totaling $668.005.00

Contractswerealso awarded in the spring of 1975 for the expansion of thefixed bleachersat
HutchensFied. Sincethisisamunicipa stadiumfor theuseof al of the high school units, it wasdecided
that thisadditional seating must be added for the accommodation of the spectators. Thiscontract wasin
theamount of $55,643.00 and provided 2,272 number of seats. It ishoped that thiswill beready for
useinthefall of 1975. Inthe 1920swhen both Lincoln and Roosevelt werebuilt, littlethought wasgiven
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to parking lots, inasmuch ascarswerereatively few. Certainly, inthe 1930s, 1940s, and well into the
1950s not too many high school studentsdrove cars. Sincethe attendance areaat Lincoln High School
servesthe entire southern section of thecity it hasbeen necessary for agreat many studentsto provide
their own transportation. Thediminishing serviceof publictrangt, streetcars, and limited bustransportation
was another factor that put the burden on familiesto providetransportationsfor their youngstersto school.
After agreat deal of study, land wasacquired north of Lincoln for aparking lot. An exit was purchased on
Kirkwood so that thetraffic flow would be away from the school building proper. Thefacilitiesthat were
added to Lincolnin many ways are comparabl e to those that were added in and around Roosevelt to
accommodatethe automobiletraffic. In additionto the parkinglot, physica education facilitieswere
expanded intheareanorth of Lincolnand east of the stadium. Theseincluded asoftball field and tennis
courts. It isanticipated that the new parking lot will be openinthefall of 1975 for use by studentsaswell
as spectatorsat the Hutchens Stadium. Thisshould beaboom for all of the high schoolsthat schedule
their gamesat Hutchensand WilliamsFields. Again, the parkingin and around the stadiumisinlinewith
theadditional parking that istaken placeat theWilliamssite. Educational programsinthemid-1970s
includeanAlliancewith Businessand inthiscase, BankersLifeof DesMoines. They participateinthe
handicapped driver training program aswell asthe Pre Career Industrial Workshop. One of the most
extensveprogramsinthecity isoffered at Lincoln High School called OpportunitiesUnlimited. This
provides courses and work programsfor studentswho might otherwise drop out of high school. A number
of mini courseshave been developedintheareaof English and language arts. Thereisamathematics
laboratory aswell asaspecia reading program. Lincoln also hasawork study program aswell asclasses
for studentswith learning disabilities. Lincolnwonthe 1975 Boys State Basketball Championshipfor the
State of lowa. Thelast timeaDes M oinesschool wonwasin 1965.

1966 Addition of Gym; Pool, and Cafeteria
1972 Addition of 8 Classrooms
1975Addition 5 classrooms, M edia, Center, and ShopsBuilding

Inthelate*60'sand ‘ 70'sthe Lincoln High School faculty and administration concentrated itseffortson
educational programsthat would improvetheinstruction of theyouth of the Lincoln High community. To
reflect theindividual needsof studentsand varying studentsability, every department eval uated programs
inthesetermsrecognizing thewide scope of studentswho attend Lincoln High School.

Theresults of these self-evaluationsand new programsresulted in abroad €l ective program of 180
different courses. Effortswerea so made by theingtructional staff to articulatethe programsof thed-
ementary, junior high schools, and senior high school in the southtown community. Some of the mgjor
accomplishmentsof thisconcentrated effort are:

1. A broad new English program which offersmany different el ectives based upon the needs of the
students. An English pre-test was given to sudentsin the ninth grade coming to Lincoln.

2. Themath department brought into existenceamath |aboratory experienceto individuadizeinstruction
so students could progress at afaster rate or special instruction would be given to those studentswho are
inneed of additional help. Theresults hasbeen adecided increasein attendance in the math department
and the drop-outs have been non- existent.

3. Themath lab concept has since been expanded toincludelab classesin social science and science.

4. TheRailsplitter, the Lincoln High newspaper, continued to receive merit recognition fromthe Na-
tiona Scholastic PressAssociation, ColumbiaSchool of Journaism. Thisisthehighest recognition givento
ahigh school publication.

5. Themusic program has been expanded with increased emphasisto the extent that the vocal and
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instructional groupsreceived many awards. The Swing Choir received many first place contest awards
locdlly, inthe State and the Middlewest and was recogni zed as one of the outstanding music groupsinthe
United States.

6. Lincoln High School offered and brought into existence one of the broadest, extensive programsfor
studentswith specia needs. The program wasentitled “ OpportunitiesUnlimited”. It provides pre-career
classesand career experiencefor studentswho might otherwise drop out of high schoal.

7. Thehomemaking department received aspecial grant to provide acareer education programin
collaborationwith Area X Community Collegeto provide career education to studentswho might other-
wisedrop out of high schoal.

Thesearejust someof the programsand projectsproviding instructiona areasfor all sudents. Thisis
based on the philasophy of Lincoln High School whichis, * Recognizing the wide spectrum of the Southside
Community, Lincoln High School isdedicated to the acceptance of each individual, and to the devel opment
of theindividua’scapacity for learning.”

NorthHigh Principas:
1889 - 1892 Miss L ouis Patterson
1892 - 1893 Mrs. A. W. Merrill
1893 - 1894 Mr. E. N. McKay
1894 - 1897 Mr. Samuel Cart
1897 - 1898 Mr. C. N. Clifford
1898 - 1900 Mr.A. W. Brell
1900 - 1904 Mr. W. E. Rummel
1904 - Jan. 1905 Mr. W.A. Cruisinberry

m lrm — 1905 - June, 1905 MissAmeliaMorton
I sl Ly 1905-1915Mr. J. G Grundy
| | B & 1915- 1918 Mr. E. J. Eaton

1918 - 1923 Mr. A. W. Merrill
1923- 1927 Mr. CurtisThrelkeld
. 1927 - 1935 Mr. H. T. Steeper
—— 1935 - 1958 Mr. S. E. Thompson
1958 - 1961 Mr. Aaron Hutchins
1961 - 1963 Dr. Robert Denny

North High 1963 - 1966 Dr. Donald Wetter
NORTH HIGH SCHOOL 1967 - 1972 Mir. Wendell Webb
501 Holcomb Avenue 1972- Mr. Rolland BFowndll

History of North High School

In 1880, therewasincorporated in one of the suburbs of DesMoines, anew town, called North Des
Moines. It lay in abeautifully wooded tract of land extending from theriver onthe east to Twenty-first street
onthewest, and from North Street, now University Avenue, on the south to Washington Street, or perhaps
farther, on the north to about Ovid Street.

Forest Home School Journal, Vol. 1, No. 1, published December 22, 1885, and certainly thefirst school
publicationin North DesMoines, speaksglowingly of the advantages of thisnew and rapidly growing town.
One of those advantageswasthe very new Sixth Avenue bridge, which furnished away by which the people
onthenorth side of theriver could reach the heart of the city of DesM oineswithout traveling by the Capitol
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building. Another wasthe street railway system, which provided horse-drawn carsasfar north on
Ninth Street asto Forest Avenue. Also thetown possessed three churches, the North Park Congrega-
tional on Eighth and North; the Westminster Presbyterian on Twenty-first Street, and the Bethel Evan-
gelical Another great attraction for new settlersin thislocation was DesMoines University, which had
been moved fromthe city of DesMoinesto the corner of Ninth and Washington and which offered an
excellent liberd artseducationto al whowould takeit.

Forest Home School was situated on Forest Avenue between Thirteenth and Fourteenth Streets. In
1885 the principal of thisschool wasMr. A. M. Miller. Following him for two or threeyearscame Mr.
D. G Perkins, for whom Perkins grade school of the present timeisnamed. By 1889 two roomshad
been added to the building and plans had been carried out to establish ahigh school. Mr. 0. E. Smith
had cometo be superintendent of al the North DesM oines schools, for by thistimethetown had
grown and other schoolshad been built, Summit, later called Given; Oakland, now Sabin being among
them and also Lake Park, now Clarkson.

North DesMoinesHigh School wasthen definitely launched inthefall of 1889, uponitslong and
honorable career. The high school department made use of threerooms and the hallway. One of these
roomsknown asthe main room seated about seventy-five studentsand was used chiefly asastudy
hall, but it was often necessary for theteacher in charge of the study group to hear her classestherein.
Thetime camewhen it was necessary for classesto be met inthehall, or downinthekindergarten
roomintheafter- noons, and even as some of the students of that time may distinctly remember down
inacellar room, where physicsand chemistry classeswereheld in very close quartersand with very
littleequipment.

Thefirst principa of North HighwasMissL ouise Patterson, agraduate of Grinnell Collegeand a
very lovely sweet spirited woman who | eft theimpress of her own sincerity onthelivesand ideal sof
many of her pupils. Following her asprincipal while she continued asateacher of Englishinthe school
cameMr.A.W. Merrill, who stayed only oneyear at North at that time. The next year saw two
principalscomeand go, Mr. E. N. McKay, and Mr. Samuel Cart. During theseyearstherewere
besidesthe principal usually two other full timeteachersand drawing and music teacherswho also
served the grade schools.

At that timethoseboysand girlswho did not intend to go to collegewere very likely to drop out of
school whilestill inthegradesor at theend of the ninth grade.

A few yearslater thanthis, statistics showed that only ten percent of the fourteen-year-old boyswere
inschool. Withthisinmind itisnot surprising to discover that arather large percent of theearlier
graduating classeswent oninto college-four out of six inthefirst class; and four out of thefiveinthe
second, thefifth oneisthisgroup taking abus ness collegetraining after high school, and so on, of
course, the percentage decreasing asthelarger numbersremained in high school until graduation. The
curriculum at that time consisted of strictly college entrance subjects, English, Latin, Greek, German,
mathematics, history and sciencewith alittleart and music.

Intheearly 1920's, North High was becoming overcrowded. Thiscondition wastaken careof inthe
year 1921 and on for awhile by rearranging thewhol e schedulefor theday and running the classesin
two shiftswith home room period for the sophomores, juniors, and seniorsat 8:15am. with six forty
minute periodsuntil lunch period at 12:43, when many of these studentswent homefor therest of the
day.

In January, 1928, West Senior High wasgiven up, because of the small number of studentsthere.
About one hundred of these studentstransferred to Roosevelt and over four hundred to North. Several
teacherswho had been at West al so cameto North. Every effort was put forth by all concernedto
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bring about as speedy and as perfect an amalgamation of thetwo groups of studentsas possible. Home
roomswereformed of equal numbersof both groups, and the school went forward asusual, soonlosing
sight of the North and West ideaentirely.

Theyear 1929 marked thefirst activity toward again acquiring more room, which wasthen greatly
needed because of theincreasing number of pupilscoming every semester from thethreetributary junior
high schools. Someyearsbefore the city had voted a$300,000 bond issuefor improvement of the West
High building, but for somereason the plan had not been carried out. The question of transferring this
money to be used for an addition to North High building was placed beforethe votersin March and was
decided favorablefor North. Asaresult of thisaction, North High gained thewholenew building facing
Seventh street including the boys' gymnasium, swimming pool, nurse’ srooms, amuch enlarged stage, and
acompletechangeintheinterior of the oldest building too Complicated to be detailed here, but providing
severa extraclassrooms, thelittle theatre, and the club or music room asthey are now.

1939- GRIEDER STUDY OF DESMOINESSCHOOLS

The Grieder Report in 1939 on building needs said:

“Itisrecommended that North High eventually be abandoned and anew senior school located onthe
steknown asHaugo's Sycamore Hill Plat 2, acrosstheriver at N. Union and Sheridan. Thisrecommen-
dation wastransmitted to the Board of Education March 4, 1939. Subsequently the Board of Education
decided not to avalil itself of the opportunity to acquirethissite, and thecity hassoldit to private parties.

“Proposal No. 2. A lessdesirable site except from the point of view of present trangit facilitieslies
adjacent to the north edge of Union Park, between Second and Sixth Avenues, and extending north to
Sheridan. Itsareaisabout twenty-five acres. Thelandislow, would requireavery largefill, and does not
occupy acommanding position asdoesthefirst site.

“Plant investment at Northisso largethat the operation of aschool at thiscenter for someyearsto
comeisimperative. Asrecently as 1930 approximately $200,00 was spent inremodeling the 1895
section and building anew addition for gymnasiums shop. Probably North cannot be abandoned for
fifteen or twenty years. But when that time comesby far the best movewill beto thelarge siterecom-
mended above. Immediate acquisitionisstrongly urged to protect theinterestsof thedistrict inthefuture.
Any other policy must be characterized as short-sighted.”

“Thedecisionasto whether or not North shall be abandoned will affect the construction program. If
Northisto beretained for fifteen or twenty years capital and maintenance outlays should bekept at a
minimum; if longer, the 1895 section should betorn out and replaced with new construction. The Survey
staff can recommend, however, no other movethan eventually rel ocating acrosstheriver.”

1957 -"NEW” NORTH HIGH SCHOOL

Dr. Knezevichinhis 1957 School Building Study reported asfollows:

“Itisdifficult at thistimeto report on“Old” Northand “New” North. During thetime of the study “ Old”
North wasbeing utilized for senior high school purposes but scheduled for abandonment for such pur-
posesin the 1957-58 school year. “New” North by the sametoken wasnot yet completed. Thevarious
typesof facilitiesprovided at the“New” North High School areindicated below. Theinterchangeable
classroomsarefairly largeasthemedian will be approximately 752 squarefeet. Excellent specia pur-
posefacilitiesarea so noted. Instrumental and voca music roomswill have over 1,800 squarefeet. The
boys gymnasium hasover 13,000 square feet, and thegirls gymnasium hasalmost 5500 squarefest.
Thereare an excellent pool and apool stadium with asizable seating capacity. The scienceroomsare
large, the biology room having over 1,800 squarefeet. Excellent facilitiesare provided for industrial arts
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education with auto and metal shopsaswell aswood shops. A student center islikewise provided. A large
auditorium seating 1,800 peopleisincluded in thisbuilding. “New” Northwill beplaced onasiteof 24
acresinadditionto an athletic field whichislocated acrossthe road from the new building.

North Highinthe‘70s

During theearly 1970'smany new courseswereintroduced in an attempt to providefor individual inter-
estsand differenceswith an emphasison career education. Some of these coursesare asfollow:

Creative Writing, Journalism Graphics, Semantics, FilmArts, Guided Individualized Reading, Contempo-
rary Literature, Expository Writing, Anthropol ogy, Sociology, Public 1ssues, American Political Behavior,
Asan Sudies, Emerging Nations, Geography Project, Office Education, Music Thesater, Experimenta Child
Care, Firestone Project (acareer education course with Firestone Tire Company, Aerospace and L eader-
ship Education (AFJROTC) and many othersincluding part-timework programsand independent study.

TheNorth High Band spent eight daysin Hawalii in June, 1972, and performed in the 100th Annua King
KamehamehaDay Celebration. Thetrip was made possible by apersonad invitation from the Governor of
Hawaii, the Honorable John Burns. North wasthefirst mainland high school band ever to participateinthe
celebration and they were so well received that they were given an open invitation to return, which they did
in1975. The* Polar Bear Band” aso playedinWashington, D.C. inthe 1973 Inaugural Parade.

Girls athleticsbecame moreprominentintheearly 1970's, asvolleyball, basketball, track and softball
wereadded tothelist. Theseactivitieswerewel |l under way beforethe U.S. Department of Health, Educa
tion and Welfare mandated that schoolsmust provide; equal, opportunity for both sexesto participatein
intramurd interscholastic athletics. Morewill bedoneinthisareainthefuture.

Inthemid-1970' sthe school administration, the North High parentsand the school board areal studying
the problem of declining enrollment at North High School. With abuilding capacity of 1500 and atotal
enrollment of 700 students, together with acensusforecast of still fewer studentswithin the North bound-
aries, thefollowing solutionswere considered:

1. Addinganinthgrade

2. Adjusting high school boundaries

3. Moving DesMoinesTechnical High School to North

4. Closing North High School and making it into a“ Fundamental” junior high school.

These concernswould probably not be necessary had the bond issue electionin 1963 passed. Morethan
25,000 voterswent to the palls, thelargest turnout inthe city’s history for aschool bond election, at that
timeto vote on abond issue of $5,975,000 and a 3-year school housetax levy that would raise an esti-
mated $2,200,000. These amounts, plus $400,000 remaining from abuilding program begunin 1959,
would havefinanced an $8,500,000 project including 88 el ementary classrooms, anew junior high schoal,
anexpansion of 2junior high schoolsand an expansion of 3 senior high schools. North High wasone of the
senior high schoolsdated to be expanded with a$500,000 project.

Thetax levy received approval of morethan 63 per cent of the votersbut the bond issue carried only 59
per cent while 60 per cent wasrequired. A shift of 208 voteswould have given the bond i ssue the necessary
votesto pass.

Thenext year, 30,874 voterswent to the pollsand passed anew bond issuethat provided for a
$9,800,00 building program whichincluded $3,200,00 for the new Hoover High School, $1,800,00for a
new south sidejunior high school, and five new elementary schools. Additionsto two e ementary schools,
Weeks Junior High, East High and Lincoln High werealsoincluded in thisproject.

The school bond issue of thelate 1960’ s provided for an expansion of thelibrary at North High School
and the addition of two classrooms. The contract | et for thisexpansion was $99,400.
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1972 - Addition of Counseling
rooms, Art rooms,Band and Orches-
trarooms

1974 - Addition of Metal Shop

Principalswho served at Roosevelt:
1923 - 1934 Robert R. Cook
1934 - 1939 J. Edgar Stonecipher
1939 - 1941 C. 0. Hoyt
1941 - 1954 Emmet J. Hasty
1954 - 1965 Delmar H. Battrick

= RS =i W 1965 - 1966 CharlesD. Rowley
Roosevelt 1967 - Bruce Gardner

ROOSEVELT HIGH SCHOOL
45th and Center
Site-38.4 Acres

Theodore Roosevelt High School isnearly half acentury old. Construction work on the building began
April 1,1922. It was completed in thefall of 1923 and dedicated on March 2, 1924.

WhileWest Highwasthefirst high school building inthisdistrictsahigh school had been conducted for
anumber of yearsin Lincoln school at 9th and Mulberry.

Although many may havetheimpressionthat the history of Roosevelt started upon itscompletion
October 1, 1923, the history really beganin February, 1917, when thefirst petitionsfor the school were
filedintheofficeof the president of the school board.

In 1921 the contracts, amounting to approximately amillion dollars, werelet to Kucharo Construction
Company. Theactua construction wasbeguninthe spring of 1922. In September of the sameyear the
corner stonewaslaid.

Although work on the school was not yet finished, thefirst school session opened in September, 1923.
OnMarch 2 of thefollowing year, the dedication of the still unfinished building took place.

Thetwenty-three acretract of land upon which the building was erected was sel ected because of its
location and natural beauty. The building, when completed, cost $1,065,000; the school equipment
$160,000; the site $65,000; and the landscaping drives, playgrounds, and athletic fields $30,000. The
total cost was $1,331,600.

Hereisacapsulereport of thefirst year at Roosevelt.

September, 1924--School opened with an enrollment of 1,282. Auditorium unfinished and sothe
cafeteriawas used for assemblieswith stools, boxesand thefloor for seets.

The campus-bare, ungraded, not ashrub, not awalk. Organizationsfor thefirst semester were:

1. Student Council made up of representativesfrom each homeroom.

2. Band, orchestra, junior orchestra, boys gleeclub, girls gleeclub, Cadman Club (aninthgradegirls
gleeclub), Treble Club (junior high girls gleeclubwithfifty members).

3. Dramatic clubs-Sothern and Marlowe, Thespian, The Marionettes MaudeAdams Club, Otis Skin-
ner Club, Walker Whiteside Club, Punch and Judy Club.

4. TheTheodian Literary Club,
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5 TheAthenianArt Club.

6. Thejunior Art Club.

7. TheForensicand Debating Club (senior high).
8. Junior Parliamentary Law and Debating Club.
9. LatinClub.

10. ScienceClub.

11. Senior High Radio Club.

12. Junior High Scienceand Radio Club.

13. Canhute Campfire Club.

Second semester organi zations:

1. Theodore Roosevelt Chapter of the National Honor Society
2. Ocawasin CampfireClub.

3. Junior HighCorral.

Graduating classes. January -- 17 graduated. June-88 graduated.

The school isof modified Gothic styleand presentsone of DesMoines' finest viewswhen seenfrom
Polk Boulevard. Thebuilding hasbeen greetly enlarged in thelast forty years. The counseling addition,
and most recently, the new library, sciencewing, boys gym, swimming pool, and teachers diningroom
have been added. Theold boys gym has been made over for the mechanical artsdepartment, and the
old pool isnow awrestling room.

Theauditorium, with aseating capacity of 2,036, occupiesalarge areaof the Roosevdtinterior. The
auditorium has served the school, and has a so been the site of many attractionsfor the entire community.
Theauditorium has been the scenefor action-packed pep assemblies; serious Thanksgiving, Christmas,
and Easter assemblies; al-school movies; school plays, the Senior Frolics; and other events. Another
auditoriumwhichismuch smaller (capacity 174) isthe home of the dramatic and speech department. The
band and orchestrarehearse on the stage of thelarge auditorium. The choral groupshavealargemusic
room onthethird floor. Theart and journalism department has supervised the publication of aschool
paper and annual since 1924.

The homemaking department, industria artsdepartment, and the commercia department help give
TRHS studentsachoice of good vocational courses. Distributive educationisanew field that hasre-
cently been added to give students on-the-job-training. Of course the academic subjects, language,
English, mathematics, science, and history, are strongly emphasi zed at Roosevelt. The spaciousnew
referencelibrary contains 12,000 volumes, not including pamphl ets and bound magazine volumes.

There has been an enthusiastic display of TRHS spirit toward athletics. Infootball, the Ridershavewon
the City Seriesninetimesandtied for it threetimes. The 1954 eleven went undefeated and were
crowned mythical State champions. Roosevelt’sbasketball teamshave goneto the State Tournament
several times. The Riderswere State Championsin 1934 and runnersupin 1929, 1933, and 1954. In
1959 TRHS placed third in the State Tournament and played in the quarter finalsin 1953 and 1961. In
1965 they were State Championsonceagain.

The school haswon national famein swimming. Roosevelt hasregularly placed membersof itsteams
ontheAll-American swimming lists. TRHS haswon the state swvimming titletwel vetimesand tied once.
Inthe city, the Riders havewon thirty-two consecutive City swimming meets. Wrestling wasresumedin
1955 after fifteen yearswithout ateam at Roosevelt. The Roosevelt golf and tennishave placedfirstin
the City tournamentsfor many years.
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Thetrack team has been afrequent winner at the Valley Relays, Drake Relays, Oskal oosaRel ays,
and theindoor and outdoor State meets. The cross country team was startedin 1957. The Riders
baseball team hashad itsshare of victoriesin city and state competition.

Roosevelt isnot aone-sport school. It hasproduced winnersin all fields of athletics. Athleticsat
TRHS have becomean essentia and integral part inthelivesof the students.

Here isasummary of thevariousadditionsto Roosevelt High School.

1. Counsdling Addition--1954

Square Ft.--720 Cost-$10,300

2. MainAddition-(Physical Education, Library, Science)-1962 Square Ft.-58,260 Cost-$1,197,160

3. Kitchenand CafeteriaRemodeling--1964

Square Ft.-700 (dishwasher area) Cost-$32,000

Cost includescompleteremodeling of kitchen and part of cafeteria, plustheaddition of dishroom
building.

Freeway constructionin 1966 isdrasticaly changing the land south and west of the school. A portion
of the southwest corner of the campuswastaken by the highway commission for therel ocation of
Center Street. Revamping thefront groundsareaistaking placein 1966,1967.

Roosevelt High School has explored new various curriculum coursesinthe 1950'sand 1960’s. In
severa casesthe experimental work in BSCSbiology, CHEM S chemistry, to nametwo, have been
extended and adopted by other high schools. Roosevelt consistently sends about 8570 of it graduates
to college who represent the Des M oines School s on college campuses throughout the nation.

Roosevelt High in the 1970s

Roosevelt High School had several school additionsinthe 1960s. InAugust, 1971 acontract was
awarded for $181,000 for the addition of counseling rooms, art rooms, band and orchestrarooms. The
main addition included herewasthefact that the band and orchestraroomsfor thefirst timewould have
asectionfor their own userather than the stage of the auditorium that had been their homefor amost
50years. The counseling room addition was an expansion of the original onethat took placeinthe
1950s. Againin August of 1974 therewas aneed seen for ametal shop addition. The contract wasl et
for $145,000 for aseparate metal shop addition. Thisin turn reflected the changein the study body
request and the need for an educational spaceto meet their needs.

Roosevelt High School inthe 1970s continuesto be ahigh achieving academic high school that sends
probably the highest number of its studentsto college of any of the senior high units. Thecurricular
program includesanumber of unique programs. To nameafew of themare:

Independent Study

Pass/ Fail Option

Student Supervised Lunchroom

Student Faculty Liaison Committee

Faculty Senate

Titlelll Career Interest Study Survey

Titlelll Rent-A-Kid Career Guidance

Handicapped Drivers Education program

Police-School Liaison program

Open Campus

Itisfelt that Roosevelt High School iscontinuing to meet the needs of youngstersin expanding its
offeringsof itsprogramsfor the requirementsof the student body that it serves.
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Principds

1942 - 1946 Perry Frazier
1946 - 1969 EIlmer Betz
1969- DonBlackman

DESMOINESTECHNICAL HIGH SCHOOL
1800 Grand
Site4.1 acres

A technical high school for DesM oineswas established in 1942 in the building which wasformerly known
asWest High Schooal. It was an out-growth of aprogram of training adultsfor employment in defense
activitieswhich the school system had been asked to provide. Thelate Roy 0. Woolman, director of indus-
trial education, took an active part in the organization of thetechnical high school.

From 1942 until theend of World War |1 the high school program and thetraining of adult workersfor
industria firmsengaged in defenseactivitieswere carried on side by sde. Meanwhilethe school had grown
from an enrollment of lessthan 300 thefirst year to approximately 450. Thislater enrollment wasaugmented
by returning veterans seeking technica education. At timesthe number of veteransin training exceeded 250.

After thewar enrollment in thetechnical high school grew morerapidly, exceeding 7001n 1948, 900in
1952, and 1100 in 1954. Therewaslittle growth in enrollment between 1954 and 1957, due primarily to
crowded conditionsat theformer location. Sinceit was apparent that therewould be anincreasing number
of high school studentsin the city and that thetechnical high school would continueto grow, the Board of
Education wasfaced with the necessity of providing morefacilities. The present enrollment of about 2000
showsthetrend.

Latein 1951 it waslearned that the Solar Aircraft Company planned to vacate the building at 18th and
Grand Avenue. Thisbuilding was constructed about 1916 by the Ford M otor Company for useasan
assembly plant. It wasacquired by the Solar Aircraft Company about 1940, being used asaplant for
fabricating partsfor jet engines. After study of many problemsinvolved, it became evident that thisbuilding
would provide the space required by agrowing technical high school.

A planwasdevel oped to bring together at thislocation the technical high school, the administrative offices
of theBoard of Education, thefurniturefactory and repair shop, and the supply department and warehous-
ingfor thedistrict, This program was presented to the voterswho authorized the purchase of the building in
May, 1952. According to agreement it wasthen |leased to the Solar Aircraft Company whiletheir new plant
was under construction.

Theorigina building isapproximately 450 feet long, 120 feet wide, 5 storieshigh infront, plusaground
floor level under theentire building and asub-basement under approximately two-thirdsof thebuilding. The
addition at thefront of the building housesthe auditorium; radio and tel evision broadcasting booths, offices,
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and equipment; separate gymnasiumsfor boysand girls; and aswimming pool. The construction of the
origina building wassuchthat it could not houseany of theseactivities.

Thereisample spacefor thetechnical high school to grow by increasing enrollmentsin variousareasand
by providing ingtruction in new areasnot now included. In addition the school will continueto expandin
providing educationd opportunitiesfor adults.

Tech High School inthemid-1970s continuesto offer its speciaized program of vocational and technical
education to the students of the entire DesMoines school district. During the 1970sthefollowing programs
have been added:

1. Licensed Practica Nursing

2. Agri-Business

3. MarineCorpsJr. R.O.T.C.

4. BusnessEducation

A.M.T.ST.training
B. Legd secretarid training
C. Medica secretarial Training
D. Personnd receptionist training
E. BusinessCommunications
5. Tradesand Industry Elective Courses
A. Generd metds
B. Practical eectricity
C. Industrid safety
D. Blueprint reading and estimating
E. Aero-science
6. Academics
A. Mathlaboratory
B. Reading laboratory
C. World geography
D. Vdue-conflicts
E. U. W. Today
F. Revised Englishcurriculum

A contract waslet in Juneof 1970 for expanding the counsdling and library spaceat Tech High. Thisarea
asoincludesthe Career Placement Center. The contract amounted to $50,000. An additiona contract was
awardedin 1974 for ingtallation of air-conditioning of thisspace.

The Tech High aviation |aboratory existed for anumber of yearsat E 18th and Euclid. Thiswasasite
acquired fromtheU.S. Government asasurplussite. The need for anew aviation laboratory became
apparent and contractswereawarded in August 1974 for anew building on asite at the DesMoines
Airport, SW. 31st and McKinley. Thisnew laboratory, approved by F.A.A., wascompleted in September
1975.

The studentsfrom thefollowing ma or areas of job entry education are participating in ahouse building
project each year. Students of Des M oines Tech have compl eted their fourth house.

Carpentry
Cabinet Making
Printing (Publicity)
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Sheet Metd

Electricity

Refrigeration-Air Conditioning
Painting/ Decorating

Additiond programsat DesMoinesTechinclude:
Titlel Secondary Reading
New Horizons
Titlelll Career Interest Student Survey
Titlelll Rent-A-Kid Career Placement
Alliance of Businesswith Pittsburg-DesMoines Steel
Handicapped Driver Education
Police-Schooal Liaison Program
Business Education Co-op Program
Officeand Secretarial Co-op
Program School-Community Worker Program
Tradesand Industry Co-op Program
L earning Resource Teacher for theHearing Impaired
Learning DisabilitiesTeacher
DesMoines Technical High School isoneof thefew secondary schoolsin our nation offering 29 major
areas of job entry education. Studentsmay also enroll in acollege preparatory academic programor a
genera education academic program in addition to one of themagjor areas of job entry training.
Each year approximately 90% of the senior classare gainfully employed and 24% are college bound.

TECH AVIATION LAR.
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Directors.
1968-1974 Charles S. Greenwood
1974 - Vincent Scavo

Greater DesMoines Education Centers
1452 - 2nd Avenue
1961 - Indianola Road

INn 1968, following awaveof racial incidentsin the schools, and during a timewhen some studentswere
beginning to question the more restri ctive aspects of schoolsontheir persona freedoms, the Board of
Education opted to open avoluntary attendance program for dropouts. That program was also to be made
availableto certain expelleesby Board action and to “kickouts’ after a30 day waiting period. Spacewas
made availableat the JuliaB. Mayer Community Center on the near north side (known previoudy, for
years, asthe Jewish Community Center). The program opened in January, 1969. By June of that year the
enrollment had outgrown that facility and the present site of the North Greater DesMoines Education
Center wasleased. The school, located at 1452 - 2nd Avenue, was named by the students.

In December, 1972, aSouth Center was opened in aleased facility at 1961 IndianolaAvenue. This
Center wastheresult of apush by the Community Development Agency to expand the program. Both
Centerspresently serve studentsin the ninth grade and above who have not adjusted to the conventional
school setting. The popularity of these adternative education centers has shown that they serveaunique
segment of the school population. Specia programsin the Centersin additionto the usual secondary
curriculumofferings(highly individudized) include:

Pre-Career Industrial Workshop

Career Placement and Credit

Vocationa Exploration

Neighborhood Youth Corpsl|

Governor’sYouth Opportunity Program

Driver’'sEducation Directors
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